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CITY OF BAYSWATER

Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of the Bayswater City Council which took place in the Council
Chambers, City of Bayswater Civic Centre, 61 Broun Avenue, Morley on 12 December 2017.

1. OFFICIAL OPENING

Notice is hereby given that the Ordinary Council Meeting will be audio recorded in accordance
with the resolution of Council of 17 May 2016.

Persons are not permitted to record (visual or audio) at the Council meeting without prior
approval of the Council.

The Chairperson, Cr Dan Bull, Mayor, welcomed those in attendance and declared the meeting

open for the ordinary business of Council at 6.31pm.

1.1 Traditional Owners Acknowledgement

The Chairperson, Cr Dan Bull, Mayor respectfully acknowledged the past, present and future
traditional custodians of the land on which we are meeting, the Whadjuk (Perth) region people of
the Noongar nation. Cr Dan Bull, Mayor acknowledged and respected their continuing culture
and the contribution they make to the life of this city and this region.

1.2 Declaration of Due Consideration

The Chairperson read the Declaration of Due Consideration and all Councillors present raised
their hands to indicate that due consideration was given to all matters contained in the Agenda.

2. RECORD OF ATTENDANCE, APOLOGIES, ABSENCE AND LEAVE OF
ABSENCE (PREVIOUSLY APPROVED)

Attendance, Apologies and Absence

Members

West Ward

Cr Dan Bull, Mayor (Chairperson)
Cr Giorgia Johnson (from 6.52pm)
Cr Lorna Clarke

Central Ward
Cr Chris Cornish, Deputy Mayor
Cr Barry McKenna

North Ward

Cr Brent Fleeton

Cr Stephanie Gray
Cr Filomena Piffaretti
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South Ward
Cr Catherine Ehrhardt
Cr Elli Petersen-Pik

Officers

Mr Andrew Brien Chief Executive Officer

Mr Doug Pearson Director Technical Services

Mr Des Abel Director Planning and Development Services
Ms Carissa Bywater Director Finance and Corporate Services

Mr Darren Beltman Acting Director Community Services

Ms Danica Kay Governance Support Officer

Observers

Press - 1

Public - 27

Leave of Absence

Cr Sally Palmer

Apologies
Nil.

4.2 Application for Leave of Absence

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

That Leave of Absence be granted as follows:

CR DAN BULL, MAYOR from 18 January 2018 to 24 January 2018 inclusive; and
CR BARRY McKENNA from 8 January 2018 to 30 January 2018 inclusive;

CR BRENT FLEETON MOVED, CR CATHERINE EHRHARDT SECONDED

CARRIED: 9/0
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3. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

In accordance with section 5.24(1)(a) of the Local Government Act 1995, time is allocated for
guestions to be raised by members of the public, as follows:

(1) The minimum time to be allocated for the asking of and responding to questions raised by
members of the public at ordinary meetings of councils and meetings referred to in
regulation 5 is 15 minutes.

(2) Once all the questions raised by members of the public have been asked and responded
to at a meeting referred to in sub regulation (1), nothing in these regulations prevents the
unused part of the minimum question time period from being used for other matters.

Pursuant to regulation 7(4)(a) of the Local Government (Administration) Regulations 1996,
guestions from the public must relate to a matter affecting the local government.

In accordance with section 5.25(1)(f) of the Local Government Act 1995 and the
Local Government (Administration) Regulations 1996 regulation 11(e) a summary of each
question raised by members of the public at the meeting and a summary of the response to the
question will be included in the minutes of the meeting.

Where a question is taken on notice at the meeting, in accordance with clause 5.6(7)(b) of the
City of Bayswater Standing Orders Local Law 2013 a summary of the response to the question
will be included in the minutes for the following Council meeting.

The City will continue to provide written responses to those questions taken on notice at the
meeting but will no longer include associated forms and personalised correspondence as part of
Council Minute appendices.

3.1 Responses to Public Questions Taken 'On Notice'

lan Walters - 124 Laurence Street, Bedford

Question 1

Firstly congratulations on your appointment, Can you confirm audio is working.

| refer to my question raised at the last ordinary meeting of Council to the chair of the
Audit and Risk Committee via the Chair - subject compliance with Accounting Standards
Mr Mayor when can | expect an answer, the reply at the meeting was several days, several
weeks have passed.

Answer 1
Further to your query around the inclusion of the termination benefit paid to the former Chief
Executive Officer, | write to confirm this disclosure will be made in Note 17 of the 2016-17
financial statements. At the time of writing this, the Auditors Report has not been received,
however the final audited statements will be posted on the City's website as soon as they are
available.
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3.2 Public Question Time

Public Question Time commenced at 6:32pm.
The following questions were submitted in writing:

Barry Kramer - Central Ward

Question 1

| take note of the amount of Committees individual Councillors have volunteered to be on,
so as a voluntary decision of each councillor, committee meetings do not in any way
effect the amount of the set CoB Attendance Fee they are paid.

As the position of LG Councillor is officially recognised as a voluntary position, will
Councillors be paid the “Meeting attendance fee” if they do not attend an “Ordinary
Council Meeting” (sick or on leave) as this is the most important meeting where total
ratepayer representation is needed and the only meeting where all council decisions can
be officially ratified?

Answer 1

Cr Dan Bull, Mayor advised that the Salary and Allowances Tribunal Determination from earlier
this year confirmed that there are basically two methods by which councillors can receive fees.
That is either by way of attendance fees pursuant to section 5.98(1) of the Local Government
Act, or by way of an annual fee - once the Council has resolved by absolute majority to do so
(which is pursuant to section 5.99 of the LG Act).

| have been advised that previously Council resolved by absolute majority to provide an annual
allowance as determined by the Tribunal. This allowance is paid quarterly in arrears and isn't
affected based on attendance at Council or Committee meetings. Because of this, as it currently
stands a Councillor who does not attend a Council or Committee Meeting will still receive the
quarterly payment.

In terms of the meetings where decisions of Council are binding (referred to in your question as
"officially ratified"), Council has provided delegated authority to both Standing Committees
(Planning and Development Services Committee, and Community, Technical, Finance and
Corporate Services Committee) to make decisions in accordance with their terms of reference,
the provisions of the Act and the limits of the delegation. That way, binding decisions are made
at these two committee meetings in addition to the Ordinary Council Meetings.

Stephanie Phelps - 46 Kenilworth Street, Maylands

Question 1

Can the Council please advise its preferred route for the planned Ellenbrook rail line, how
that position will benefit the City and in particular activate Morley centre and what Council
is doing to advocate for its preferred route.

Answer 1

Cr Dan Bull, Mayor advised that the City has approached the PTA, local member for Maylands
and the Minister for Transport and we are continuing those discussions. The Minister for
Transport has indicated that the State will make an announcement about the Bayswater Train
Station and therefore the Ellenbrook rail line early next year around February. There will be more
information to come.
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Mabel Jean Percsy - 4 Cannon Street, Bayswater 6053

Question 1

| presented a petition to Council in support of Thuy Tran continuing as lessee for the cafe
and following that | received a letter from Mr. Matt Turner. Later copies of the petition were
forwarded to all council members.

Looking at the minutes of the meeting 18th April, | read "Submission one.... "A member of
the public...." (No mention of a petition being received or discussed) so | ask "was this
petition discussed and taken into account when considering the Operator for Bayswater
Waves Cafe?"

Answer 1

The petition was circulated to Councillors when it was received in September 2017 and was also
subsequently sent to all Councillors again on 21 November 2017 as part of a submission by Ms
Tran.

Question 2

Over the years Thuy and her staff have supplied a friendly atmosphere and service. This
in turn has encouraged circles of friends to enjoy coffee time after the classes provided
by the Bayswater Waves which has been the basis of firm friendships.

"Did the members of the Council give this any consideration when deciding for Operator
42"

Answer 2
Council will be debating this matter later in the evening and will give consideration to the matters
raised.

Question 3

The range of food items is wide and satisfying. The range of the menu is excellent, serving
a wide range of healthy food. The usual Sausage roll to fresh salads (Fruit and vegetable)
Prices range between $3.50 to $8.50.

| can remember the minimum range of food supplied by previous lessees of this cafe and
was rarely tempted to take advantage of it.

"Have the council members disregarded the ratepaying customer's opinions in making
their decision?"

Answer 3
Council will be debating this matter later in the evening and will give consideration to the matters
raised.

Joe Lee - 44 Samson Street, White Gum Valley 6162

Question 1

In the last 2 weeks prior to 5 December 2017 (closing date for public submission for the
Bayswater Waves Cafe lease application), some Supervisors of the Bayswater Wave
Aquatic Centre have said to Ms Thuy Tran - Operator 3 (the current Operator of the
Bayswater Waves Cafe) that they have been informed by the Council, that a new operator
other than her will be taking over the lease of the cafe on 15 January 2018. Staff members
of the Centre also mentioned to her that the Management of the Centre have told them of
the same thing.
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It was noted in the last few days that some individuals who dealt with the Management of
the Bayswater Waves Aquatic Centre several months ago have been told to postpone their
business propositions until January because a new operator (not the current Operator i.e.
Ms Thuy Tran - Operator 3) will be taking over the lease of the cafe and that they should
then contact the new operator and not Ms Thuy Tran for the moment.

All these is within the period 27 July 2017 and 5 December 2017 when the Council
was inviting the public for Expression Of Interest to operate the Bayswater Waves Cafe
whose lease is up for renewal.

It was said that some of these individuals are considering providing these information out
into the open.

Please comment?

Answer 1

As the City's intention to lease the Bayswater Waves Café has been advertised in the local
paper, it is possible that some community members and staff have seen the advertisement and
chosen to approach the current operator about the advertisement. Any final decision to enter into
a lease needs to be made by Council.

Question 2
As published in the City’s website: The City of Bayswater Council’s 12 December 2017

Analysis of the Submissions stated - “The City’s officers are satisfied that the real estate
agent provided (Ms Thuy Tran) Operator 3 with all the relevant information and full
disclosure of the process in which to prepare and present an offer to the City”.

What fair and due process did the City undertake in order to arrive at this conclusion?

Why did City officers not contacted Ms Thuy Tran - Operator 3 who emailed several times
to the Council that she has documentary proof of her correspondence with the real estate
agent but instead they chose to ignore her emails and decide on the issue unilaterally?

Ms Thuy Tran - Operator 3 informed the Council that she has proof that highlighted
misinformation given her and her not being provided by the agent with the Council’s
revised Heads of Agreement (which stated the new selection criteria, one of them being
the Council’s disapproval of the ‘5 years + 5 years’ option). As a result she yet again, to
her detriment, included the same ‘5 years + 5 years’ option in her second Heads of
Agreement (23 October 2017) that she had in her initial first Heads Of Agreement (27 July
2017).

As published in the City’s website: The City of Bayswater Council’s 12 December 2017
Analysis of the Submissions stated - “Operator 3 has proposed to remove the ‘5 years +5
years' term option due to a perception that the council will not find this term
favourable...”.

The real estate agent informed Ms Thuy Tran - Operator 3 that the Lease Term is up for
negotiation between the Council and applicant and encouraged her to submit her offer on
the lease term. Hence, Ms Thuy Tran - Operator 3 included the ‘5 years + 5 year’ option
(an option that she is familiar with and has been operating on ever since running the lease
of the Cafe) in her initial and first Heads of Agreement offer. She then included it again in
her second Heads of Agreements, uninformed by the agent of the existence of the
Council’s revised Head of Agreement which stated it does not support the ‘5 years + 5
years’ option.
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She only discovered of the ‘5 year + 5 year’ term option disapproval after the Council has
already chosen their preferred operator i.e. Operator 4 on 14 November 2017 and
published their Analysis. Having now known what she didn’t know then, her Submission
(20 November 2017) was intended to urgently address that issue which have already by
then deeply prejudiced her application as seen in the Council’s Analysis published in their
website (14 November 2017). It is through this factual chronology of events that she
“proposed to remove the ‘5 years + 5 years’ term option!

Why has the City’s officers not published these factual chronology of events but instead
presented in their Analysis report (12 December 2017) that Ms Thuy Tran - Operator 3 has
removed the ‘5 years + 5 years’ in what seems like an afterthought to be competitive at the
last minute?

Answer 2

All those who expressed interest, including Ms Tran, were given an equal opportunity to present,
confidentially, best offer for the lease of the café to the City's appointed real estate agent. City
officers met personally with Ms Tran and have discussed her emails, including the process
undertaken, on the telephone on a number of occasions and they have been made available to
Councillors for consideration this evening. Ms Tran has made an assumption that a 5+5 year
term will not be acceptable to Council because Operator 4 proposed a single 5 year term,
however that has not been used as a selection criteria in the City's reports.

Question 3
As published in the City’s website: In the Council’s Conclusion (12 December 2017) it

stated: Regarding Operator 4 (the preferred operator), “they have committed to provide
$25,000 to $30,000 to upgrade the appearance and amenity of the cafe”. In the Heads Of
Agreement, the Council did not stipulate this “upgrading of the cafe” as a criteria of
selection of operators, and neither was this mentioned in their Analysis report of the
selection process (14 November 2017), yet in the Analysis of Submission (12 December
2017) this non-criteria, something not asked for, is now stated as one of the deciding
factors in favouring Operator 4. Hence yet again disadvantaging Ms Thuy Tran - Operator
3.

How is this a fair, equitable and transparent selection process?

Answer 3

The proposal from another potential operator to upgrade the appearance and amenity of the café
is relevant to the City's decision on the lease because it adds value to the operation of Bayswater
Waves. All those who expressed interest were given an equal opportunity to present,
confidentially, their best offer for the lease of the café.

Thuy Tran - PO Box 1430, Joondalup 6919

Question 1

Would it not be in the best interest of the cafe and the City of Bayswater if the current
lessee, were to continue to lease the premises given the current lessee:
1. Presents ZERO risk to the Council as we:
Have always paid rent on time;
Have been an excellent tenant in the last 10 years;
Have operated the cafe successfully in the last 10 years and is unlikely to
withdraw or have the lease assigned during the term of the lease;
Provides excellent customer service to patrons (as evinced by a petition signed
by more than 100 patrons);
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Provides a diverse menu with low prices (which has remain unchanged for 10
years);

Attract patrons to the centre - specifically to purchase food from the cafe;
Has a fantastic relationship with all staff and personnel in the centre;

2. Values and supports the community and various communlty groups such as
pensioners, disability groups, charity groups, women's group, groups operating in
the centre (such as the aerobics group & gym group) by:

- Offering large discounts;
Allowing groups to use the function room at either no charge or a nominal fee;
Allowing groups to fundraise with a sausage sizzle on the premises; and
Hiring young teenagers who are patrons of the centre because we truly believe
in giving back to the local community,
Has taken steps to meet with Brett Williams from Response Marketing
Solutions with a view to increase the cafe's future revenue which would
support the City's long term financial plan.

Answer 1
Council will be debating this matter later in the evening and will give consideration to the matters
raised.

Question 2

The current lessee in the past 10 years has made various proposals for changes for the
improvement of the amenities and facade of the cafe, all of which have all been declined
by the Council. The Council has never indicated that it would consider or desire any
modification to the premises. In knowing that Council now shares the current lessee's
vision for visual betterment for the cafe, may we ask if facelift to the cafe to a high
standard place us in a position for consideration as the successful applicant?

Answer 2

The City is not aware of any specific proposals from the current operator to upgrade the
amenities and facade of the café. Council will be debating this matter later in the evening and will
give consideration to the matters raised.

Question 3

Is it accurate to assess granting a lease to operator 4's risks of operating as nil given:

1. Operator 4 has no experience in operating a cafe of a seasonal nature where in
winter there are very few patrons and there is a struggle to make ends meet.

2. Prior to the current lessee taking over the premises, the two operators immediately
before were unable to cope with the seasonal nature of the business.

3.  Operator 4's proposed menu lacks diversity or creativity in comparison to the
nutritious & healthy Asian delights offered by the current lessee - which the patrons
are currently accustomed to?

Answer 3
Operator 4 is considered to have extensive experience operating cafés and restaurants. Council
will be debating this matter later in the evening and will give consideration to the matters raised.
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Ollie Rundell - 33 Oldfield Road, Girrawheen

Question 1

We note that Mr Matt Turner made the recommendation to the Council that Operator 4 is
partly favoured since he will be revamping the appearance of the cafe. May we ask that
given that Operator 3 has provided such certainty & stability & high quality of food and
service for the last 10 years, if Operator 3 can deliver further improvements through a
facelift to the shop and increased revenue, will that qualify them to be strongly considered
as the successful applicant?

Answer 1
Council will be debating this matter later in the evening and will give consideration to the matters
raised.

Question 2

The cafe offers many yummy & healthy home-made delights like their famous rice paper
rolls & Asian rice dishes and wholemeal banana bread with mostly bananas as the
sweetener. If Operator 3 was not in the picture any more, will the next operator have as
diverse a menu which is so delicious at the same time, or will we have to get used to
regular things, unexciting things that every other cafes offer?

Answer 2
Council will be debating this matter later in the evening and will give consideration to the matters
raised.

Question 3

This cafe has gone from strength to strength in the numbers of patrons over the years,
especially in the summer time, compared to other cafes in other Aquatic Centres &
compared to other operators in this centre before them. With so many cafe owners
pulling the pin in this very difficult economic climate, & with so many pulling the pin in
seasonal businesses like this one, is it reasonable to put any one else in, other than the
current operator, & see the "rug pulled from under us"?

Answer 3
Council will be debating this matter later in the evening and will give consideration to the matters
raised.

The following questions were submitted verbally:

Cr Giorgia Johnson arrived to the meeting at 6.52pm.

Tony Green - PO Box 1639, Morley 6943

Question 1

Why is Cr Petersen-Pik minuted as leaving the meeting at 8.18pm and returning at 6.38pm
almost two hours before he left the meeting? If you do not possess a time machine, then
this surely must be atypo?

Answer 1
Cr Dan Bull, Mayor advised that this is a typographical error and the Chief Executive Officer will
ensure the minutes are amended.
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Question 2

Why, given your brand new, high fidelity audio system, and my reading out my address
aloud, and the address being types on my gquestion have you changed it from PO Box
1639 Morley WA 6943 to 49 Hudson Street, Bayswater?

Answer 2
Cr Dan Bull, Mayor advised that the Chief Executive Officer will look at this and rectify the
minutes.

Question 3

Who is responsible for proof reading of these minutes and is it one their Key performance
Indicators, and will these minutes be corrected during 5.1 this evening, because they are
obviously incorrect?

Answer 3
The Chief Executive Officer, Andrew Brien advised that he checks the minutes and will ensure
that the minutes are corrected.

Question 4

Has Council decided to make a submission to WALGA on the review of the Local
Government Act 19957? If so, will the details of this submission be made available to the
ratepayers?

Answer 4

Cr Dan Bull, Mayor advised that there is always the potential for the Council to make a
submission and he is encouraging members of the public to make a submission as well. His
personal concern with it coming to Council is that if a Council resolution is made, and a
Councillor wants to make a personal submission contrary to the Council.

Dominic Cuscuna - Maylands Park Shopping Centre - Shop 6, 238 Guildford Road,
Maylands

CR LORNA CLARKE DECLARED A FINANCIAL INTEREST

In accordance with section 5.60A of the Local Government Act 1995, Cr Lorna Clarke
declared a financial interest in this item as she is employed by the Police Minister and this
question is about community safety. At 6.57pm Cr Lorna Clarke withdrew from the
meeting.

Question 1

In respect to Councillor Elli Petersen-Pik's motion on tonight's agenda, can the City
please advise if ratepayers are still paying for a 24 hours security watch service, plus how
many security watch officers and vehicles are on patrol during the daylight hours and
after hours?

Question 2
Isn't true that the City's CCTV system has been regularly used by the City's officers and

the WA Police in respect to Anti-Social incidents aggressive harassment by homeless and
indigenous people in Maylands, plus related crime around the Guildford Road business
precinct, including at our shipping centre?
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Question 3

Can the City please arrange much more visibility for its Security Watch patrols and
Rangers in order to reduce the ongoing issue of homeless people continually harassing
visitors to Maylands and detracting customers to our shopping centre and Maylands
Town Centre in general?

Cr Brent Fleeton left the meeting at 6.58pm

Answer 1-3

Cr Dan Bull, Mayor advised that automatically linking crime to homelessness is not necessarily
an appropriate way forward. Homelessness is a complex social issue that needs to be tackled in
a number of ways.

Darren Beltman, Director Community Services further advised that yes the security services is
still operating on a three shift rotating roster, two officers are rostered for each shift in separate
vehicles and there are shift overlaps. The CCTV footage is only provided to police and other law
enforcement agencies. Upon request from the police for CCTV footage for an incident is provided
and yes there is a system in Maylands to provide footage to police. The City does target patrols
in particular areas, last summer when there was larger than average incidents in the Maylands
area we did do extra foot patrols and we do that whenever there is a spike in incidents in any
particular area.

Chris O'Brien - 22 Turon Street, Bayswater

Question 1

In regards to the alignment of islands with the bike boulevard on May Street, doesn’t allow
for long vehicles or trailers to navigate May Street, and kerbings are now scuffed. Is the
City looking at the design to try and improve this matter?

Cr Brent Fleeton and Cr Lorna Clarke returned to the meeting at 7.03pm

Question 2

Turon Street to Lawrence Street speed humps informing people that there is a bike
boulevard coming up, the underpass at Whatley Crescent exists into Mills Reserve taken
down to one lane with a large speed hump which holds up traffic.

Answer 1

Doug Pearson, Director Technical Services advised that the City is currently undertaking
consultation for stage 2 of the bike boulevard and is writing to people for their comments. We can
certainly look at the alignment for trailers in certain points. The intent of the speed humps is to
slow traffic, and it is a one way slow point. We are happy to take on feedback for the next stage.

Glen Fonseca - 37 lolanthe Street, Bassendean

In regards to 11.2 - Bayswater Café, | have sent my questions in via email about 6pm
tonight; however most of the questions have already been raised tonight. Do we get a
chance to discuss it later?

Cr Dan Bull, Mayor advised that that the item will be discussed and debated by Council later
tonight. 1 have read aloud all the questions and responses for the benefit of Council and

Councillors will take it into consideration.

Public Question Time was closed at 7.06pm.
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4, LEAVE OF ABSENCE
4.1 Leave of Absence (Previously Approved)
Councillor Date of Leave Approved by Council
Cr Elli Petersen-Pik 15 December 2017 to 15 January SCM: 31.10.2017
2018 inclusive
Cr Sally Palmer 11 December to 21 December SCM: 31.10.2017
2017 inclusive
Cr Brent Fleeton 21 December 2017 to 8 January | OCM 14.11.2017
2018
Cr Stephanie Gray 2 January to 25 January 2018 OCM 14.11.2017
5. CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES
51 Ordinary Meeting: 14 November 2017

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

The Minutes of the Ordinary Council Meeting held on Tuesday, 14 November 2017 which
have been distributed, are to be presented for confirmation as a true and correct record
subject to the changes raised during public question time (Correcting the time Cr
Petersen-Pik left the meeting and the address for Mr Tony Green).

CR BARRY McKENNA MOVED, CR STEPHANIE GRAY SECONDED

CARRIED: 10/0

5.2 Planning and Development Services Committee Meeting: 7 November 2017

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

That Council accepts the minutes of the Planning and Development Services Committee
meeting held on Tuesday, 7 November 2017 which have been distributed and
acknowledges the decisions made at the Committee Meeting in accordance with section
5.17 of the Local Government Act 1995, and the Committees delegation of powers and
duties.

CR BRENT FLEETON MOVED, CR LORNA CLARKE SECONDED

CARRIED: 10/0

5.3 Community, Technical, Finance and Corporate Services Committee Meeting:
8 November 2017

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

That Council accepts the minutes of the Community, Technical, Finance and Corporate
Services Committee meeting held on Wednesday, 8 November 2017 which have been
distributed, and acknowledges the decisions made at the Committee Meeting in
accordance with section 5.17 of the Local Government Act 1995, and the Committees
delegation of powers and duties.

CR STEPHANIE GRAY MOVED, CR CHRIS CORNISH, DEPUTY MAYOR SECONDED
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CARRIED: 10/0

6. DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST SUMMARY

6.1 Disclosures at Ordinary Council Meeting

In accordance with section 5.60A and 5.65 of the Local Government Act 1995 the following
disclosures of financial interest were made at the meeting:

Date Name Item No. Iltem Name
December 2017 Cr Lorna Clarke 14.1 Cr Elli Petersen-Pik - Community
Safety and Vulnerable People
December 2017 Cr Giorgia Johnson 9.1 Proposed Amendment No. 73 to

Town Planning Scheme No. 24 -
Rezoning of Residential R17.5/25
and Residential R20/25 Areas to
Residential R25

In accordance with section 5.61 of the Local Government Act 1995 the following disclosures of
indirect financial interest were made at the meeting:

Nil.

In accordance with section 5.60B and 5.65 of the Local Government Act 1995 the following
disclosures of proximity interest were made at the meeting:

Page 16



ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 12 DECEMBER 2017

Date Name Item No. Iltem Name

December 2017 Cr Giorgia Johnson 9.1 Proposed Amendment No. 73 to
Town Planning Scheme No. 24 -
Rezoning of Residential R17.5/25
and Residential R20/25 Areas to
Residential R25

December 2017 Cr Stephanie Gray 9.1 Proposed Amendment No. 73 to
Town Planning Scheme No. 24 -
Rezoning of Residential R17.5/25
and Residential R20/25 Areas to
Residential R25

December 2017 Cr Filomena Piffaretti 9.1 Proposed Amendment No. 73 to
Town Planning Scheme No. 24 -
Rezoning of Residential R17.5/25
and Residential R20/25 Areas to
Residential R25

December 2017 Cr Lorna Clarke 9.1 Proposed Amendment No. 73 to
Town Planning Scheme No. 24 -
Rezoning of Residential R17.5/25
and Residential R20/25 Areas to
Residential R25

December 2017 Cr Dan Bull, Mayor 9.1 Proposed Amendment No. 73 to
Town Planning Scheme No. 24 -
Rezoning of Residential R17.5/25
and Residential R20/25 Areas to
Residential R25

December 2017 Cr  Chris  Cornish, | 9.1 Proposed Amendment No. 73 to
Deputy Mayor Town Planning Scheme No. 24 -
Rezoning of Residential R17.5/25
and Residential R20/25 Areas to
Residential R25

December 2017 Cr Barry McKenna 9.1 Proposed Amendment No. 73 to
Town Planning Scheme No. 24 -
Rezoning of Residential R17.5/25
and Residential R20/25 Areas to
Residential R25

In accordance with authority delegated by the Minister for Local Government, the Deputy
Director General - Regulation has approved the City's application, under section 5.69(3)(a)
ofthe Local Government Act 1995 (theAct). This approval allows the disclosing Councillors:

Mayor Dan Bull;

Deputy Mayor Chris Cornish;
Councillor Sally Palmer;
Councillor Lorna Clarke;
Councillor Giorgia Johnson;
Councillor Filomena Piffaretti; and
Councillor Stephanie Gray

To fully participate in the discussion and decision making relating to the below mentioned
item at the City's Ordinary Council Meeting of 12 December 2017:
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9.1

Proposed Amendment No.73to Town Planning Scheme No.24 - Rezoning of
Residential R17.5/25 and Residential R20/25 Areas to Residential R25

Subject to the following conditions:

1.

The approval is only valid for the 12 December 2017 Ordinary Council Meeting when
agenda item 9.1 is considered;

All Councillors must declare the nature and extent of their interests at the
abovementioned meeting when the matter is considered, together with the approval
provided;

The CEO is to provide a copy of the Department's letter of approval to the
abovementioned Councillors;

The CEO is to ensure that the declarations, including the approval given and any
conditions imposed, are recorded in the minutes of the abovementioned meeting, when the
item is considered;

The CEO is to provide a copy of the confirmed minutes of the abovementioned meeting to
the Department, to allow the Department to verify compliance with the conditions of this
approval; and

The approval granted is based solely on the interests disclosed by the abovementioned
Councillors, made in accordance with the application. Should other interests be identified,
these interests will not be included in this approval and the financial interest provisions of
the Act will apply.

In accordance with regulation 11 of the Local Government (Rules of Conduct) Regulations 2007
the following disclosure of interests affecting impartiality (Elected Members) were made at the

meeting:
Date Name Item No. Item Name
December 2017 Cr Lorna Clarke 13.5 City of Bayswater Annual
Financial Statements
7. URGENT BUSINESS
Nil.
8. PETITIONS
Nil.

ORDER OF BUSINESS

Items were dealt with in the following order: Items 9.1, 11.1, 11.2, 11.3, 13.5 and 13.6.

All remaining items were carried by en bloc resolution.
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9. PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES COMMITTEE REPORTS

9.1 Proposed Amendment No. 73 to Town Planning Scheme No. 24 - Rezoning of
Residential R17.5/25 and Residential R20/25 Areas to Residential R25

Reporting Branch: Strategic Planning and Place Services
Responsible Directorate: Planning and Development Services
Refer: Item 9.1.5: PDSC 5.12.2017

Item 9.2: PDSC 21.03.2017

Item: 10.1: OCM 31.01.2017

Item: 10.7: OCM 2.08.2016

ltem: 13.23: OCM 25.11.2008

ltem: 12.4.4: OCM 27.06.2006

CR BARRY McKENNA DECLARED A PROXIMITY INTEREST

In accordance with section 5.60b of the Local Government Act 1995, Cr Barry McKenna
declared a proximity interest in this item as he has a dual coded property R17.5/25 as his
primary residence. At 7.15pm, Cr Barry McKenna withdrew from the meeting.

CR DAN BULL, MAYOR DECLARED A PROXIMITY INTEREST

In accordance with section 5.60b of the Local Government Act 1995, Cr Dan Bull, Mayor
declared a proximity interest in this item as his property of 64A Wyatt Road, Bayswater is
dual zoned R17.5/25. Cr Dan Bull, Mayor remained in the room during voting on this item
under approval from the Minister.

CR CHRIS CORNISH, DEPUTY MAYOR DECLARED A PROXIMITY INTEREST

In accordance with section 5.60b of the Local Government Act 1995, Cr Chris Cornish,
Deputy Mayor declared a proximity interest in this item as his wife owns property which is
dual coded at 130 The Strand, Bedford. Cr Chris Cornish, Deputy Mayor remained in the
room during voting on this item under approval from the Minister.

CR LORNA CLARKE DECLARED A PROXIMITY INTEREST

In accordance with section 5.60b of the Local Government Act 1995, Cr Lorna Clarke
declared a proximity interest in this item as her primary residence in Bayswater is affected
by the rezoning. Cr Lorna Clarke remained in the room during voting on this item under
approval from the Minister.

CR FILOMENA PIFFARETTI DECLARED A PROXIMITY INTEREST

In accordance with section 5.60b of the Local Government Act 1995, Cr Filomena Piffaretti
declared a proximity interest in this item as she owns one property in the City of
Bayswater zoned R17.5/25 with her husband. Cr Filomena Piffaretti remained in the room
during voting on this item under approval from the Minister.

CR STEPHANIE GRAY DECLARED A PROXIMITY INTEREST

In accordance with section 5.60b of the Local Government Act 1995, Cr Stephanie Gray
declared a proximity interest in this item as she is a co-owner of her residential property
in Nornada currently zoned Residential 17.5/25. Cr Stephanie Gray remained in the room
during voting on this item under approval from the Minister.
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CR GIORGIA JOHNSON DECLARED A PROXIMITY AND FINANCIAL INTEREST

In accordance with section 5.60b of the Local Government Act 1995, Cr Giorgia Johnson
declared a proximity interest in this item as she resides in an area affected by this
decision - 33 Leake Street, Bayswater. Cr Giorgia Johnson remained in the room during
voting on this item under approval from the Minister.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Application:

Council consideration is sought regarding final approval of Amendment No. 73 to the City's Town
Planning Scheme No. 24 (TPS 24) to rezone Residential R17.5/25 and Residential R20/25 areas
to Residential R25.

Key Issues:

Council at its Ordinary Meeting held 21 March 2017 resolved to initiate Amendment No. 73
for public advertising.

The proposed scheme amendment was advertised for a period of 42 days and no
submissions were received.
BACKGROUND

Council at its Planning and Development Services Committee Meeting held 21 March 2017
considered proposed Amendment No. 73 to TPS 24, and resolved in part as follows:

"That Council:

1. Initiates Amendment No. 73 to the City of Bayswater Town Planning Scheme No. 24 to
rezone the areas zoned Residential R17.5/25 and Residential R20/25 to Residential R25.

4. Upon Notice of Assessment from the Environmental Protection Authority being received
(and issues raised being complied with), causes the proposed scheme amendment
documentation to be advertised for public comment for 42 days by way of:

(&) Notification being published in the local newspaper/s;
(b) The relevant public authorities being notified in writing of the amendment details;

(c) All land owners directly affected by the amendment being notified in writing of the
amendment details;

(d) Information being placed on the City's engagement website; and

(e) Hard copies of the amendment documentation made available for inspection at the
City of Bayswater Civic Centre, City of Bayswater libraries, Max Tulley Office and
Information Centre and the RISE One Stop Shop.

A report seeking Council to recommend approval of Amendment No. 73 to TPS 24 was referred
to the Planning and Development Services Committee Meeting held 5 December 2017. The item
was not considered at the Committee meeting due to a loss of quorum.

CONSULTATION

Environmental Assessment and Heritage Referral

The scheme amendment documentation was referred to the then Environmental Protection
Authority, now the Department of Water and Environmental Regulation (DWER), for assessment.
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In correspondence dated 24 July 2017 the DWER advised the City that the proposed scheme
amendment would not require environmental assessment.

In correspondence dated 13 July 2017 the then State Heritage Office, now the Department of
Planning, Lands and Heritage, advised the City that it had no objection to the proposed scheme
amendment.

Public Advertising

Following notification from the DWER the City undertook public advertising of the proposed
amendment in accordance with point 4 of the Council resolution of 21 March 2017.

No submissions were received during the public advertisement period.

ANALYSIS

In light of no submission being received through the consultation process, it is considered that no
modification is required to the proposed scheme amendment and the amendment can be
approved as previously initiated by Council.

OPTIONS
The following options are available to Council:

OPTION BENEFIT RISK
1. | Adopt Amendment No. 73 to|- The proposed scheme |- Residents may feel
rezone Residential R17.5/25 amendment is excluded by virtue of the
and Residential R20/25 areas to consistent  with  the loss of opportunity to
Residential R25 with no City's adopted Local provide comment on
modification(s) and forward it to Housing Strategy. such matters.
the WAPC for final approval. . The proposed scheme
amendment would
reduce significant
Estimated Cost: advertising costs for the
$500 (for Gazettal City.
notification) - The proposed scheme
amendment will reduce
red tape.
2. | Adopt Amendment No. 73 to |- Dependent on the| - Dependent on the
rezone Residential R17.5/25 modification(s) modification(s)
and Residential R20/25 areas to proposed. proposed.
Residential R25 with

modification(s) and forward it to
the WAPC for final approval.

Estimated Cost:
$500 (for Gazettal
notification)

3. | Advise the WAPC that the City | - Residents continue to |- Advertising costs
does not wish to proceed with have the opportunity to associated with each
Amendment No. 73. provide comment on application.
such matters. - Unnecessary processes
Estimated Cost: to assess, advertise and
Nil determine development
and subdivision

applications.

Page 21




ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 12 DECEMBER 2017

CONCLUSION

In light of the above, it is recommended that Council proceed with Option 1 to adopt Amendment
No. 73 to rezone Residential R17.5/25 and Residential R20/25 areas to Residential R25 with no
modifications and forward it to the Western Australian Planning Commission (WAPC) for final
approval.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The City's 2017-2018 Budget contains funds for gazettal notification of scheme amendments.
The costs of the various options are detailed in the 'Options' section above.

STRATEGIC LINK

In accordance with the City of Bayswater Strategic Community Plan 2017-2027, the following
applies:

Theme: Our Built Environment

Aspiration: A quality and connected built environment.

Outcome B3: Quiality built environment.

COUNCIL POLICY AND LEGISLATIVE IMPLICATIONS

Part 5 of the Planning and Development (Local Planning Schemes) Regulations 2015 prescribes
the process for scheme amendments.

VOTING REQUIREMENTS

Simple Majority required.

ATTACHMENTS
Nil.

COUNCIL RESOLUTION
(OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION)
That Council:

1. Recommends approval of Amendment No. 73 to the City of Bayswater Town
Planning Scheme No. 24 to rezone Residential R17.5/25 and Residential R20/25 areas
to Residential R25.

2.  Authorises the affixing of the Common Seal to the scheme amendment document,
and the documentation be forwarded to the Western Australian Planning
Commission for approval.

CR STEPHANIE GRAY MOVED, CR ELLI PETERSEN-PIK SECONDED
CARRIED: 9/0
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Cr Barry McKenna returned to the meeting at 7.15pm

10. COMMUNITY, TECHNICAL, FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES
COMMITTEE REPORTS
Nil.
11. OFFICER REPORTS
111 Appointment of Members to Policy Committee.docx
Reporting Branch: Governance
Responsible Directorate: Executive Services
Refer: Item 10.8 SCM 31 10 2017, Item 11.2 OCM 12 09

2017, Item 11.1 OCM 25 06 2017

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Application:

For Council to consider the appointment of representatives to the Policy Review and
Development Committee (the Committee). Note this item was postponed from the Special
Council Meeting held on 31 October 2017.

Key Issues:

Council is required to appoint four Elected Members to the Policy Review and Development
Committee.

The Policy Review and Development Committee is required to meet at least five times per
annum, when suitable, at the City of Bayswater Civic Centre.

The fees associated with membership on the Policy Review and Development Committee,
are included as part of the annual Sitting Fees paid to Councillors.

BACKGROUND

At the Ordinary Council Meeting held on 25 June 2017 Council endorsed the CEO's
Organisational Assessment Report (the CEO's Report). One of the recommendations of the
CEO's Report was the establishment of the Committee.

At the Ordinary Council meeting held on 12 September 2017 Council endorsed the establishment
of the Committee, composed of four council members, the Mayor, the CEO and the Director of
Finance and Corporate Services.

Council adopted the following terms of reference for the Committee:
To review all existing City of Bayswater policies (excluding Planning Policies) within a two
year period, in line with the Local Government Election Cycle and facilitate the development

of new policies for the consideration by Council as required.

To make recommendations to Council on matters related to policy, policy review and policy
development.

To explore opportunities that promote policy development in all areas that are within the
Council's jurisdiction.
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To allow any draft policy developed and fully considered by another Committee of Council to
be referred directly to Council for consideration.

To provide City of Bayswater councillors with assistance and support to develop new policies.

The Committee is an advisory committee and has not been delegated any of Council's decision
making authority.

At the Special Council Meeting held on 31 October 2017 it was moved that the appointment of
members to the Committee be deferred pending further information being received regarding
proposed portfolios for Councillors.

However, at the Ordinary Council Meeting held on 14 November 2017 Council rejected the
motion that the CEO develop a policy on Councillor Portfolios and that two Councillors per
portfolio be appointed for a 12 month period.

CONSULTATION

No external consultation has taken place on this matter.

ANALYSIS
N/A

OPTIONS

The following options are available to Council:
e Support as recommended; or
e Support with amendments.

STRATEGIC LINK

In accordance with the City of Bayswater Strategic Community Plan 2017-2027, the following
applies:

Theme: Leadership and Governance
Aspiration: Open, accountable and responsive service
Outcome L1: Accountable and good governance

COUNCIL POLICY AND LEGISLATIVE IMPLICATIONS

Section 5.8 of the Local Government Act 1995 states:

"A Local Government may establish Committees of 3 or more persons to assist the Council and
to exercise the powers and discharge the duties of the Local Government that can be delegated
to Committee.

VOTING REQUIREMENTS
Absolute Majority Required.

ATTACHMENTS
Nil
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OFFICER'S RECOMMENDATION

That;
1.

In accordance with the provisions of the Local Government Act 1995 Council appoints the
following members to the Policy Review and Development Committee for the term 12
December 2017 to 12 October 2019:

(i) ;
(i) ;
(i) ;and
(iv)

The purpose of the Policy Review and Development Committee is to:

Review all existing City of Bayswater policies (excluding Planning Policies) within a
two year period, in line with the Local Government Election Cycle and facilitate the
development of new policies for the consideration by Council as required.

Make recommendations to Council on matters related to policy, policy review and
policy development.

Explore opportunities that promote policy development in all areas that are within the
Council's jurisdiction.

Allow any draft policy developed and fully considered by another Committee of
Council to be referred directly to Council for consideration.

Provide City of Bayswater Councillors with assistance and support to develop new
policies.

In accordance with Section 5.11A of the Local Government Act 1995, all Councillors who
are not Members of the Policy Review and Development Committee be appointed as
Deputy Members to that Committee for the term 12 December 2017 to 12 October 2019. If
a Member is unable to attend a meeting, the order of appointment of the Deputy at that
meeting will be based on:

(i)  Councillor of the same Ward as the Member of the Committee; and
(i)  Length of service.

4. The first Committee meeting is to be held in February 2018, in the week preceding the
Community Technical and Corporate Services Committee meeting.

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

That:
1.

In accordance with the provisions of the Local Government Act 1995 Council
appoints the following members to the Policy Review and Development Committee
for the term 12 December 2017 to 12 October 2019:

(i) Cr Dan Bull, Mayor;

(i)  Cr Catherine Ehrhardt;

(iii) Cr Brent Fleeton;

(iv) Cr Filomena Piffaretti;

(v) CrLornaClarke; and

(vi) Cr Elli Petersen-Pik.

The purpose of the Policy Review and Development Committee is to:
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Review all existing City of Bayswater policies (excluding Planning Policies)
within a two year period, in line with the Local Government Election Cycle and
facilitate the development of new policies for the consideration by Council as
required.

Make recommendations to Council on matters related to policy, policy review
and policy development.

Explore opportunities that promote policy development in all areas that are
within the Council's jurisdiction.

Allow any draft policy developed and fully considered by another Committee of
Council to be referred directly to Council for consideration.

Provide City of Bayswater Councillors with assistance and support to develop
new policies.

3. In accordance with Section 5.11A of the Local Government Act 1995, all Councillors
who are not Members of the Policy Review and Development Committee be
appointed as Deputy Members to that Committee for the term 12 December 2017 to
12 October 2019. If a Member is unable to attend a meeting, the order of appointment
of the Deputy at that meeting will be based on:

(i) Councillor of the same Ward as the Member of the Committee; and
(i) Length of service.

4.  The first Committee meeting is to be held in February 2018, in the week preceding
the Community Technical and Corporate Services Committee meeting.

CR CHRIS CORNISH, DEPUTY MAYOR MOVED, CR BRENT FLEETON SECONDED
CARRIED: 10/0
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11.2 Bayswater Waves Cafe - New Lease
Location: Bayswater Waves Aquatic Centre - Reserve 38313,
160 Broun Avenue, Morley
Owner: City of Bayswater
Reporting Branch: Strategic Planning and Place Services
Responsible Directorate: Planning and Development Services
Refer: Item 9.1: OCM 14.11.2017

Item 9.1.7: PDSCM 7.11.2017
Item 9.1.8: PDSCM 18.4.2017
Item 20.1.1: OCM 8.3.2016
Item 18.1: OCM 22.5.2007
Item 12.6.1: OCM 24.4.2007
Item 9.5: OCM 12.4.2007
Item 11.5.2: OCM 13.12.2005
Item 11.6.1: OCM 26.7.2005

Confidential Attachment - in accordance with Section 5.23(2)(e) of the Local Government
Act 1995 - information that has a commercial value to a person.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Application:

Council consideration is sought on the final approval of a proposed new lease for the café at
Bayswater Waves Aguatic Centre.

Key Issues:

Council at its Ordinary Meeting held 14 November 2017 accepted the offer from Operator 4
to lease the Café at Bayswater Waves, excluding the function room subject to a 14-day
public notice in a local newspaper.

The City received three submissions on the disposal (via lease) of the property during the
public notice period.

BACKGROUND

The current lease for the operation of the Bayswater Waves Café was approved by Council in
September 2000 for an initial five-year term. Subsequently, Council have approved the
assignment of the lease to new operators and the addition of two further five-year terms. The
original lease and all options to renew expired on 29 February 2016. The lessee is currently on
monthly holding over basis.

The café at 'Bayswater Waves, and the attached function room, are centrally located in the
facility, overlooking the indoor pools and have an area of approximately 390m?. The lease area is
highlighted on the plan below.
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Legend

O Leased Area

The original lease term and all options to renew expired early 2016 and the existing operator is
continuing on a monthly holding-over basis as permitted under the lease. Council considered the
lease at its Ordinary Meeting held 8 March 2016 and resolved:
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"That Council:

1.  Approves the City to review the principles of the long-term management and the options of
procuring those services in relation to the Bayswater Waves café and the City to present a
report regarding this matter to a Councillor workshop.

2.  Continues the monthly holding-over tenancy with Dau Tran and Thuy Tran for the café at
Bayswater Waves Aquatic Centre, Reserve 38313, 160 Broun Avenue, Embleton on the
same terms and conditions as the existing lease until the management review and
procurement of a new lease has been completed."

The matter was reported to the Councillor Workshop held 14 March 2017 and the café
management principles and options were presented to Councillors.

Council at the Planning and Development Services Committee meeting held 18 April 2017,
considered management principles and options for a new lease, and resolved:

"That:

1. Council approves the process of disposition of the café, and the function room as a non-
mandatory option, at Bayswater Waves Aquatic Centre - Reserve 38313, 160 Broun
Avenue, Morley, by private treaty following marketing by an appointed real estate agent, in
accordance with section 3.58 of the Local Government Act 1995.

2. The City to appoint a suitably qualified and experienced real estate agent to market the
lease of the café at Bayswater Waves Aquatic Centre - Reserve 38313, 160 Broun Avenue,
Morley and manage the negotiation process.

3. The City officers prepare a report to Council for consideration of all final offers received for
the lease of the café, and the function room as a non-mandatory option, at Bayswater
Waves Aquatic Centre - Reserve 38313, 160 Broun Avenue, Morley."

Following Council's resolution, the City appointed Colliers International to market the new lease,
and manage and negotiate with potential new lessees.

Council at the Planning and Development Services Committee meeting held 7 November 2017,
considered a proposed new lease for the café at Bayswater Waves and the option to separately
lease the function room for another use, and resolved:

"That the item be deferred to the next Ordinary Council meeting."

Council at its Ordinary Meeting held 14 November 2017, considered a proposed new lease for
the café at Bayswater Waves and the option to separately lease the function room for another
use, and resolved:

"That Council:

1. Accepts the lease offer from Operator 4 contained in Confidential Attachment 4, excluding
the function room, subject to notice of the intention to lease the Café at Bayswater Waves
Aquatic Centre - Reserve 38313, 160 Broun Avenue, Morley by private treaty being given,
in accordance with section 3.58 of the Local Government Act 1995, and a further report
be referred to Council to consider any submissions received during the public notice
period.

CONSULTATION

Following acceptance of the lease offer from Operator 4 by Council, a statutory public notice in
relation to disposal (via lease) of the property was published in the Eastern Reporter newspaper,
inviting comment for a 14 day period.
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Three submissions were received during the public notice period, two of which were from
Operator 3. The key matters raised in the submissions are addressed below.

ANALYSIS

Submission One

The first submission received was from a member of the public recommending the City to
continue leasing the café to the current operator, highlighting their customer service and
interaction skills, the quality of their food and beverage and the happy and pleasant environment
in which they create.

Submissions Two and Three

Submissions two and three were made by Operator 3 (Confidential Attachment 1), who raised
issues with the expression of interest process and proposed to modify some of the terms of their
original lease offer.

Expression of Interest Process

Operator 3 raised concerns in their submission that they were not properly informed by the City's
appointed real estate agent about the lease process, what information should be presented in
their submission and what conditions or requirements Council would find favourable.

The City officers are satisfied that the City's appointed real estate agent provided Operator 3 with
all the relevant information and full disclosure of the process in which to prepare and present an
offer to the City.

The real estate agent has informed the City that Operator 3 was advised that they are unable to
disclose any information regarding any of the other potential operators' offer information or
whether their offer was competitive in regards to the other offers received.

Lease Term

Operator 3 has now proposed to remove the '5 years + 5 years lease' term option from their
proposal. The following table shows the revised lease term option in comparison with the subject
lease offer from Operator 4.

Name Operator 3 Operator 4
Term 5 Years 5 Years
Ongma} Uiz 5 Years + 5 Years -
Option
Revised Term
Option - Unchanged

Operator 3 has proposed to remove the '5 years + 5 years' term option due to a perception that
Council will not find this term favourable as it may prevent the City from seeking new operators
for 15 years. Removing this term is consistent with Operator 4's proposal, which does not
propose a lease term option.
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Base Rent

Operator 3 has now proposed to increase the base rent from $26,000 + GST per annum to
$30,000 + GST per annum. The following table shows the revised base rent amount in
comparison with the subject lease offer from Operator 4.

Name Operator 3 Operator 4
Oflglggkfase $26,000 + GST per annum $29,000 + GST per annum
ReV|sRi?‘Fase $30,000 + GST per annum Unchanged

Operator 3 has proposed to increase the base rent to $30,000 + GST per annum, which is
$1,000 more than the accepted lease offer from Operator 4.

Modified Lease Terms

The table below shows the adjusted proposed lease terms of Operator 3 in comparison to the
proposed terms of Operator 4.

Name Operator 3 Operator 4
Term 5 Years 5 Years
Option - -
Base Rent $30,000 + GST per annum $29,000 + GST per annum
Rent Reviews Fixed 5% annual increase Fixed 5% annual increase
Percentage Rent * 10% 10%
Rent Free Nil Nil
Summer
Weekdays: 7am-7:30pm
Proposed Hours Weekends: 7:30am - 7pm 6am - 6om seven davs a week
of Operation Winter P Y
Weekdays: 8am-6:30pm
Weekends: 8am - 6:30pm
Commitment to provide $25,000 to
Any Further Notes N/A $30,000 to upgrade the appearance
and amenity of the café.

Conclusion

While Operator 3 has proposed to increase the base rent by $1,000 per annum more than the
subject lease offer from Operator 4, it is still considered that Operator 4 has made the most
acceptable offer as they propose a competitive base rent amount, they have relevant industry
experience, they have committed to provide $25,000 to $30,000 to upgrade the appearance and
amenity of the café and they have a menu that provides a wide range of options including some
healthy options at an affordable price point that will meet the community's expectations.

If Council decides not to grant final approval to Operator 4's lease offer and instead decides to
accept Operator 3's modified lease offer or any other lease offer, this intention would need to be
readvertised as per Section 3.58 of the Local Government Act 1995.
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OPTIONS

The following options are available to Council in relation to the offers received:

OPTION

BENEFIT

RISK

Grant final approval to the lease
of the cafe to Operator 4.

Estimated Cost:
Nil

Disposal could raise
revenue in line with the
City's Long Term
Financial Plan.
Transparent process for
the lease.

Commitment to provide
$25,000 to $30,000 to
upgrade the appearance
and amenity of the café.

Nil.

Accept another offer received
and advertise the intention to
dispose of the cafe via private
treaty.

Estimated Cost:
$400 for notice of intention to
lease in a local newspaper.

Disposal could raise
revenue in line with the
City's Long Term
Financial Plan.
Transparent process for
the lease.

Other operators may not
be interested in the
lease anymore.

It will further delay
determining the future of
the lease of the café due
to the requirement to
readvertise the lease
offer.

Do not grant final approval to the
lease of the cafe to Operator 4
and recommence the process.

Estimated Cost:
Nil

The City may receive a
higher offer to lease the
Bayswater Waves Café.

It is unlikely the City will
receive further
applications to operate
the lease.

It will further delay a new
operator commencing at
the café.

A new operator may not
commence until after the
peak summer season,
making it difficult for
them to grow the
business over the winter
months.

Theme:

CONCLUSION

In light of the above, it is recommended that Council grants final approval to the lease of the café
at Bayswater Waves Aquatic Centre to Operator 4 (Option 1).

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Disposal (via lease) would provide income as outlined in the City's Long Term Financial Plan.

STRATEGIC LINK

In accordance with the City of Bayswater Strategic Community Plan 2017-2027, the following
applies:

The Local Economy
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Aspiration: Our vibrant business hubs provide opportunities for business growth,
community activity, learning and employment opportunities.

Outcome E3: Growth of local and new business.

COUNCIL POLICY AND LEGISLATIVE IMPLICATIONS

Section 3.58 of the Local Government Act 1995 applies to the disposal (via lease).

VOTING REQUIREMENTS
Simple Majority required.

ATTACHMENTS

1.  Submissions Two and Three from Operator 3 - (Confidential)
2. Operator 4's Offer - (Confidential)

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

(OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION)

That Council grants final approval to the lease of the café at Bayswater Waves Aquatic
Centre - Reserve 38313, 160 Broun Avenue, Morley to Operator 4 as contained in their
lease offer in Confidential Attachment 2.

CR DAN BULL, MAYOR MOVED, CR STEPHANIE GRAY SECONDED

CARRIED: 8/2

For: Cr Bull, Mayor, Cr Cornish, Deputy Mayor, Cr Gray, Cr Ehrhardt, Cr McKenna,
Cr Clarke, Cr Johnson and Cr Petersen-Pik
Against: Cr Fleeton and Cr Piffaretti
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11.3 Mertome Village - Business Plan
Location: 30 Winifred Road, Bayswater
Owner: City of Bayswater
Responsible Directorate: Finance and Corporate Services
Refer: Item 13.9 OCM 06.12.2016

Item 13.8 OCM 23.08.2016
Item 13.6 OCM 02.08.2016
Item 11.2 OCM 28.03.2017

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Application:

For Council to adopt the Business Plan for the proposed disposal (via a long-term lease
arrangement) of Lot 16 (30) Winifred Road, Bayswater.

Key Issues:

This report seeks Council's adoption of the Business Plan for the proposed disposal (via a long-
term lease arrangement) of Lot 16 (30) Winifred Road, Bayswater.

BACKGROUND
Council resolved at its meeting of 2 August 2016 to, inter alia, approve option 4a:

"transfer ownership of the assets to a professional aged care operator [(through a long-term
lease {a})]".

Essentially, this means the City of Bayswater will be pursuing a long-term lease arrangement for
the land and selling the business and any assets held by the City associated with Mertome
Village.

As part of this resolution, Council approved the objectives for redevelopment of Mertome Village
and selection criteria for evaluation of any submissions received.

Following this resolution, a number of tasks have been undertaken and comprise:

Engagement of the following service providers: commercial advisory; legal advisory and
probity auditor services. These services are required to facilitate a successful outcome and
manage the various complexities of the proposed transaction;

Develop and advertise the Business Plan for the disposal of Lot 16, 30 Winifred Road,
Bayswater. The Business Plan was advertised on 13 December (‘Eastern Suburbs
Reporter') and 14 December ('The West Australian’) and also on the City's website; it was
also available for inspection at, or obtainable from, the Customer Services Centres at the
City's Administration Centre; Morley Galleria; and The RISE; as well as all of the City's
libraries. Submissions closed 25 January 2017; no submissions were received in response
to this advertised Business Plan;

Develop and provide updates to keep the community informed on this project;

Clarification of arrangements with respect to Department of Housing units located on Lot 16
and forming part of Mertome Gardens;

Preparation and advertising of Expressions of Interest documentation including an
Information Memorandum. The Information Memorandum contained details about the
Proposal, the transaction process and any specific requirements that the City of Bayswater
may impose on a sale which may not be otherwise expected. Its purpose was to provide
potential purchasers with enough information to enable them to determine:
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o] whether they are interested in proceeding further with any potential acquisition of the
Business;

o] whether they are interested in entering into a long-term lease with Council for the
relevant land; and

o] if they are, an indicative price they would be willing to pay for the Business and lease
of the Facility.

At its meeting on 28 March 2017, Council approved and shortlisted the proposal received
from Hall & Prior and Heathley to proceed as the preferred proponent to the tender/due
diligence stage. It was also resolved that Council proceeds to the next stage of the
process which comprises (amongst other things) negotiating and signing a partly binding
and partly non-binding Heads of Agreement with Hall & Prior and Heathley and facilitates
Hall & Prior and Heathley doing further due diligence.

On 20 October 2017, the City of Bayswater entered into a Heads of Agreement (HOA) with
Fresh Fields Aged Care Pty Ltd and Heathley Asset Management Limited (Buyer). Under
the HOA, if the Buyer wishes to proceed with a long-term lease of Lot 16, it must submit to
the City a further non-binding proposal setting out the proposed commercial terms of the
disposal of Lot 16 by long-term lease and disposal of the business assets associated with
Mertome Village (Further Proposal).

At its meeting on 14 November 2017, Council authorised Juniper to not make the vacant
units on the Railway Reserve land forming part of Mertome Gardens available to
prospective residents pending a final decision on the Mertome redevelopment project.

CONSULTATION

As part of maintaining open communication, a number of meetings have been held with residents
of the village over the past two years culminating in Council's resolution of 2 August 2016 to
essentially pursue a long-term lease arrangement for the land and sell the business and assets
situated on Lot 16, 30 Winifred Road, Bayswater held by the City of Bayswater.

Since this resolution, Council, at its meeting of 23 August 2016, endorsed the Community
Engagement Plan for the Redevelopment of Mertome Village project. Information sheets have
been sent to residents and 'drop in' sessions also held at the Mertome Hall as part of the
commitment given to keeping residents informed. The Mertome project has also featured in a
number of corporate publications and media articles.

ANALYSIS
Business Plan

As noted in the background section of this report, the City has advertised the Business Plan for
the proposed disposal of Lot 16 (30) Winifred Road, Bayswater by way of a long-term lease
pursuant to section 3.59(4)(a)(iii) of the Local Government Act 1995 (the Act).

The submission period closed on 25 January 2017. No submissions were received by the City in
response to advertising. For the sake of completeness, and to ensure compliance with the Act, it
is recommended that Council formally passes a resolution resolving to adopt the Business Plan
before the Buyer submits a Further Proposal (if any) to the City for its consideration.

If the City and the Buyer are able to reach a mutually-acceptable position in relation to the
Further Proposal (Final Proposal), the HOA contemplates that the City must then proceed to
advertise the Final Proposal by local public notice in accordance with the requirements of
s.3.58(4) of the Act before it makes a final decision to enter into the final lease of Lot 16 with the
Buyer.

Page 35



ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 12 DECEMBER 2017

Other

The Heads of Agreement requires that the Buyer provides a "Further Proposal” no later than 20
December 2017. An automatic extension of 4 weeks from 20 December then applies to provide
opportunity for the parties to reach a mutually-acceptable position in relation to the Further
Proposal. Having regard to the time of year and to ensure that there is adequate opportunity for
the parties to do this, the City has offered to increase the Second Exclusivity Period to 8 weeks.

OPTIONS

The following options are available to Council:

OPTION BENEFIT RISK

1. | That Council notes that no Adoption of the Business | - There is no risk as
submissions were received during Plan satisfies the City's adoption of the Business
the state-wide public notice period compliance requirements Plan does not commit the
(which closed 25 January 2017) under the Local City to entering into a
and adopts the Business Plan Government Act 1995 and binding long-term lease
without modification. allows the City to progress with the Buyer.
negotiations  with  the
Buyer if it receives a
Further Proposal from the
Buyer.

2. | That Council notes that no Adoption of the Business
submissions were received during Plan (with minor transaction and the status
the state-wide public notice period modifications) satisfies the of negotiations with the
of the Business Plan and adopts City's compliance Buyer, there is no
the Business Plan with minor requirements under the advantage to the City in
modifications. Local Government Act considering or proposing
1995 and allows the City minor amendments to the

Given the stage of the

to progress negotiations
with the Buyer if it receives
a Further Proposal from

Business Plan at this time.
Doing so may unsettle the
Buyer.

the Buyer.

CONCLUSION

Option 1 is recommended as this will enable the City to comply with its obligations under the
Local Government Act 1995 with respect to the Mertome Village transaction process and
facilitate progression of next steps.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

An allocation of $200,000 has been made in the 2017-18 budget for redevelopment of Mertome
Village. This allocation provides for legal advisory, commercial advisory and ancillary costs of
this project.

STRATEGIC LINK

In accordance with the City of Bayswater Strategic Community Plan 2017-2027, the following
applies:

Theme: Our Community.
Aspiration: An active and engaged community.
Outcome C1.: A strong sense of community through the provision of quality

services and facilities.
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COUNCIL POLICY AND LEGISLATIVE IMPLICATIONS

Section 17 of the Retirement Villages Act 1992 states that a resident has a right to occupy his/her
residential premises until:

the resident dies; or

the residence contract is terminated by the resident in accordance with the residence
contract or under the Retirement Villages Act 1992; or

the resident abandons the residential premises; or
the residence contract is terminated by the State Administrative Tribunal (SAT); or

the holder of the mortgage, charge or other encumbrance that was in existence before the
commencement of this section becomes entitled to vacant possession of the premises in
pursuance of rights conferred by the mortgage, charge or other encumbrance.

So, while a resident has a contract (which they all do), they cannot be moved out of
Mertome Village without their consent, and any redevelopment needs to happen in consultation
with residents.

Notwithstanding this, the Railway Reserve land (compromising Lots 402, 403, 404, 405 and 406
on Plan 3404 forming part of Mertome Gardens) has no registered memorial; this adds a further
layer of complexity to be resolved as part of this project.

The City has already undertaken a section 3.59 business plan process in relation to this
transaction, however section 3.58 of the Act requires, inter alia, the City to prepare and advertise
the proposed lease and obtain a market valuation before agreeing to dispose of Lot 16 by long-
term lease. This will be attended to in due course should the transaction progress to that stage.
VOTING REQUIREMENTS

ABSOLUTE MAJORITY REQUIRED.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Business Plan

COUNCIL RESOLUTION
(OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION)
That Council:

1. Notes that no submissions were received during the public notice period (which
closed 25 January 2017).

2. Adopts the Business Plan for the proposed disposal (via a long-term lease
arrangement) of Lot 16 (30) Winifred Road, Bayswater and resolves to proceed with
the transactions proposed by the Business Plan.

CR BRENT FLEETON MOVED, CR CATHERINE EHRHARDT SECONDED
CARRIED: 10/0 BY ABSOLUTE MAJORITY VOTE
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Attachment 1

BUSINESS PLAN

MAJOR LAND TRANSACTION

The proposed disposal (via a Long-Term Lease arrangement)
of
Lot 16 (30) Winifred Road, Bayswater

Submissions are invited on the proposal and should be addressed to:

City of Bayswater
PO Box 467
MORLEY WA 6943

To be received by: 25 January 2017

T TEE ] N N ..
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1. Introduction

This Business Plan has been prepared to comply with the provisions of the Local
Government Act 1995 (the Act) with respect to 30 Winifred Road, Bayswater, being
Lot 16 on Diagram 75448, the land in Certificate of Title Volume 1846/Folio 421
(Land). This is the site of the Mertome Village that is owned in freehold by the City of
Bayswater.

Mertome Village is an Independent Living Unit (ILU) site in Bayswater which operates
in accordance with the Retirement Villages Act 1992 and subordinate legislation.
Mertome Village is currently managed by Uniting Church Homes (Juniper) under a
Management Agreement between the City of Bayswater and Juniper.

The City of Bayswater is proposing fo sell its inferest in the business and assets
associated with Mertome Village (Business) and grant a Long-Term Lease to the
purchaser of the Business in relation to the Land (Long-Term Lease), together referred
to as the “Proposed Transaction”.

At its meeting of 2 August 2016 Council supported the disposal of the Land (via a
Long-Term Lease arrangement), and has prepared this Business Plan to be exhibited
for public comment.

The major land transaction is the grant of a 99-year Long-Term Lease under which the
City of Bayswater will dispose of a leasehold interest in the Land to the purchaser of
the Business. The sale of Business aspects are included in this Business Plan for
context only. There will be a formal consultation period with respect to this Business
Plan for six weeks, Please send any submissions by email to
mail@bayswater.wa.gov.au or by mail to:

City of Bayswater
PO BOX 467
MORLEY WA 6943

2. Background

At the time of construction, Mertome Village was the first of its kind to be built by a
local government, with the objective of allowing local residents to age within their
community. The complex is now over 40 years old and much of the original
accommaodation requires significant upgrading or redevelopment to position Mertome
Village strongly into the future as a relevant and contemporary retirement housing
option for future generations.

There have been significant changes in the aged care and retirement living industries
during the past few years, with the implementation of the "Living Longer, Living Better"
(LLLB) reforms in aged care, and the changes to the Retirement Villages Act 1992. It
is anticipated there will be more changes as aged care and seniors’ services become
more consumer-directed and competition emerges.

Business Plan - Major Land Transaction -
The proposed disposal (Long-Term Lease) of Lot 16 (30) Winifred Road, Bayswater Page 1
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Given the change in the operating environment and the magnitude of the proposed
investment in Mertome, the City's advisors raised concern with the capability and
capacity of the City to manage the development process and ongoing aged care and
retirement living operations. Accordingly, and further to Council's resolution at its
meeting of 27 October 2014, two options were shortlisted for further consideration:

Option 3: Specialist Operator engaged to manage redevelopment program; and
Option 4:  Transfer ownership of the assets to a professional aged care operator
(through either a lease or sale arrangement).

After extensive consultation with the residents of Mertome Village and analysis of
options available, Council resolved at its meeting on 2 August 2016 to:

"Transfer ownership of the assels to a professional aged care operator [(through
a Long-Term Lease (a)] for the redevelopment of Merfome Village.”

The Long-Term Lease will include terms and conditions agreed between the City and
the buyer including those listed below. The list of terms and conditions below is
indicative only and is not an exhaustive list of the proposed terms and conditions of the
Long-Term Lease.

1.  Lessor: City of Bayswater
Lessee: Buyer of Business
Guarantor: as required by the City
Premises: the whole of the Land

U

Commencement Date: Date of settlement of the contract of sale and purchase of
the Business.

-

Term: 99 years

7. Permitted Use: Provision of care, accommodation and residential facilities for
aged persons in the form of a retirement village and/or residential aged care
facility and matters relating to the provision of such care, accommodation and
residential facilities.

8. Naming Rights
9. Amount payable by the Lessee for grant of the Lease

10. The Lessee must pay all rates, taxes, levies, charges and outgoings that are
attributable to the Premises as if the Lessee was the owner of the Premises

11. Insurance obligations of the Lessee

12. Indemnity and release in favour of the City

13. Reservations to the City

14.  Assignment and Subletting provisions

15. Lessee must comply with all Laws

16. Lessee must repair, maintain and undertake all structural work on the Premises
17. Development risk

18. Works and development obligations

19. No fetter of the City's discretion in the lawful exercise of any of its functions and
powers as a local government

20. Mo warranties by the City

Business Plan - Major Land Transaction -
The proposed disposal (Long-Term Lease) of Lot 16 (30) Winifred Road, Bayswater Page 2
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21. Make good obligations by the Lessee

22. Damage and destruction clause

23. Default and termination clause

24, GS5T clause

25. Registration of the Lease

26. Other special conditions as required by the City.

3. Local Government Act 1995 (the Act) requirements

This Business Plan has been prepared to comply with the provisions of section 3.59 of
the Act and the Local Government (Functions and General) Regulations 1996 on the
basis that the City is proposing to enter into a major land transaction where the total
value of the consideration under the Proposed Transaction may be more than the
prescribed amount (i.e. more than $10 million).

In accordance with Council's resolution of 6 December 2016, this Business Plan will be
advertised in The West Australian newspaper inviting public submissions on the
proposal detailed in the Business Plan for a period of six weeks. Additionally, a public
notice will be included in the Easfern Reporter Community newspaper. For the
duration of the consultation period, the Business Plan will be available online at
www.bayswater.wa.qov.au and may be inspected at, or obtained from, the Customer
Services Centres at the City's Administration Centre, Morley, Morley Galleria; and The
RISE and all of the City's Libraries.

In addition to the minimum legislative requirements for community consultation, the
City has already engaged in discussions with the local community on this important
Proposed Transaction. Following the final day for submissions, Council will consider
any submissions made during the advertising period and may resolve to proceed with
the Proposed Transaction. [f Council decides to proceed with the Proposed
Transaction the City will comply with the further obligations of the Act as required. In
the event that Council makes significant changes to the Proposed Transaction, a
further six week advertising period will take place. The notice to be used for this
proposal is provided as Attachment 1,

Submissions on this Business Plan are to be forwarded to the City of Bayswater,
PO Box 467, MORLEY WA 6943.

Further enquiries should be directed to the Acting Chief Executive Officer, Carissa
Bywater, or by email to carissa.bywater@bayswater.wa.gov.au.

Business Plan - Major Land Transaction -
The proposed disposal (Long-Term Lease) of Lot 16 (30) Winifred Road, Bayswater Page 3
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4. Expected effect on the provision of facilities and services by
the local government

The disposal by way of the sale of the Business and the Long-Term Lease
arrangement will have an effect on the provision by the City of Bayswater, of existing
facilities and services associated with Mertome Village. Juniper currently manages
Mertome Village on behalf of the City. It is intended that the City will terminate the
Management Agreement with Juniper so that the buyer, as owner of the Business and
lessee of the Land, can assume management of Mertome Village. The result of the
Proposed Transaction will be that the City will not be operating and maintaining the
Mertome Village, and it is expected that the buyer will redevelop Mertome Village (as
the buyer sees fit) while being obliged to continue to operate Mertome Village in
accordance with the Retirement Villages Act 1992 (WA) and subordinate legislation.
The redevelopment of Mertome Village may facilitate a high-quality outcome that
should benefit residents of Mertome Village through more professional aged care and
retirement living expertise without the associated financial exposure to the City and the
broader community.

5. Expected effect on other persons providing facilities and
services in the district

Information from the 2011 Census (ABS) details the City of Bayswater's population as

follows:
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Council has recognised the need to redevelop Mertome Village; to enable sustainable
redevelopment the disposition of freehold land (via a Long-Term Lease arrangement)
is intended.

Business Plan - Major Land Transaction -
The proposed disposal (Long-Term Leasa) of Lot 16 (30) Winifred Road, Bayswater Page 4

Page 43



ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 12 DECEMBER 2017

Developers of aged persons housing will be advantaged by the current use and
preservation of the Land for retirement living; also having a suitable zoning and density
code. Developers will be provided an opportunity to enhance facilities and services
available to the ageing population and will contribute to the connectivity of the existing
services and facilities provided within the City.

The City leases the building on the Land known as Tranby Hostel to Juniper to operate
a Residential Care Facility. The lease provides for:

a.  an original term of two years from 1 July 2013 to 31 May 2015; and
b.  a further term of two years from 1 June 2015 to 31 May 2017.

Further discussion with Juniper is required with respect to arrangements at the expiry
of this current lease.

6. Expected financial effect on the local government

Valuation information dated 11 August 2016 estimated that a lessee may pay 25% of
the gross market estimate for a 99-year lease; a shorter lease term may result in a
reduced return.

The disposal by way of the sale of the Business and the Long-Term Lease
arrangement is expected to provide a positive financial return. The expected financial
return will be determined through the tender process with the final agreement to be
approved by Council. The resident liability of $4,977,588 (2014-15 refundable
contributions) would be acquired by the lessee as part of this arrangement and the
cash price paid to the City would be reduced by this same amount.

The value of the leased site would be influenced by a number of variables, including:
. prevailing property market conditions and competitive influences;

. the intended mix, density and format of the development;

. any other restrictions or requirements imposed by the lessor; and

. the probability that the tenure might be extended and renegotiated before the
conclusion of the original term.

Consideration needs to be given to the related real estate agent fees and settlement
costs for the lease of the Land.

Corporate and legal advisory services will be in the order of $200,000.

Any net financial benefits provided by the disposal (via a Long-Term Lease
arrangement) will assist in funding the due diligence and ancillary requirements
necessary to facilitate the Proposed Transaction,

Business Plan - Major Land Transaction -
The proposed disposal (Long-Term Lease) of Lot 16 (30) Winifred Road, Bayswater Page 5
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Any financial returns in excess of these costs may be used for other community
projects as determined by Council as part of the final transaction process
requirements. Notwithstanding this, the operating costs for the City's Residential Care
Facilities and Retirement Villages are maintained separate and distinct from the City of
Bayswater's Municipal Fund and general operations. Generally, the Independent
Living Unit {ILU) fund covers the operating deficit of the Mertome Village which, for the
year ended 30 June 2016, was $111,654. Copies of the financial statements for the
City's Aged Persons accounts are available from the City's corporate website or upon
reguest.

7. Expected effect on matters referred to in the local
government's plan prepared under section 5.56

Section 5.56 of the Act requires that a local government plan for the future. As part of
complying with this section, the City of Bayswater has developed a Strategic
Community Plan 2016-26. This plan encompasses values and principles that address
the desires of the Bayswater community, both currently and for the future. The
redevelopment of Mertome Village is featured as a component of the strategy to
"provide local accommodation facilities which allow ageing in place" (B5.1).

In addition, Council adopted a Community Engagement and Communications Plan for
the redevelopment of Mertome Village at its Ordinary Meeting on 2 August 2016. The
intent of this Plan is to keep stakeholders informed and provide the public with
balanced and objective information to assist them in understanding the problems,
alternatives, opportunities and solutions.

8. The ability of the local government to manage the undertaking
or the performance of the transaction

The City of Bayswater ordinarily administers large-scale financial undertakings in its
day-to-day business as a Local Government entity, with the assistance of suitably-
qualified professionals and specialist advisors as required.

The City has the capability and capacity to implement the Proposed Transaction and
has engaged Ansell Strategic to provide the City with corporate advisory services and
Jackson McDonald to provide legal advisory services.

Development of the site will be subject to normal planning and building approval
processes administered by the City's Planning Directorate. The management of this
disposal is within the resources and capacity of the City of Bayswater.

Business Plan - Major Land Transaction -
The proposed disposal (Long-Term Lease) of Lot 16 (30) Winifred Road, Bayswater Page 6
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ment 1:

The following advertisement was placed in:

* ‘Eastern Suburbs Reporter’' on 13 December 2016; and
« 'The West Australian' on 14 December 2018.

|H| i"‘"'_';
‘ _H I

Proposed Land Transaction

Lot 16, 30 Winifred Road, Bayswater

(Mertome Village)

The City of Bayswater currently has freehold ownership of Lot 16, 30 Winifred Road,
Bayswater, and is proposing to dispose of it by entering into a Long-Term Lease
arrangement with a suitably-qualifed operator for the redevelopment of Mertome Village
which is situated on this land.

This Business Plan has been prepared in accordance with Council's resolution of 2 August
2016. A copy of this Business Plan may be inspected at, or obtained from, the Customer
Services Centres at the City's Administration Centre, Morley, Morley Galleria; and The RISE;
all of the City's libraries and the City's website: www.bayswater.wa.gov.au

Comments must be made in writing to:

City of Bayswater
PO Box 467
MORLEY WA 6943

Or by email to mail@bayswater.wa.gov.au

For further information, contact the undersigned on (08) 9272 0620.
Submissions close 25 January 2017,

Carissa Bywater
Acting Chief Executive Officer

Business Plan - Major Land Transaction -
The proposed disposal (Long-Term Lease) of Lot 16 (30) Winifred Road, Bayswater Page 7

Page 46



ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 12 DECEMBER 2017

13. MANAGEMENT/ADVISORY COMMITTEES
13.5 City of Bayswater Annual Financial Statements
Reporting Branch: Financial Services

Responsible Directorate: Finance and Corporate Services

CR LORNA CLARKE DECLARED AN IMPARTIAL INTEREST

In accordance with regulation 11 of the Local Government (Rules of Conduct)
Regulations 2007, Cr Lorna Clarke declared an impartial interest in this item as she is a
social member of the Baysie Bowls Club. Cr Lorna Clarke remained in the room during
voting on this item.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Application:

For the Audit and Risk Management Committee to endorse to Council the General Purpose
Financial Statements and to receive the Audit Completion Reports for the period ended
30 June 2017.

Key Issues:

This report presents the General Purpose Financial Statements for the period ended
30 June 2017 and the Independent Auditor's Report in respect of those financial
statements.

The annual financial statements comprise the consolidated City of Bayswater General
Purpose Financial Statements and City of Bayswater Aged Persons Homes General
Purpose Financial Statements.

BACKGROUND

The Local Government Act 1995 (the Act) requires the City to prepare an annual report for each
financial year. Section 5.54 of the Act requires that the annual report (which includes the
financial report for the year) be accepted by the local government no later than 31 December for
the previous financial year.

The Council is required to accept the full annual financial statements as per section 6.4(2) of the
Act.

The City of Bayswater (Council) includes the City of Bayswater Aged Persons Homes. Due to
legislative requirements a separate financial report is required for this entity.

The Independent Auditor's Report has been received from the City's auditors for the City of
Bayswater (Consolidated) (Attachment 1).

CONSULTATION

Grant Thornton, the City's external auditors, have been invited to attend the Audit and Risk
Management Committee meeting to discuss the City of Bayswater's Independent Auditor's
Report.

ANALYSIS

The Annual Financial Statements show a positive end to the 2016-17 financial year for the City
as evidenced by the following:
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City of Bayswater (including Aged Persons Homes) - General Purpose Financial
Statements:

1.  Current Ratio or Liquidity: 2.05 (Target > 1).

2.  Operating Surplus Ratio - The City's ability to cover daily operational expenses and have
revenue available for capital works: 1.18% (Target > 1%).

3.  Asset Sustainability Ratio - Indicates whether the City is renewing or replacing assets at
the same rate as they are wearing out: 109.86% (Target 90-110%).

4.  Asset Renewal Funding Ratio - The ability of the City to fund its projected asset
renewal/replacement programmes: 82% (Target 75-95%).

5. Municipal and Aged Care Reserve funds have increased from $42,200,344 to $44,417,329.
6. Total Equity for the City has increased from $753,689,115 to $786,204,500.

OPTIONS
Not applicable.

CONCLUSION

The 2016-17 annual financial statements have been completed and will be included in the City of
Bayswater Annual Report 2016-17 and accessible on the City's website.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The increased level of surplus achieved at the end of the 2016-17 financial year will have a
positive impact on the opening balance for the next financial year. This surplus will be addressed
when making the adjustments for carried forward capital projects in 2016-17 and during the
2017-18 mid-year review.

STRATEGIC LINK

In accordance with the City of Bayswater Strategic Community Plan 2017-2027, the following
applies:

Theme: Leadership and Governance.
Aspiration: Open, accountable and responsive service.
Outcome L1: Accountable and good governance.

COUNCIL POLICY AND LEGISLATIVE IMPLICATIONS

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory
requirements and Australian Accounting Standards.

The audit is undertaken in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards and Auditing Guidance
Statements adopted by the Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants and the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia; the Local Government Act 1995 and the Local
Government (Audit) Regulations 1996.

Regulation 51(2) of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996 requires
that a copy of the 2016-17 annual financial report is to be submitted to the Department of Local
Government, Sport and Cultural Industries, within 30 days of receipt by the Chief Executive
Officer of the auditor's report on that financial report.
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VOTING REQUIREMENTS

Audit and Risk Management Committee
Simple Majority required

Ordinary Meeting of Council
ABSOLUTE MAJORITY REQUIRED

ATTACHMENTS

1. General Purpose Financial Statements - City of Bayswater (Consolidated), including the
Independent Auditor's Report

COUNCIL RESOLUTION
(OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION)
That the Audit and Risk Management Committee recommends to Council that:

1. The consolidated City of Bayswater General Purpose Financial Statements for the
year ended 30 June 2017, including the Independent Auditor's Report Attachment 1
of this report be accepted.

2. In accordance with regulation 51(2) of the Local Government (Financial Management)
Regulations 1996, Council submit a copy of the 2016-17 Annual Financial Report to
the Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural Industries, within 30 days
of receipt by the Chief Executive Officer of the auditor's report on that financial
report.

CR CHRIS CORNISH, DEPUTY MAYOR MOVED, CR BARRY McKENNA SECONDED
CARRIED: 10/0 BY ABSOLUTE MAJORITY VOTE
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Attachment 1

City of Bayswater

GENERAL PURPOGSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2017

A Quality Lifestyle in a Sustainable Environment % City of Bayswatnr
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Financial Siastemeants 2017

City of Bayswater

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year enced 30 June 2017

Contents Page
1. Understanding Council's Financial Statements 2
2. Statement by Chief Executive Officer 3

3. Primary Financial Statements:

- Statement of Comprehensive Income (by Mature or Type) 4
- Statement of Comprehensive Income (by Program) 5
- Statement of Financial Position 7
- Statement of Changeas in Equity 8
- Statement of Cash Flows 9
- Rate Sefting Statement 10
4. Motes to the Financial Statements 12
5. Independent Auditor's Report 74
Overview

() These financial statements are General Purpose Financial Statements and cover the consglidated oparations
for City of Bayswaler.

() Al fgures prasanted in these financial statemeants are prasentad in Australian Cumrency.

() Councl has the power ko amend and reissue the financial slalements.
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City of Bayswater

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Financial Stabements 2017

Understanding Council's Financial Statements

Intraduction

Each year, individual Local Governments across
Weslern Australia are required to presenl a sel of
audited Financial Statements to their Council and
Community in  accordance with the Local
Governmerd Act 1955 and the Local Governmend

(Financial Management) Regulations 1956,

About the Certification of Financial Statements

The Financial Statements must be certified by the
Chief Executive Officer as (1) presenting faidy the
Council's financial results far the year and complying
with (i) Australian Accourting Standards and the
Local Govermment Azt 1935

What you will find in the Statements

The Firancial Statements sel out the financial
peformance, financial position and cash flows of
Council for the financial year ended 30 June 2017,

The format of the Financial Statements is standard
across all Western Australian Councils and complies
with bath the accounting and reparting requirements
of Australian  Accounting Standards and  the
requirements as set down in the Western Australian
Local Government Ascounting Manual,

The Financial Staterments incorporate & “primany”
financial statements

1. A Statement of Comprehensive Income -

(by Mature or Type)
A summary of Councils financial performance for the
year, listing all income & expenses by their “nature
or type' This allows users of the financial
statements to identify a break up of operating
revenues and expenses for the year.

2. A Statement of Comprehensive Income -
(by Program)

A surnmary of Councils financial perfarmance for the
year, listing all income & expenses by “program’
This allows users of the financial statements to
identify the cost relating to each Council Program
and whether or nct these costs were recovered from
Program revenues.

3. A Statement of Financial Position

A 30 June smapshot of Council's financial position
listing its assets & labilities.

4. A Statement of Changes in Equity

The overall change for the year [in dollars) of
Council's "net wealth”.

5. A Statement of Cash Flows

Indicates where Councils cash came from and
where it was spent across operating, investing &
financing activities

6. A Rate Setting Statement
A Statement showing the amount of rates budgeted
to be raised during the year to fund the Council’s

proposed Programs (and any budget surplusddeficit
from prior years).

About the Notes to the Financial Staterments

The Motes lo the Financiel Slatements provide
greater defail and acditional information on the &
Primary Firancial Statements,

About the Auditor's Reports

Councils Financial Statements are required to be
audited by external accountanis (that generally
specialise in Local Govemment).

In Western Australiz, the Auditor provides an audit
report that provides an opinion on whether the
Financial Staterments presert fairly the Councils
financial performance and pasition.

Wiho uses the Financial Statements?

The Financial Statements are publicly available
documents and are usad by (but not limited ba)
Councillors, Residentz and Ratepayers, Employees,
Suppliers, Contractors, Customers, the Department
of Local Government, and Financiers including
Banks and ather Financial Instibutions.

Under the Local Government Azt 1995 the Financial

Statements must be made available at the office of
the Council

page 2
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Fimancial Statements 2017

City of Bayswater

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Local Government Act 1995
Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996

Statement by Chief Executive Officer

The attached financial report of the City of Bayswater being the annual financial report and supporting notes

and ather information for the financial year ended 30 June 2017 are in my opinion properly drawn up o presant
fairly the financial pasition of the City of Bayswater at 30 June 2017 and the results of the operations for the
financial year then ended in accordance with the Auskralian Accounting Standards and comply with the provisions
of the Local Government Act 1995 and the regulations under that Act

‘._,.r’
Signed on the J'[ g day of %’5&?"1 I'?.n.—#f‘__ 2017

-
o

)

Anci"éw Brien

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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City of Bayswater

Statement of Comprehensive Income (by Nature or Type)

far the year ended 30 June 2017

Finandal Stalements 2017

2T 207 2016
5 Ketes Actual Budget Actual
Revenue
Rates ) 410576R0 42300850 30545805
Operating Grants, Subsidies & Contributions 28 17,227 533 12 674 693 14,440 452
Foes & Charges 27 20681030 21466673 20848009
Interest Earnings 2a) 2718055 2,467 420 2,589,587
Cther Revenue 18,866 561,801 707,029
82604 544 79,561 445 78,140,583
Expenses
Employee Costs a1 (31,538 788)  (31,887604) (30514431
Matenals & Conlracts (31,498 545) (30,419 250) (29,528 037)
Lhilities (3,618 899) (3,587 G49) (3,602 337)
Depreciation & Amartization Na)  (11,9685277) (10,288.420)  (10,434757)
Interest Expenses 2(a) (1,862) (2,135) (3,308)
Insurance (829,220} (754,603) (740,411)
Cther Expenditure (69,575) = =
(78,512568)  (76,940,261) (74,823 341)
Operating Result from Continuing Operations 3,001,678 2,521,185 3,317,642
Mon-Operating Grants, Subsidies & Cantributions 25 4,012 352 232533 2,101,034
Fair Value Adjustment to Mon Financial Azsets
throught Profit and Loss 2a) (2,738 3400 - (8,561 184)
Met Share of Interests in Conlrelied Entities,
Aszsociated Entities & Joint Ventures 17 B3B8 637 - 2770033
Frofit on Assst Disposals 21 - 250 490,071
Loss on Asset Disposal 21 (422 BGE) {204, 488) (407 B10)
1,680 G 2121113 (3,607 856)
MNet Result - Surplus (Deficit) 4,781,657 4,742,298 {280,214)
Other Comprehensive Income
Changes on revaluation of non-current assets 13 27,733,728 4,058,801
Total Other Comprehensive Income 27733728 4,058 901
Total Comprehensive Income 32 515 385 4,742 298 3,768 657
This statement should be read in conjunclion with the accompanying noles pege 4
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City of Bayswater

Statement of Comprehensive Income (sy Frogram)

far the year ended 30 June 2017

Finandal Stalements 2017

2m7 207 2016
$ Hotes Actual Budget Actual
Revenue
General Purpase Funding A7, 348 277 47,010,495 43,141 441
Law, Order, Public Safety 37 848 304,640 314,892
Health 241 236 244,730 307,266
Educalion & Welfare 12,844 770 10,786 315 12,369 867
Housing 89183 88 450 103 525
Community Amenities 12,445 369 11,895 090 11,362 854
Recreation & Cullure 7,520 885 8,150,825 7,827 486
Transpart 1,168 940 435 700 1,474 130
Economic Services 451 834 550,200 560,283
Cther Property & Services 157,088 85,000 G70,039

82604544 79,561 445 78,140,583
Expenses (axcl Finance Costs)
CGovemance (5.814.021) (2,906,610) (3,878,133)
General Purpose Funding (1,026,513) (1,068,630) (743,426)
Law, Order, Public Safety (2,812 659) (2,480, 733) (2,633,638)
Health {1,514,108) {1,706 430) (1,552,122)
Educalion & Weilfare {12,651,336) (11,B95273) (12,529,634)
Housing (151,435) (122,857) (140,781}
Community Amernities (13,8158580) (13,519073) (12,570,747)
Recreation & Culture (28,713.088)  {28,340,059)  (28,272.475)
Transport (5,205 760) (8,295 839) (8,316 550)
Econmmic Services {1,489 012) {1.521,082) {1.518,788)
Other Property & Services {2 517 212} {2 071,470} (2 BE3 041)
(79,510,706) (76,938128) (74,820,033)
Finance Costs Ha)
Recreation & Culture (1,862) (2,135) {3,308}
(1,862) (2,135) (3,308)
Operating Result from Continuing Operations 3,091,576 2 521,185 3.317 642
Non-Operating Grants, Subsidies, Contributions
Lene, Orcler, Pubhic Safety PR 145,000 12,740
Education & Welfare - - 16,533
Comrmunity Amerities 1,785,750 20,500 {22 358)
Recrealion & Culture 3425 &5, 202 119,281
Transport 1,966 260 2044 849 1.974778
28 4012352 2325351 2.101,034
This statement should be read in conjunclion with the accompanying noles pege §
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Finandial Stalements 2017
City of Bayswater

Statement of Comprehensive Income (by Program) (continued)
far the year ended 30 June 2017

2m7 207 2016
$ Hotes Actual Budget Actual
Profit/{Loss) on Disposal of Assets
Govemance (28,192) - (37 303)
Law, Order, Public Safety - (12,492) (3,522
Health (18 610) {15,350) (B,485)
Educalion & Welfare (9, 7e0) - {19,504)
Housing (7 568) 8 :
Community Amenities (5,600) 250 490,071
Recreation & Cullure {203 408) {98 475) {(70,153)
Transpart (81 545) (31,620) -
Economic Services (16 508) (6,7683) {11,138)
Cther Property & Services (51,177} (39 758) {251, 706)

21 (422 568) (204,238) a2 261
Other Income
Fair Value Adjustments to Men Financial Assets
through Profit & Loss 2in) (2,738 340) = (8,561,184)
Met Share of Interests in Conlrolied Entities,
Associated Entities & Joint Ventures 17 836 637 - 2,770,033

{1,889 703) s (5,791,151)

MNet Result - Surplus (Deficit) 4,781 657 4742 298 (260,214)
Other Comprehensive Income
Changes on revaluation of non-current assets 13 7733728 - 4,058,501
Total Comprehensive Income 32,515 385 4,742 298 3,768 657
This statement should be read in conjunclion with the accompanying noles pege &
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Finandgal Stalaments 2017
City of Bayswater

Statement of Financial Position
as al 30 June 2017

2017 2016
$ Nobes Actual Actual
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 69,235 427 64,327 720
Trade and Other Receivables 5 4043170 3,780,502
Irventones 6 88771 112,780
Cther 4 110,526 190,627
Total Current Assets 73,487,884 68,412,028
Non-Current Assets
Trade and Cther Recenables 808 138 740 840
Property, Plant and Equipmert 7 527,696 458 500,015,152
Infrastructure 3 186,533 445 189,045 52
Controlled Entities, Associated Entities &

Interests in Joint Ventures 17 32 5683 586 32,024 549
Total Non-Current Assets 747,901,628 721,826,783
TOTAL ASSETS 19 B21,389 522 790,238 822
LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables g 79 544 225 30,758 692
Baorrowings 10 5877 10,825
Provisions 11 4 BS7 374 5,202 856
Total Current Liabilities 34,707,577 38,012,373
Hon-Current Liahilities

Trade and Cther Payables 3 11,800 11,800
Borrowings 10 18,905 25,882
Provisicns 11 445 G40 495 552
Total Non-Current Liabilities 477 445 537,334
TOTAL LIABILITIES 35,185 022 36 548 707
Met Assets 786204500 753683115
EQUITY

Retained Surplus 213,105,837 210,541 165
Reserves - Cashfinvesiment Backed 12 44 417 329 42 200,344
Reserves - Asset Revaluation 13 528,681,334 500,947 606
Total Equity 786204500 753,680,115
This statement should be read in conjunclion with the accompanying noles pepe 7
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City of Bayswater

Statement of ChEII'IgES in Equit',r
far the year ended 30 June 2017

Finandal Stalaments 2017

Reserves
Cash | Assat

Retained Investment Revaluation Total
$ Noles Surplus Backed Reserve Equity
Balance as at 1 July 2015 212 097 565 40,934 158 406,888 705 749,920,428
Restated Balance 212,097,565 40,834 158 498 888,705 749 920,428
Met Result (260, 214) . (290,214)
Total OCI ¢ Asset Revaluation - - 4 0568 01 4,058,901
Reserve Transfers 12 (1,266,185) 1,266,186 =
Balance as at 30 June 2018 210,541,165 42,200,344 500,947 606 753,689,115
Prior Period Adjustment -
Met Result 4 781 657 - - 4,781,857
Total OCI / Asset Revaluation 13 - - 27733728 27,733,728
Reserve Transfers 12 (2 216 985) 2,216 585 - .
Balance as at 20 June 2017 i 213,105,837 44,417,329 528,881,334 788,204,500 i
This statement should be read in conjunclion with the accompanying noles pege &
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Finandgal Stalaments 2017
City of Bayswater

Statement of Cash Flows
far the year ended 30 June 2017

2017 207 2016

3 Notes Actual Budget Actual
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts:
Rates 47,006, 286 42 450,000 39,445,086
Operating Grants, Subsidies and Centributions 17,227 833 12,550,000 14,440 452
Fees and Charges 189,404 738 31,425,000 20,648,009
Interest Earnings 2,719,055 2,450,000 2,599,587
Goods and Services Tax 1,727 744 3,500,000 2,084 167
Cther Revenue 872 780 565,000 1,825 682

83,958 546 82,940,000 81,352,593
Payments:
Employes Cosls (31,804,854)  (31,750000)  (30,582772)
Materials and Contracts (30,309,781)  (35,214000) (27,356 £80)
Litilities {3,615 859) {3,575,000) (3,602 237)
Insurance (829,220 (754,503) (740.411)
Interest (1,998) (2,135) (3,890}
Gonds and Servicas Tax {3,945 683) (2,205, 804)

(70,511434)  ({71,206038) (64,492 153)
Met Cash provided (or used in) Operating Activities 14(b) 13 447 112 11,643 852 16 860 8B40

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Beceipts:

Mon-Operating Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 28 402352 2,325,301 2101034
Proceeds from Sale of Assets 21 582872 GA0,300 1,623,673
EBayments:

Payments for Purchase of Property, Flant & Equipment 20 (4,344 370) (8,022 280) (5,661, 710)
Payments for Construction of Infrastructure 20 (8,780,259)  (10,B852,075) (78TBATY
HNet Cash provided (or used in) Investing Activities (8,539 405) (15,868 704) (9,915 174)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Recei

Procesds from Self Supporting Loars 23a) 10,825 10,825 50,659
Payments:

Repayment of Debentures Z3a) (10,823) (10,825) {50,959)

Net Cash provided [or used in) Financing Activities

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 4,907,707 (4,224,742 6,945 €55

Cash at the beginning of the year 3 64,327 720 55,262,285 57,382,054

Cash & Cash Equivalents - End of the Year 14(a) 65, 235 427 51,037 543 64,327 720

This statement should be read in conjunclion with the accompanying noles pege 9
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Finandgal Stalaments 2017
City of Bayswater

Rate Setting Statement (by Program)
far the year ended 30 June 2017

217 217 2016

% Metes Actual Budget Actual
Revenue
General Purpose Funding (Excl Rates) 5,362 425 4,619,637 3,505,545
Law, Order, Public Safety 37 848 487 148 305,370
Health 222 626 229 380 288 781
Education and Welfare 12,835,010 10,786,315 12,350,453
Housing 81,225 98,450 103,525
Community Amerities 12,438 569 11,915,840 11,853,025
Recreation and Culture 7,326 483 8,209 051 7,757,333
Transpart 1,168 540 2,473 566 1,474,130
Economic Services 445 328 550,200 558,145
Other Property and Senices 24362 (77,887) 381,029

40,223 516 39,281,700 38677 345
Expenses
Covernance (5,814.021) (5,908 610) (3,878,133)
General Purpose Funding (1,026 515) {1,068 &30 (743 426)
Law, Order, Public Safety (2,512 659) (2,490,733) (2,633 658)
Health (1,514,108) (1,708 430 (1,552,122)
Educalion and Welfare (12,651,336) (11,8895273) (12,529534)
Housing (151,435) (122,857} (140,761)
Community Amerities (136155500 (13,519,073) (12.570,746)
Recreation and Culture (28, 714960)  (28,342194)  (28,275,784)
Transport (9,205, 760) (8,295, 899) (8,315,950)
Economic Services {1,488.012) (1,521,082) (1,518,788)
Cther Property and Services (2,517,212 (2,071, 470) (2 BE3042)

(78,512,568) (76,940,261) (74,823,242)
Net Result Excluding Rates (38,288 652) (37 648 551) (36,145 595)

Adjustment for Cash Budget Requirements:
Non-Cash Expenditure & Revenue

(Profit)/Loss on Asset Disposal P3| 422 GB8 204,238 (82 251)
Mewvemert in Mon-Current Deferred Pensioner Rates (45,0100 - (17.742)
Maovement in Mon-Current Employee Benefit Provisions (53.512) - (56,137)
Depreciation & Amaortisation on Assets &) TM.955.277 10,288,420 10,434 757
Mavement of Man-Current Debtors & Imventories (28 265) - 22674
Employee Entitlernents Movement 195 253) {224 500} 157,178
Aged Perscns Liability Adjustment (1,105 565) . (943 188)
MNet Non-Cash Expenditure & Revenue 11,045 837 10,268,158 9,499 281

This statement should be read in conjunclion with the accompanying noles page 10
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Finandgal Stalaments 2017
City of Bayswater

Rate Setting Statement (by Program) (continued)
far the year ended 30 June 2017

2017 207 2016
3 Notes Actual Budget Actual
Capital Expenditure
Purchase Land and Buildings 20 {1,450 S09) {4,285 103) {2 745 345)
Purchase Plant and Equipment 20 {1,790,114) (2,000 840) (1,548 786)
Purchase Fumiture and Equipment 20 {1,063, 747) (1,736,237} {1,267,578)
Infrastructure Assets 20 (8,790,258) (10,852,075 (7.878,172)
Repayment of Debentures Z3{a) (10,825) (10,825} {50,558)
Net Capital Expenditure {13,145 454)  (18,885180) (13,680 £39)
Capital Revenue
Proceeds from Disposal of Assets 21 582 872 580,300 1,623 672
Sell-Supporting Lean Principal Income Z3(a) 10,825 10,825 50,958
Grants & Centributions Applied for Asset Development 4012352 - 2101,034
Net Capital Revenue 4,606 045 691,125 3,775,654
Transfars
Transfers o Reserves (Restncted Assals) 12 (2,970,0200 {1,493 415) (3,939,018)
Transfers from Resenves (Restricted Assets) 12 753,035 1,681,654 2672832
Het Transfers (2,216 S85) 188 239 {1,266, 185)
Surplusf{Deficit) July 1 BiFwd 24(b) 5,983 678 4,309 258 3,865,838
Surplus/{Deficit) June 30 C/Fwd 24/} 8,345,133 1,314,198 5,583,678
Amount Raised from Rates 24(a) (41,957 660}  (42380859) (38,545 835)
This statement should be read in conjunclion with the accompanying noles page 11
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City of Bayswater

Notes to the Financial Statements
far the year ended 30 June 2017

Contents of the Notes accompanying the Financial Statements
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City of Bayswater

Motes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Financial Stabements 2017

Mote 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of the financial report are set out balow.
These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated

(a) Basis of preparation

The finarcial report is a general purpose financial
statement which has been prepared in accordance
with Australian Accounting Standards (as they apply
to local governments and not-for-profit entiies),
other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian
Standards Board, Local Govemnment Act 1935 and
accHmpanying regulations.  The report has also
been prepared on the accrual basis under the
carvention of higtoncal cost accounting rmadified,
where applicable, by the measurement at fair value
of selected non-current assets, financial assets and
liabilities.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of & financial report in conformity
with Australian Accounting Standarce requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. The
estimates and asscciated assumptions are based on
higtorical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the
circimetances, The results of this experience and
other factors combine to form the hasis of making
judgemerts about carrying values of assets and
liabilities not readily apparent from other souwrces.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

(k) The Local Government Reporting
Entity

(1) All Funds through which the Council confrols
resources to camy on its furctions have been
included in the financial statements forming part of
this financial report. In the process of reporting an
the local governmert as a singke unit, all
transactions and balances between those funds (for
example, loans and transfers between Funds) have
been eliminated.  All monies held in the Trust Fund
are excluded frem the financial statements, but a
separate statement of those monies appears at Mote
18 to this financial report.

(2) Discontinued Operation - Bayswater Child Care
ASSOC (ING)

On the 171 September 2015 the conslitution of the
Bayswater Child Care Assoc (Inc) was amended to
the extert that the City of Bayswater no longer held a
conrtrolling  irterest over the operations of the
Association. Al assets and liabilities of the Bayswater
Child Care Assoc (Inc) have been excluded from
these staternents.

{c) Goods and Services Tax

In accardance with recommended practice, revenues,
expenses and assels capitalised are stated net of any
GST recoverable. Receivables and payables in the
Staternent of Financigl Pozition are stated inclusive of
applicable GST.

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalerts in the Statement of
Financial Postion compnse cash al bank and on hand
and short-term depasits with an original maturity of
twelve months or less that are readity corvertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purposes of the Statemert of Cash Flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are included as shor-
term borrowings in current lak:iities on the Statemert
of Financial Position

{e) Trade and Other Receivables

Collectability of trade and other receivables is
reviswed on an ongong basis Debts which are
known to be uncaollectible are written off when
identified. An alowance for doubtful cebls is raised
when there is objective evidence that they will not be
collectible.

{f Inventories

(i) Raw materials and stores, work in
progress and finished goods

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and
finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost comprises direct materials,
direct labowr and an appropriate propartion of variable
and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being
allocated on the basis of normal cperating capasity.
Cosls are assigned to individuzal items of imventory on
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the basis of weighled average costs.  Mel realisable
value is the established selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

(iiy Land Held for resale/capitalisation of
borrowing costs

Land held for resale is stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is assigned by
specific identification and includes the cost of
aceaisition, and development and borrowing cosls
during development. When development is
completed borrowing costs and other  holding
charges are expensed as incurred.  Bormowing costs
included in the cost of land held for resale are those
costs  that would have been avoided if the
expenditure on the acquisiion and development of
the land had not been made. Bomowing costs
incurred while active development is interrupted for
exlended periods are recognised as expences,

Revenus arising from the sale of property is
recognised in the operating statement as at the time
of signing a binding contract of sale. Land held for
rezale is classified as curent except where it is held
as nan-cument based on the Council's intentions to
release for sale.

(a) Fixed Assets
Initial Recognition

All assets are intizally recognised at cost.  Cost is
determined as the fair value of the assets given as
consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisiticn
For assets acquired al no cost or for nominal
consideration, cost is determined as fair value at the
date of acquistion. The cost of non-cumrent assets
constructed incluces the cost of all materiale, direct
labour and variable and fived overhaads.

Revaluation

Certain asset classes may be revalued on a regular
basis such that the carrying values are not materially
different from fair valee. For infrastructure and ather
asset classes where no active market exists, fair
value s determined lo be the current replacement
cost of an asset less, where apglicable, accumulated
depreciation calculated on a basis to reflest the
already consumed or expired future economic
benefits of the asset,

Increases in the canying amount ansing on
revaluation of assets are credited to a revaluation
surplus in equity. Decreases that offset previous
increases of the same asset are charged agairst fair
value reserves direclly in equity; all other decreases
are charged to the slatement of comprebersive
income.

Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation iz eliminated ageainst the gross camying
amount of the azset and the net amount is restated to
the revalued amount of the asset,

Those assels carried at a revalued amount, being
their fair value at the date of revaluation less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, are to be revalued
with sufficient regularity to ensure the carrying amourt
does not differ significantly from that determined using
fair value at reporting date.

Land under Roads

In Western Australia, all land under roads is Crown
land, the responsibility for managing which, is vested
in the local government.

Effective as at 1 July 2008, Council elected nat to
recognise any value for land under reads acquired on
or before 30 June 2008 This accords with the
treatment available in Australian Accounting Standard
AASE 1051 Land Under Roads and the fact Ihat Local
Government  (Financfal  Management] Regulation
16{a)(l) prehibits local govermnments fram recagniging
such land as an asset.

Whilst such ftreatment s inconsistent with the
requirements of AASE 1051, Local Government
(Finansial Managemen!) Regulstion 4(2) provides
that, in the event of such an inconsistency, the Local
Government  (Financial Management) Regulations
prevail

Consequerdly, any land under roads acquired on or
after 1 July 2008 is net included as an asset of the
Counzil,

{h) Depreciation of Non-Current Assets

All mon-current assels having a imited useful life are
separately and systematically depreciated over their
uzeful lives in & manner which reflects the
corsumption of the future economic benefits
embodied in those assets  Assels are depreciated
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from the date of acguisition or, in respect of
internally construcled assets, frem the time the assst
iz completed and held ready for use.

Capitalisation Threshald:

Pilant & Equipment $2,000
Computer Equipment $2,000
Furniture & Equipment £2,000
Building Improvements $2,000
Land & Buildings Ma Lirmit

Deprecialion is recognised on a straight-line basis,
using rates which are reviewed each reporing
penod Major depreciation periods are:

Plant 5to 15 years
Furniture & Equipment 4to 10 years
Buildings 30 to £0 years
Computer Equipment Jyears
Woark Equipment Sto 15 years
Toys 3 years
Fleet Vehicles 3 years
Roads 50 years
Footpaths

= Concrete 50 years

- Asphalt 25 years
Drains 100 years
Reserves

- Passive Reserves 100 years

- Medians 50 years

- Civic Gardens 30 years

- Verges 30 years

- Active Reserves 20 years
Street Furniture

- Crash Barriers 10 years

- Bus Shelters 20 years

- Seats 10 years

- Parking Signs 5 years

- Sireet Mame Plates 10 years

The assels residual value and uselul lves are
reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. An asset's camying amount is
written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if the assel's carrying amount s greater than its
estimated recoverable amourt

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with the carrying amourt.
These gains and losses are included in the

Staternent of Comprehensive Incarme, When revalued
assets are sold, amounts included in the revaluation
surplus relating to that asset are transferred to
retained earmings.

(i) Financial Instruments
Initial Recognition and Measurement

Finencial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when the Council becomes a part to the contractual
provisions to the instrument. For financial assets, this
is equivalert to the date that the Council commits
itself to either the purchase or sale of the asset (ie
frade date accounting is adopted).

Financial instruments are inibally measwed at fair
value plus fransaction costs, except where the
instrument s classified 'at fair value through profit or
lose!, in which case transaction costs are expensed to
profit or loss immediately,

Classification and Subsequent Measurement

Finencial instruments are subsequently measured at
amoftised cost using the effective interest rate methed
or cosl

Fair value represents the amourt for which an asset
could be exchanged or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, wiling parties. Where available,
quoted prices in an active market are used to
deterrmine fair value, In other circumstances, valuaticn
techniques are adopled.

Amortized cost is cakculated as:

(@) the amourt is which the financial asset or financial
liabdity s measured al inilial recogribion,

() less principal repayments,

() plus or minug the cumulative amortisation of the
difference, if any, between the amount initially
recagnised and the malunly amount calculated
using the effective interest rate method; and

(d) less any reduction for impairment,

The effective interest method used is to allocate
interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period and is equivalert to the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash pavments or receipts
(including fees, transaction costs and other premiums
of disscunts) through the expectad life (or when this
cannol be reliably predicted, the contractual term of
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the financial instrurment 1o the net carrying ameunt of
the financial asset or financial labiity. Revisions to
expected future cash flows will necessitate an
adjustment to the carrying wvalue with a
consequential recognition of an income or expense
in profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for rading. A financial asset
is classified in this category il acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term.  Derivatives
are classified as held for trading unless they are
designeted as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current agsets,

(iiy Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assels with foced or determinable payments that are
not quated in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for those with meturities
greater than 12 maonths after the Statement of
Financial Position date which are classified as non-
current assets. Loans and receivables are included
in trade and other receivables in the Statement of
Financial Fosition

(Hii) Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity  investments  are  non-derivative
financial assets with fived or determinable payments
and fived maturities that the Council's management
has the positive intenticn and ability to hold to
maturity.  f Council were to =ell other than an
insignificant amount of held-to-maturity  financial
assels, the whole category would be tainted and
reclassified as available-for-sale.  Held-to-maturity
financial assets are included in non-current assets,
except for thoze with maturities less than 12 months
frem the reporting date, which are classified as
current assels,

(iv) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale  financial  assets, comprising
principally markelable equily securities, are norn-
derivatives that are either designated in this category
ar nol classified in any of the olber calegories. They
are included in  noncwrrent  @ssets unless
management intents to dispese of the investment
within 12 manths of the Statement of Financial

Position dals Investments are designated as
available-fer-sale if they do not have fived maturities
and fixed or determinable payments and management
intends to hold them for the medium to long term

(v} Financial Liabilities

Mon-derivative financial liabiities (excluding financial
gusrantees) are subsequently measured at amortised
cost,

Impairment

At the end of each reporting period, the Council
agsesses whether there is objective evidence that a
financial instroment has beenimpaired. |0 he case of
available-fer-sale financial instruments, a prelonged
decline in the value of the instrument iz considerad to
determine  whether  impairment has  arizen
Impairment |osses recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

) Fair Value Estimation

The fair value of financial assets and financial
labilites musl be estimated for recognition and
meaasuremenrt or for disclosure purposes,

The fair value of financial ingtruments traded in active
markets is determined using valuation technigues
Courcil uses a vanely of methods and makes
assumptions that are based on market conditions
existing at each balance date. Quoted market prices
or dealer quates for similar instruments are used for
long-term debt instruments held. Other techniques,
such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to
determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments.

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments
of trade receivables and payables are assumed to
approximate their fair values, The fair value of
financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the
current market interest rate that is available to the
Courcil for similar financial instrements.

(k) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Council has a
presert legal or constructive obligation as a result ¢f

past everds, (it is more [kely han not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation ard
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the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions
are nat recognised for fulure cperating losses.
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an oulflow will be required in
settiement is determined by considenng the class of
obligations &5 a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
ary one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

(i  Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the
Council has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leazes Finance
leases ane capitalised at the lease's inception at the
lower of the fair value of the leased proparty and the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The
carresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in other long term payables.
Each lease payment is allocated bebwieen the liability
and linance charges so as to achieve a conslant rale
on the finance balance outstanding. The interest
element of the hnance cost is charged to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income over the leaze
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liabiity for
each peried. The property, plant and egquipment
acquired under finance leases are depreciated over
the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease
term  Lease payments under operaling |eases,
where substantially all the risks and benefits remain
with the lessor, are charged as expenses in the
periads in which they are incurred

(m) Impairment

In accordance with Australan Accounting Standards
the Council's assets, other than inventories, are
tested annually for impairment Where such an
indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable
amount of the asset is made in accordance with
AASHE 135 Impairmerd of Assels and appropriale
adjustments made. Assets that are subject to
amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
cammying amount may not be recoverable.  An
impairmert loss is recognised for the amount by
which the assefs camying amourt exceeds its
reccverabie amount.  The recoverable amount is the
higher of an assat's fair valus less costs to sell and
value in use. Impairment losses are recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

For non-cash generating assels of the Council such
as roads, drains, public buildings and the like, valug in
use iz represented by the asset's written down
replacement cost

[{1)] Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables are carried at amorised
cost. They represent liabilities for goods and senvices
provided to the Municipality prior to the end of the
financial year that are unpaid and arise when the
Municipality becomes obliged to make fulure
payments in respect of the purchase of these goods
and services. The amounts are unsecured and are
usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

{o) Interest-bearing Loans and
Borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the
fair value of the consideration received less directly
aftributable transaction costs.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
barrowings are subsequently measured al amorlised
cost using the effective interest method. Fees paid of
the establishment of lcan facillies that are yield
related are included as part of the carrying amount of
the loans and bBorrewings,

Borrowings are classified as current liabilties unless
the Council has an uncondtional right to defer
settiement of the Rability for at least 12 months after
the Staterment of Financial Position date. Borrowing
costs are recognised as an expense when incurred
except where they are directly attributable to the
acquisition, consfruction or production of a qualifying
asset. Where this is the case, they are capitalised as
part of the cost of Ine particular asset,

()] Employee Benefits

The provisions for empioyee benelits relates to
amounts expected to be paid for long service leave,
annual leave, wages and salaries and are calculated
as follows:

Wages, Salaries, Annual Leave and Long Service
Leave (Short-term Benefits)

The pravision for employees' benefits wages, salaries,

annual leave and kong service leave expected o be
seftled within 12 monthe representz the amount the
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Council has a present obligation to pay resulting
from employee’s services pravided to balance date.
The provision has been cakulated at nominal
amounts based on remuneration rates the Council
expects to pay and includes related on-costs.

Long Service Leave (Long-term Benefits)

The liability for long service leave is recognised in
the provision for employee benefits and measured
as the present value of expected luture paymenrts to
be made in respect of services provided by
employess up to the reporting dale using lhe
projected unit credit method. Consideration is given
to expected fMuture wage and salary levels,
experience of employee departures and periods of
service. Expecled future payments are discounted
using market yields al the reporting dale on national
governmeant bonds with terms to matunty and
currency that match as closely ag possible, the
estimated future cash outflows.

Where Council does not have the uncenditional right
to defer settlement bevond 12 months, the liability is
recognised as a current lizbility.

(q) Superannuation

The Council confributes to & number of
Superannuation Funds on behalf of their employees.
Conlributions 10 defined confribution  plans  are
recegrised as an expense as they become payabla
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

(r) Joint Venture

The municipality's interest in a point venture has
been recognised in the financial statements by
including its share of any assets, liabilties, revenues
and expenses of the joirt venture within the relevant
items reported in the Statement of Financial Pesition
and Statemert of Comprehensive Income.
Information about the joint venture iz set out in Mote
17.

(s) Rates, Grants, Donations and Other
Contributions

Rates, grants, donations and ather contributions are
recognised as revenues when the local government
obtains control over the assels comprising the

corfributions, Cortral ever assets acquired from rales
is obizined at the commencement of the rating period
or, where earlier, upon receipt of the rates.

Vhere contributions recognised as revenues during
the reporting period were oblained on the condiicn
that they be expended in a particular manner or used
over a paricular pengd, and these conditions were
undischarged as at the reporting date, the nature of
and amounts pertgining to thoze wundischarged
conditions are disclosed at Note 2{d). That note zlzo
discloses the amount of contributions recognised as
revenues in a previous reparting period which were
obtained In respect of the local government's
aperaticn for the current reporting period.

(t) Current and Mon-Current
Classification

In the determination of whether an asset or liability is
currerl or non-curmenl, considerabion i given to the
time when each asset or liability is expected to be
settled. The asset or liability is classified as current if
it iz expected to be settled within the next 12 months,
being the Council's operation cycle. In the case of
liabilities where the Councl does not have the
unconditional right to defer settlemert beyond 12
manths, such as vested long service leave, the llbility
iz classified a2 cument even If not expected to be
settied within the next 12 morthe. Invertories held for
trading are classified as current even if not expected
to be realised in the next 12 months except for lard
held for resale where it is held as non-current based
on the Council's intentions to releass for sale.

{u) Rounding OFff Figures

All figures shown in this annual financial report, other
than a rate in the dollar, are rounded to the nearest
[dodlar] OR [thousand dollars)

) Comparative Figures

Where required, comparative figures have been
adjusted to conform with changes in presentation for
the current financial year,

When the Council applies an accounting policy
retrospectively, makes a retrospective restatement or
reclassifies items in its financial statement, a
staternent of financial position as at the beginning of
the earliest pericd will be disclosed.
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(w) Budget Comparative Figures

Unless otherwize stated, the budget comparzative
figures shown in this annual financial report relate to
the onginal budge! estimate for the relevant item of
disclosure

(x) Mon-Current Assets (or Disposal
Groups) “Held for Sale” &
Discontinued Operations

Morn-current  assets (or disposal groups) are

classified as held for sale and stated at the lower of
either (i) their carrying ameount and (ii) fair value less
costs to sell, if their carying amount will be
recevered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through contimuing use.

The exception to this is plant and motor vehicles
which are tumned over on a regular basis. Plant and
moter vehicles are retained in Mon Cument Assets
under the classficaton of Property, Plant and
Equipment - unless the assets are to be traded in
after 30 June and the replacement assels were
already purchazed and accounted for as at 30 June.

For any assets or disposal groups classified as Non-
Current Assets “neld for sale”, an impairment loss is
recegnised at any time when the assels cammying
value is greater than its fair value less costs to sell.

Moncurrent  asssets  “held for zale” are ot
depreciated or amortised while they are classified as
“held for sale”

Mon-current assets classified ag “held for sale” are
presented separately from the other assets in the
balance sheet,

A Discentinued Cperatien is a companent of Council
that has been disposed of or is classified as “held for
sale” and that represents a separale major line of
business or geographical area of operations, is part
of a single co-ordinaled plan to dispose of such a
line of business or area of operations, or 5 a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to rezale.

The results of discontinued operaticns are presented
separately on the face of the income staterment

(v) Intangible Assets

Council has not classified any assets as Intangible.

{z) MNew  Accounting Standards and
Interpretations for Application in
Future Periods

In the current year, Council adopted all of the new and
revised Standards and Interpretalions issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that
are relevant 1o its operaliors and effective for the
currert reporting period. The adoption of the new and
revised Standards and Interpretations has not
resulted in any material changes to Council's
accounting policies,

The City of Bayswater has not applied any Australian
Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have
been izsued but are not yet effective with the
exception of AASE 20157 Ameandments to Australian
Accourting  Standards — Fair Value Disclosures of
Net-for-Frofit Public Sector Enfities. Generally Council
applies standards and interpretations in accordance
with their respective commencement dzles. The
retrospective  application of AASB 20157 has
exempted Courcil from the disclosure of quantitative
information  and  sersitivity analysis  for  some
valuations catlegorised within Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy.

At the date of authorisation of the financial report,
AASB 9 Financial Instruments and AASE 20N5-6
Amendments o Austalian Accounbng Slandards -
Extending Related Party Disclosures to Nol-for-Frofit
Public Seclor Enfities are the only new accounting
standards with a future application date that are
expected to have a material impact on Council's
hinancial stalements.

From 1 July 2016 AASE 124 Relaled PFarly
Disclosures will apply to Council, which means that
Council will disclose more information about related
parties and transactiors with thase related parties

ABMSE 5, which replaces AASBE 138 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and  Measurement, s
effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1
Jaruary 2018 and must be applied retrospectively
The man impact of AASE 9§ is to change the
requirements for the classification, measurement and
disclosures associgted with financial assets. Under
the new requirements the four cument categories of
financial assets slipulated in AASE 138 will be
replaced with two measwement categones. fair value
and amertised cost and financial assets will only be
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able to be measured at amortised cost where very
specific conditions are met

As a result, Council will be required to measure its
financial assets at fair value. There will be no
financial impact on the consolidated financial
statements,

Council is still reviewing the way that revenue is
measured and recognised to identify whether AASE
15 Revenue from Confracts with Customers will
have a material impact. Te date no impact has been
identified

AASE 15 is effective from 1 January 2018 and will
replace  AASE 118 Revenue, AASE 111
Construction  Contracts and a number of
Inerpretations. It confains a comprebensive and
rebust framework for the recognition, measurement
and disclosure of revenue from contracls with
custormers.

AASE 16 is effective from 1 January 2019 and will
replace AASE 117 Leases and some lease-related
Interpretalions. The Standard requires all leases
ather than short-term and low value asset leases to
be accounted for ‘on-balance sheel' by lessees. |t
provides new guidance on the application of the
definition of lease and on sale and lease back
accourting.  The Standard largely retains the
existing lessor accounting requirements in AASE
117 and requires new and different disclosures
about leases.

Council is yet to undertake a detailed assessment of
the impacts of AASE 16, However, based on the
entity's preliminary assezsment, the Standard iz not
expected o have a material impact on the
transactions and balances recognised in the
financial staterments when it is first adopted for the
year ending 30 June 2020,

Other amended Australian Accounting Standards
and Interprelations which were ssued al the dale of
autharisation of the financial report, but have future
commencement dates are not Bkely to have a
material impact on the financial statements.

The amended Australian Accounting Standards and
Irterpretations which were issued at the date of
autharnsation of the financial report, but have future
commencement dates are not Bkely to have a
material impact on the financial statements,

{aa) Comparative Figures

To enswe comparability with the current reporting
period's figures, some comparative period line items
and amourts may have been reclassified or
individually reported for the first time within thess
financial statements andfor the notes.

(ab) Disclaimer
Mothing contained within these statements may be

taken to be an admission of any lizbility to any person
under any circumstance.
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Mote 2. Operating Revenues and Expenses

217 27 2016
3 Netes Actual Budget Actual
(a) Net Result
The Result includes
(i} Charging as an Expense:
Significant Expense
The significant expense relates to the reduction
in the fair value of the Council's infrastructure
through proft and loss, 2,738 340 . 8,561,184
Auditors Remuneration
- Audit a7 564 39,600 2711
- Cther Services 1,488 - 1,100
Bad & Doubtful Debts
Rates 4583 - 5052
General Delbtors 18,022 - 2124
Depreciation & Amortisation
Froperly, Plan! & Equipment 7ib)
- Buildings 3,448 827 3,850,000 3,487 796
- Furniture & Equipment 445 382 200,000 367,231
- Flest 315075 350,000 369,045
- Computer Equipment 468 719 202,000 390,809
- Plant 378128 565,000 398 224
Infrasiruciure Bk
- Roads 3,706 280 3,000,000 2 BET 620
- Drainage 318,289 320,000 316623
- Footpaths 534 270 550,000 512,050
- Parks & Gardens 1,985 087 1,250,420 1,337 649
- Other Infrastructure 353,220 1,000 386,800

11,965,277 10,288,420 10,434,757

Interest Expenses (Finance Costs)

Debentures Z¥a) 1,862 2135 3,308
1,862 2,135 3,208
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Notes to the Financial Statements
far the year ended 30 June 2017

Mote 2. Operating Revenues and Expenses (continued)

217 27 2016
$ Hetes Actual Budget Actual
(ii) Crediting as Revenue:

Significant Revenue (through Profit & Loss)
Changeas in Mon-Current Assels Revaluation 27723728 - 4,058 801
Increase in Equity Joint Venture 838,637 - 2770033
28, HEEEEE - 65,828,934
Interest Earnings
Irvestrments - Reserve Funds 1,153 867 1,146,850 1,142,642
Investmeants - Other Funds 1,089,791 1,320,250 1,036,007
Cther Interest Revenue 26 455 397 . 420,538
2.719,055 2 467,420 2 599,587

(b). Statement of Objectives, Reporting Programs and Nature or Type

City of Bayswater is dedicated to providing high quality services to the community through the various sarvice
orientated programs which it has established.

REPORTING PROGRAM DESCRIPTIONS
Council operations that are disclosed encompass the following service onientated activities/prograims:

GOVERNANCE

Chijective: To provide a decision making process for the efficient allocation of scarce resources.

Activilies: Includes the activities of members of council and the administrative support available to the council
for the provision of governance of the district. Other costs relate to the task of assisting elected members and
ratepayers on matters which do nat concern specific council services.

GENERAL PURPOSE FUNDING
Objective; To collect revenue 1o aliow for the pravision of services,
Activiies: Rates, general purpose government grants, and interest revenue.

LAW, ORDER, PUBLIC SAFETY

Chbijective: To provide services to help ensure a sefer and ervironmentally conscious community.
Activilies Supervision and enforcament of various local laws relating to fire prevention, animal control and
protection of the ervironment and other aspects of public safety including emergency senices
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Notes to the Financial Statements
far the year ended 30 June 2017

Mote 2. Operating Revenues and Expenses (continued)

§

(b). Statement of Objectives, Reporting Programs and Nature or Type (continued)

HEALTH

Objective. To provide sarvices o achieve community and environmental health
Activities: Maternzl and infant health faciliies, immunisation, inspection of food outlets,
noize control and pest control services,

EDUCATION AND WELFARE

Objective: To provide services to children, youth, the eldery and disadvantaged persors

Activities: Pre-school and other education senvices, child minding facilities, playgroups, senior citizens” centras,
meals on wheels and home care services.

HOUSING
Objective; To provide and maintain housing and ekderly residerts’ housing.
Activiies: Provision and maintenance of housing and elderty residents’ housing.

COMMUNITY AMENITIES

Chbjective: To provide services required by the community.

Activiies: Rubbish collection services, oparation of rubbish disposal sites, tter contral, construction and
maintenance of urban storm water drains, protection of the emvironment and administration of town planning
schemes, and public corveniences.

RECREATION AND CULTURE

Ohbjective: To establish and effectively manage infrastructure and resources which will help the secial wellbeing
of the community.

Activities: Maintenance of public halls, civic centre, aquatic centre, beaches, recreation centres and various
sporting facilities. Provisicn and maintenance of parks, gardens and playgrounds. Operation of library,

and cther cultural facilities.

TRANSFORT

Objective: To provide safe, effective and efficient transport sefvices 1o the cammurity.

Activities. Construction (if nol capdalised) and mainterance of roads, streels, footpaths, depols, cycleways,
parking facilities and traffic control &nd cleening of streets and maintenance

of street rees, sireel lighting elc
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Mote 2. Operating Revenues and Expenses (continued)

§

(b). Statement of Objectives, Reporting Programs and Nature or Type (continued)

ECONOMIC SERVICES

Cibjective: To balp promole the City and ils econamic wallbeing
Activities: Tourism and area promotion. Provision of services

including weed control, vermin control and standpipes. Building control.

OTHER PROPERTY & SERVICES
Obijective: To manitor and contrel council's overheads operating accounts
Activities: Private works operation, plant repair and cperation costs and engineering operation costs.

(c) Mature or Type Classifications

City of Bayswater Is required by the Auslralian Accounting Standards to disclose revenue and expenditure
according to its nature or type classification, The following nature or function descriptions are alse required by
State Government regulations

REVENUE

Rates

All rates levied under the Local Government Act 1995, Includes general, differential, specific area rates, minimum
rates, interim rates, back rates, ex-gratia rates, less discounts offered.  Excludes administration fees, interest on
instalments, interest on arrears, service charges and waste and sewerage rates.

Operating Grants, Subsidies and Contributions
Refer to all amourts received as grants, subsidies and contributions that are not nan-gperating grants,

Non-Operating Grants, Subsidies and Contributions

Amounts received specifically for the acquisition, construction of new or the upgrading of nan-current assets
paid to a local government, irespective of whether these amounts are received as capital grants, subsidies,
confributions or donations.

Profit on Asset Disposal
Profit on the disposal of assets including gains on the disposal of long term investments. Losses are disclosed
under the expenditure clagsifications

Feas and Charges

Revenue (other than senvice charges) from the use of facilities and charges made for local government services,
sewerage rates, rentals, hire charges, fee for service, photocopying charges, licences, sale of goods or
irforrmation, fines, penalties and administration fees.
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Mote 2. Operating Revenues and Expenses (continued)

§

(¢) Nature or Type Classifications (contirued)

Sarvice Charges

Service charges imposed under Division 6 of Part § of the Local Government Act 1555 Regulation 54 of the
Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations identifies the charges which can be raised. These are
television and radio rebroadcasting, underground electricity, property sunveillance and security and water
senvices. Excludes rubbish removal and charges for the provision of waste services,

Interest Earnings
Interest and other items of a similar nature received frem bank and investment accounts, interest on rate
instalments, interest on rate arears and interest on debtors.

Other Revenue
Other revenue, which cannot be classified under the above headings, includes dividends, discounts, rebates, ete.

EXPENDITURE

Employee Costs

All costs associgted with the employment of persons such as salanes, wages, alowences, benefits such as
vehicle and housing, superannuation, employment expenses, removal expenses, relocation expenses, worker's
compensation insurance, training costs, corferences, safety expenses, meadical examinations. fringe benefits
tax etc.

Material and Contracts

All expenditure on materials, supplies and contracts not classified under other headings. These include supply of
gaods and materials, legal expenses, consultancy, maintenance agreements, communication expensss,
advertising expenses, membership, periodicals, publications, hire expenses, rental, leases, postage and freight etc

Utilities {Gas, Electricity, Water, etc.)
Expendilures made lo respective agencies for the provision of power, gas of water, Excludes expenditure incurred
for the re-instatement of road works on behall of these agencies

Depreciation & Amortisation on Non-Current Assets
Depreciation and amortisation expensze raized on all classes of assets.

Loss on Asset Disposal
Loss on the dizposal of fixed azsets.

Interest Expenses
Interest and other costs of finance paid, including costs of finance for loan debentures, overdraft accommodation
and re-financing expenses.

Insurance
All insurance other than worker's compensation and health benefit insurance included as a cost of employment

Other Expenditure
Statutory fees, taxes, provision of bad debls. Denations and subsidies made to community groups.,
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Mote 3. Cash and Cash Equivalents

2017 2016
$ Hotes Actual Actual
Cash - Unrestncted 23815 445 21,331,050
Cash - Restricted 45,318 982 42,996 870
Taotal Cash and Cash Equivalents 14(a) BE, 235 427 54,327,720
The following restrictions have been imposed
by regulations or other externally imposed
requirements:

City Buildings & Amenities 12 1,506,735 1,844 064
Bore & Reticulaticn 12 625,918 609,331
Buailding Furniture & Equipment 12 536,367 619,503
Major Capital Works 12 3,143,716 4,213,688
Flant & Works Equipment 1z 191,787 186,714
Werkers Compensation 12 578,556 477,008
Long Service Leave & Entitlernents 12 1,190,894 1,285,148
Bayswater Waves Aguatic Centre 12 348,430 471,226
The RISE 12 555,954 550,956
Maylands Waterland 12 56,508 55,006
Aged Perscns Homes - General Reserves 12 17,272,240 15,875,689
Aged Persons Homes - Prudertial Requirements 12 2 485 048 2417 402
Civic Centre 12 565,954 550,956
Roads & Drainage 12 487 041 474134
Foctpath/Cyeleway 12 312,734 550,956
Flaygrourd & Parks 12 1,613,926 1,571,156
Golf Courses 12 1,086,204 1,008, 314
Street Scapes 12 669,492 651,750
Infarmaticn Technology 1z 190,314 75,474
Eric Singleton Bird Sanctuary 12 1,131,910 1,101,913
Les Hansman Centre Developrment 12 4,787 516 4,650,643
Senior Citizens Building 12 338,572 330,574
Marley City Centre 12 565,954 550,956
Landfill Resloration 12 541,827 550,956
Su=taineble Ervironment 12 565,954 550,956
Maorley Sport & Recreation Centre 12 565,954 550,956
Community Housing 12 32,378 3,520
General Waste Management 12 26273 25,577
River Restcration 12 170,902 166,717
Bayswater Tennis Club 12 149 418 z
Strategic Land Acquisition 12 1,508 657 -
Total Reserves 44,417 329 42,200,344
Unspent Grants 2d) 802,653 796,326
Total Restricted Cash 45,319,982 42,995 670
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Mote 4. Other Current Assets

2017 2016
$ Nobes Actual Actual
Prepayments 110,526 190,627
Mote 5. Trade & Other Receivables
Current
Rates 633,912 74T 548
Govermment Grants 562977 623,560
GST Net Position 351,308 403,503
Home Care 7,083 19,968
Infringements 221,194 257,025
Private Works 22 6086 6,320
Recrealion 230,089 A8, 258
Reimbursemems/Contnbutions 1,803,591 1,452 528
Rertals/_eases 38,554 80,751
Self Supporting Loan Debtors 5977 10,825
Other 135,902 118,615
Total Current Trade & Other Receivables 4043170 3,780,902
MNon-Current
Rates Cutstanding - Pensioners 650,823 614,813
Self Supporting Loan Debtors 19,904 25,881
Other 128, 411 100,146
Total Non-Current Trade & Other Receivables B08 138 740,840
Mote 6. Inventories
Current
Fuel and Materials 98,771 112,780
Total Current Inventories 98,771 112,780
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Mote 7a. Property, Plant and Equipment

Financial Stelements 2017

2017 2018

3 Notes Actual Actual
Land - Independert Valuation - Independent Valkstion 2017 303,248,397 303,248,387
Impairment IncrementfOther 21,098 603 5,266,000
Less Disposzls (560,000 (560,000)
323,786,000 307542 387

Land Under Control - Independant Valuation 2016 15,860,000 15,860,000
Revaluation Decrement {5,450,000) (5,450,000
10,410,000 10,410,000

Buildings - Independent Vialuation 2017 214,787,900 208,684,524
Additions after Valuation 1,480,508 2,745,346
Less Disposals {171,239) (49,918
Revaluation Increrment 13,558,304 -
Less Accumulated Depreciation (47,118, 965)  (40,253,291)
182,543,509 171,116,761

Furniture & Equipment - Management Valuation 2016 2,578 688 1,357,052
Additions after Valuaticn 665,745 373,703
Revaluation Incrament - 1,219,636
Less Accumulated Depreciation (574,032) (127,650
2 658,402 2,822,741

Fleet - Management Valuation 2016 2,715,965 2819 968
Additions affer Valuation 1,836,353 g70,751
Disposals (1,190 685) {560,014)
Revaluation Decrement - (180,306)
Less Accumulated Depreciation (372,588) (57.511)
Transfers - 76,303
3,108,047 3,068,191

Computer Equipment - Management Valuation 2016 554 500 553,718
Additiones afler Valuation 1,665,578 B93,875
Revaluation Increment - 782
Less Accumulated Depreciation (620 388 {151,670
1,599,690 1,296,706

Fant - Managemert Valuation 2016 3,050,803 3,072,387
Addifions after Valuation 1,482 546 678,035
Disposals (575,410 (371,480)
Revaluation Incremeants - 160,473
Less Accumulated Depreciation (378,128) {105,765)
Transfers = (76,303)
3,579,611 3,357 357

Total Property, Plant & Equipment Tib) 527 696,458 500015152
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Mote Ba. Infrastructure

Financal Stalaments 2017

2047 2018
$ Motes Actual Actual
Roads - Management Valuation 2017 &7 408 580 88,270,770
Drainage - Management Valuation 2017 33,54 079 39,184 284
Foctpaths - Mansgement Valuation 2017 27822730 27,315,850
Parks & Gardens - Management Yaluation 2017 18,333 698 20332118
Cther Infrastructure - Management Valuation 2017 3,427 349 3,942 830
Total Infrastructure B{h) 186533 446 189045852
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Motes to the Financial Statements
far the year ended 30 June 2017

Mote 8. Trade and Other Payables

2047 2016
$ Actual Actual
Current
Sundry Creditors 4531 585 4837020
Accrued Interest an Debentures 202 438
Accrued Salaries and Wages 922525 789,199
Refundable Contributions 24 380 413 25172035
Total Current Trade and Other Payables 29,844 225 30,798,692
Mon-Current
Creditors and Accruals 11,500 11,800
Total Non-Current Trade and Other Payables 11,500 11,800

! The Cily of Bayswaler Aged Persons Homes holds $24,838 413 in refundable contributions ($10,6:33, 445 in
Accommedation Bonds/Refundable Accommodation Deposits and 513 283,067 in Independent Living Unit
entry contributions). These contributicns have been classified as current liabilities 2s the provider does not
hawve the right to defer settlierment. However the expected selllement of the liabilty is expected to be greater
than twelve months.
Accommedation bonds ane charged for admittance in accordance with current State and Federal Government
regulations. These fees can vary according to each individuals finanzial status and, in accordance with currant
palicy embodying the relevant regulations, varying amounts are deducted for "Retention” over & period of 5 years

Mote 10. Borrowings

207 2016
$ Hotes Actual Actual
Current
- Debentures 23(a) 5877 10,825
Total Current Borrowings 5977 10,825
MNon-Current
- Detentures 23(a) 19,505 25,882
Total Non-Current Borrowings 19,905 25 882
Additional detail on borrewings is provided in Mote 23,
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Mote 11. Provisions

2017 2018
% Actual Actual
Current
Annual Leave 2470473 2817 396
Long Service Leave 2.388,501 2,385,450
Total Current Provisions 4 857 374 5202 856
Mon-Current
Laong Service Leave 445 €40 499 552
Total Mon-Current Provisions 445 &40 409 £52
Movements in Provisions
2016 2017
GOpening . R a suren and Unusad Closing
Class of Provision Balance ::::'::; Mrw;ndu:‘i: effects due to amounts Balance
as at 17716 | Discounting reversed  as al IVEMT
Annual Leave 2,817,356 2235102  (2604.812) 22,787 - 2470473
Long Service Leave 2885012 416,233 (572,997) 104,293 - 283254
TOTAL 5,702,408 2,651,334  (3,177,809) 127,080 - 5,303,014

Employees Leave Entitternents & Cn-Costs represents these benefits accrued and payable and an estimate of those
that will become payable in the future as a result of past service,
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Mote 12. Reserves - Cashfinvestment Backed

217 27 2016
3 Actual Bu dget Actual
(a). City Buildings & Amenities
Opening Balance 1,944 0B4 1,968,305 1,956,305
Amount Set Azide f Transfer Io Reserve f Interest 52671 48 200 54 576
Arnount Used / Transfer from Reserve {66,817}

1,996 735 2,018,505 1.944 054

(k). Bore & Reticulation

Opening Bzlance 60923 603,747 784 897

Amourtt Set Aside [ Transfer to Reserve f Interest 16,587 15,240 18,484

Amount Used / Transfer from Resarve - - {194,050
525518 524,587 509,23

(c). Building Furniture & Equipment

Opening Balance 519,503 618283 602,483
Amount Set Aside { Transfer o Reserve [ Interest 16 864 15475 17 020
535,367 534,458 619,503

(d). Major Capital Works

Opening Balance 4213 698 4 328 85 5,236 357
Arnount Set Aside [ Transfer lo Reserve / Interesl 538 882 108,225 131,454
Transfer to Strategic Land Acquisition {1,500,000) - -
Armount Used / Transfer from Reserve (108,864) (118,174 (1,154,113}

2143716 4318036 4213 698

(e). Plant & Works Equipment

Opening Balance 185,714 189,884 181,584

Amount Set Aside / Transfer lo Reserve [ Interest 5083 4747 5,130
191,797 184 631 186,714

(). Workers Compensation

Opening Balance 477,008 476,753 463 803

Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve [ Interest 102 548 11,520 13,105
579 556 488 673 477,008

(g). Long Service Leave & Entitlements

Opening Balance 1,786 145 1,160,271 1,128 871
Armount Set Aside § Transfer o Reserve f Interast 34745 28,000 157,178
Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve (130,000} (130,000) -
1,190 854 1,058 271 1,286 149
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Mote 12. Reserves - Cashflnvestment Backed (continued)

2047 2017 2016
§ Actual Budget Actual
(h). Bayswater Waves Aquatic Centre
Opening Balance 471226 470,817 534732
Amount Set Azide f Transfer Io Reserve f Interest 12,252 11,760 14473
Amount Used ! Transfer from Reserve (134 088) (407 405) (77.579)
349 430 74872 471,228
(i). The RISE
Cpening Bzlance 550,556 550,650 535,819
Arnount Set Aside / Transfer to Resenve / Interest 14 688 13770 15137
585,554 564,439 550,956
(j). Maylands Waterland
Opening Balance 55,095 55,067 53,582
Amourtt Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve f Interest 1,500 1,375 1,514
56 586 56 442 55 096
(k). Aged Persons Homes - General Reserves
Opening Balance 15,875 689 15,245 7M1 14,834 551
Amount Set Aside f Tranzfer Io Reserve f Interest 1,396 551 483214 1,807 522
Amount Used ! Transfer Irom Reserve = (TEE,784)

17,272 240 15,728,935 15,875,689

(). Aged Persons Homes - Prudential Reguirements

Opening Balance 2,417 402 2,415,000 2,349 800

Amount Set Aside [/ Transfer to Reserve f Interest 67 644 75,000 67,602
2,485 046 2,480,000 2,417,402

(m). Civic Centre

Opening Balance 550,956 550,659 335819
Amount Set Aside / Transfer In Reserve [ Interest 14588 13,755 15,137
565954 564 434 550,956
(n). Roads & Drainage
Opening Balance 474 134 474 801 534,554
Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve [/ Interest 12 807 11,870 13,653
Armount Used ! Transfer from Reserve - (124.657) {74,083)
487 041 362 004 474 134
(o). Footpath/Cycleway
Opening Balance 560,956 550,659 535,819
Armount Set Aside f Transfer lo Reserve f Interest 11,778 13,765 15137
Arnount Used / Transfer from Reserve (250,000) (250,000 -
312,734 314,434 550,556
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far the year ended 30 June 2017

Mote 12. Reserves - Cashflnvestment Backed (continued)

217 27 2016
3 Actual Budﬂet Actual
(p). Playground & Parks
Opening Balance 1,571,156 1,561,355 1,187 235
Amount Set Azide f Transfer Io Reserve f Interest 42770 39,035 53391
Armount Used ! Transfer from Reserve - {55,000} (150,000}

1,613,926 1,505,420 1,571,156

(). Golf Courses

Opening Balance 1,098,314 1,098,139 1,068,139
Amount Set Aside [ Transfer to Reserve [ Interest 29,452 27,433 30175
Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve {41,602) (500,000 .

1,085,204 525,592 1,098,214

(r). Street Scapes

Opening Balance 851,750 547 S48 528,752
Arnount Set Aside / Transter o Reserve / Interest 17, 742 18,130 312,004
Amount Used § Tranzsfer from Reserve - - (189 005)

658 492 G653 738 651 750

(s). Information Technology

Opening Balance 75,474 112,555 -
Amount Set Aside [ Transfer o Reserve [ Interest 114 840 115,370 75474
180 314 227 825 75,474

(t}. Eric Singleton Bird Sanctuary

Opening Balance 1,101 813 1,101,630 1,071,639

Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve f Interest 29,897 27 50 30,274
1,131,910 1,129,180 1,101,813

(u). Les Hansman Centre Development

Opening Bzlance 4,660 643 4 557 801 4288811

Amount Set Aside / Transfer o Reserve [ Interest 126,873 116 445 ar, 73z
4 7HY 516 4 774 246 4 BE0 643

(v). Senior Citizens Building

Opening Balance 330574 330,332 321,492

Armount Set Azide f Transfer Io Reserve f Interest BSOR B 260 5082
330672 338 652 330574

(w). Morley City Centre

Opening Balance 550 956 550,659 535,819

Amount Set Aside [ Transfer to Reserve / Interest 14,558 13,765 15,137
565,954 564 434 550,556
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Mote 12. Reserves - Cashflnvestment Backed (continued)

2047 2017 2016
§ Actual Budget Actual
(x). Landfill Restaration
Opening Balance 550 856 322832 535819
Amount Set Azide f Transfer Io Reserve f Interest 14 868 BOV0D 15,137
Amount Used § Transfer from Reserve (13 857} {55 408) -
551,927 275 494 550 556
(v). Sustainable Environment
Cpening Balance 550,556 550,650 535,819
Amount Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve f Interest 14558 13,763 15,137
585,554 564,434 550,956
(z). Morley Sport & Recreation Centre
Opening Balance 580,556 550,650 535,819
Amount Set Aside { Transfer to Reserve [ Interest 14 298 13755 15137
565 954 564 434 550 &56
(aa). Community Housing
Opening Balance 31520 31,504 30,654
Amount Set Aside f Tranzfer Io Reserve f Interest 858 790 B55
32,378 32,794 31,520
(ab). General Waste Management
Opening Balance 25577 25554 24 874
Amourt Set Aside / Transfer to Reserve [ Interest GOG G40 703
26,273 26,204 25 577
(ac). River Restoration
Opening Balance 166,717 165,133 4
Amount Set Aside J Transfer lo Reserve [ Interest 4185 - 166, 717
170,802 165,133 166,717
(ad). Bayswater Bowling Club Capital Improvements
Opening Balance - -
Armount Set Aside § Transler lo Reserve [ Interest 74,000 84,000
Amount Used / Transfer from Reserve (74 000) -
- 84 000
(ae). Bayswater Tennis Club
Opening Balance - -
Amourtt Set Aside § Transfer lo Reserve [ Interest 150,002 150,000
Armount Used § Transfer from Reserve (S84) .
149 418 150,000
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Mote 12. Reserves - Cashflnvestment Backed (continued)

2047 2047 2016
$ Actual Budget Actual
(af). Strategic Land Acquisition
Opening Balance - - -
Amount Set Azide f Transfer Io Reserve f Interest 0.e57 - -
Transfer from Major Capital Works Reserve 1,500,000 - -

1,509 657 . =
Total Reserves 44 417 329 41,185,301 42 200, 344
Summary of Reserve Transfers
Transfers to Reserves
City Buildings & Amenities 52671 48 200 54 576
Bare & Reticulation 16 587 15,240 18 484
Building Furniture & Equipment 16,864 15,475 17,020
Major Capital Works 538 882 108,225 131,454
Flant & Works Equipment 5083 4747 5130
Workers Compensation 102,548 11,520 13,105
Long Service Leave & Entitliements 34745 28,000 157,178
Bayswater Waves Aguatic Centre 12,292 11,760 14,473
The RISE 14,998 13,770 15,137
Maylands Waterland 1500 1375 1,514
Aged Perscne Homes - General Reserves 1,386 £51 483 214 1,807 522
Aged Perscns Homes - Prudential Reqguirements 67 B44 75,000 67 602
Civic Centre 14,588 13,785 15,137
Roads & Crainage 12807 11,870 13,653
Foolpath/Cycleway 11,778 13,765 15,137
Flaygrourd & Parks 42 770 39,035 533,511
Golf Courses 20 492 27 453 30175
Street Scapes 17,742 16,190 312,004
Informaticn Technology 114,840 115,370 75,474
Eric Singleton Bird Sanctuary 29,597 27 541 30,274
Les Hansman Centre Development 126,873 116,445 amTaz
Senior Citizens Building B.558 8260 5,082
Martey City Centre 14558 13,755 15137
Landfill Restoration 14,868 8,070 15137
Sustaineble Ervironment 14558 13,755 15137
Marley Sport & Recreation Centre 14,688 13,785 15137
Commurity Housing 858 780 858
General Waste Management it €40 703
River Restoration 4185 - 168,717
Bayswater Bowling Club Capital Improverments 74,000 84,000 -
Bayzwater Tennis Club 150,002 150,000 -
Strategic Land Acquisition 8 657 - -
Total Transfers to Reserves 2,970,020 1,493,415 3,938,018
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Mote 12. Reserves - Cashflnvestment Backed (continued)

217 27 2016
3 Actual Budget Actual
Summary of Reserve Transfers [conlinued)
Transfars from Resarves
City Buikdings & Amenities - - (BB.817)
Bore & Reticudalion - - (194,050)
Major Capital Works (1085 864) (119,174) {1,154 113)
Long Service Leave & Entitlernents (130,000) (130,000) -
Bayswater Waves Agualic Centre {134 088) (407 403) (77 .579)
Aged Perscns Homes - General Reserves - - (766,784)
Roads & Drainage . (124 657) (74,083)
Foctpath/Cycleway (250 000) {250,000} .
Playground & Parks - {95,000) (150,000}
Golf Courses (41 602) {500,000} .
Street Scapes - - (185,008)
Landfill Restorabon (13 BE7) {55,408) -
Bayswater Bowling Club Capital Improvements (74,000} -
Bayswater Tenns Club (584) - -
Total Transfers from Reserves (753,035) [1,681,654) (2,672,832)
Total Net Transfer to/{from) Reserves 2 216,885 (188,238) 1,266,186

All of the cash backed reserve accounts are supparted by money held in financial institutions and match the
amaunts shown as restricted cash in Mote 3 and 4 to this financial report.

In acccrdance with council resoluticns in refation to each reserve account, the purpose for which the reserves
are set aside are as follows:

City Buildings & Amenities

For the purpose of preserving and renewing Councils buildings.

Bore & Reticulation

For the installaton of new bores and reticulation, and the replacemnent of old bore and reticutation systems, dus
to wear and tear.

Building Furniture & Equipment

To provide a cash backed reserve for the purpose of furniture & equipment reguired in Council's buildings,
Major Capital Works

To finance the cost of major capital works programs as approved by Council.
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Mote 12. Reserves - Cashflnvestment Backed (continued)

Plant & Works Equipment
To fund the cost of acguiring plant & equipment needed to provide for the day-to-dey operational requirements
of the City

Werkers Compensation
To finance Workers' Compeansalion costs in excess of premium deposits, using the burning cost method (as per
Councils Workers Compensation Policy).

Long Service Leave & Entitlements
To pravide for the payment to employees of Long Service Leave and ather approved entitiements.

Bayswater Waves Aquatic Centre

To fund asset management reguirements of the Bayswater Waves Aguatic Centre,
The RISE

To fund asset managements requiremeants of the RISE.

Maylands Waterland

To fund asset management requirements of the Maylands Waterland facility.

Aged Persons Homes - General Reserves

This reserve resfricts funds held for the Independent Living Units and Residential Care Facilibes owned and
controlled by the City. These funds are managed in accordance with the relevant statutory requirements and
palicies

Aged Persons Homes - Prudential Requirements

To provide 2 cazsh backed prudential reserve to meet the accommoedation obligations for Residential Care
Facilities and Independanl Living Linits

Aged Persons Homes - Employee Entitlements

To provide restricted funds to meet the City's contractuzl obligations for Residential Care Facilities and
Independent Living Unit activities.

Civic Centre

To make pravision for the asset management needs of the Civic Centre

Roads & Drainage

To set aside funds for the asset management reguirements of the City's road and drainage infrastructure.
Footpath/Cycleway

To set aside funds for the asset management requirements of the City's footpath and cycleways infrastructure,
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Mote 12. Reserves - Cashflnvestment Backed (continued)

Playground & Parks

To set aside funds for the esset management requirements of the City's playground and parks infrastructure.
Gaolf Courses

To sel aside funds for the asset management requiremerts of Ihe Cily's golf courses

Street Scapes

To provided for the renewszl of wban streetscapes.

Infermation Technolegy

To pravided for the mairtenance of the City's information technalogy requirements including general computer
replacements for elected members and employees

Eric Singleton Bird Sanctuary

To et aside funds for the asset management requirements of the Eric Singleton Bird Sanctuary.

Les Hansman Centre Development

To set aside funds for the redevelopment of the Les Hansman Community Centre.

Senior Citizens Building

To set aside funds for the asset managemeant requirements of the Cily's senior citzens centres.
Merley City Centre

To provided funds for the future development of the Morley City Centre.

Landfill Restoration

To pravide funding for the review and any restoration requirements of the Swan River Foreshore
Sustainable Environment

To provide funding for strategic emvironmental projects such as foreshaore rehabilitation and the Eric Singleton
Bird Sanctuany

Meorley Sport & Recreation Centre

To set aside funds for the asset management requirements of the Morley Sport & Recrealion Cenitre,
Community Housing

To set aside funds for the asset management requirements of Community Housing.

General Waste Management

To set aside funds for the future development of Waste Management.

River Restoration

To set aside funds for the restoration of the river.

Bayswater Bowling Club Capital Improvements
To set aside funds for the future development of the Bayswater Bowling Club,

Bayswater Tennis Club
To set aside funds for the future development of the Bayswater Tennis Club.

Strategic Land Acquisition
To praovide funds for future land acauisition
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Mote 13. Reserves - Asset Revaluation

Financial Stelements 2017

27 2016
$ Hotes Actual Actual
Assel revaluation reserves have ansen on revaluation of the following
classes of assets:

(a). Land - Independent Valuation
Opening Balance 304151614  208,895614
Revaluation Increment Tk 15,843 603 5,256,000
Revaluation Decrement Tk - -
319,995 217 304,151,614
(b). Buildings
Opening Balance 105,331,423 105,331,423
Revaluation Increment (k) 13,556,204 -
Revaluation Decrement T . .
118,887,727 105,331,423
(c). Fumiture & Equipment
Opening Balance 1,219 835 -
Revaluation Increment b - 1,219,636
Revaluation Decrement i) - -
1,219,838 1,219,836
(d). Computer Equipment
Opening Balance 171,807 171,025
Revaluation Increment Tib) - 782
Revaluation Decrement Tl - -
171,807 171,807
(e). Fleet/Plant
Opening Balance 75,353 85,196
Revaluation Increment k) . (18,833)
Revaluation Decrement (b = =
75,363 75,363
(f). Roads
Opening Balance 44 245 503 45 577 984
Revaluation Increment Bl - -
Revaluation Decrement B{h) (753 556) (2,332 481)
43 481,537 44,245 503
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Mote 13. Reserves - Asset Revaluation

27 2016
$ Hotes Actual Actual
(g). Drainage
Opening Balance 15,283 852 15,335,533
Revaluation Increment BB 556 349 -
Revaluation Decrerment &) (52 142)

15,34n,m1' 15,283,852

(h). Footpaths

Opening Balance 18,625,330 18,017 576
Revaluation Increrment Bb) - 607,755
Revaluation Decrement Bl {1,173.478)

17,451,852 18,625,330

(i). Parks & Gardens

Opening Balance - 1,104,319
Fevaluation Incrament ] - -
Revaluation Decrement BB - (1,104,319

(i). Other Infrastructure

Opening Balance 3,917 531 4 538 348
Revaluation Incrament Bl 5 &
Revaluation Decrement Bk (285 084) (520 815)

3,832,447 3,917,831
(k). EM.R.C

Opening Balance 7,825,547 5,258,465
Revaluation Increment - 2,666,082
Revaluation Decrement

7,925,547 7,925,547

Total Asset Revaluation Reserves 528,681,334 500947 606
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Mote 14. Notes to the Statement of Cash flows

2017 2017 2018

3 Netes Actual Budget Actual
(a). Reconciliation of Cash

For the purpeses of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash

inzludes cash on hand and cash equivalents, net of

outstanding bank overdrafis. Cash &t the end of the

reporting period is reconcilied to the related items in

the Staterment of Financial Position as follows:

Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 69,235 427 51,037,543 64,327,720
(k). Reconciliation of Net Cash Provided

By Cperating Activities to Net Result
Met Result 32515385 4,742,238 3,768 687
Depreciation 11,985 277 10,288 420 10,434 757
Write Down (Lp) in Fair Value of Imestments 2,738 340 - 8,561,184
{ProfitiLoss on Sale of Assets 422 968 204,238 (82,261)
Joirt Venlures movement (B3B 63T) - (2,770,033)
Cther Mon Cash Movements - Infrastrucuture Revaluaticn (27,733,728) - (4,058 501)
Decreaze/(Increase) in Receivables (329 565) (149, 219) 1,006,206
Decreasel(Increase) in Imventories 14,008 - {11,155)
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Current Assals a0,1m - 3225
Increasef{Decrease) in Payables & Accruals (965 154) (1,116 424) 2,351,358
Increasef{Decrease) in Accruad Interest Payable (135) - (581}
IncreaseiDecrease) in Employee Leave Enfitlernents (399,205) . (240,622)
Grants/Contributions for the Development of Assets (4,012 352) (2,325 351) (2,101,034)
Net Gash from Operating Activities 13,447,112 11,643,962 16,860,840
Mote 15. Contingent Liabilities
il
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Mote 16. Capital and Leasing Commitments

27 2016
3 Actual Actual
(a). Operating Lease Commitments
Mon-cancellable operating leases contracted for but not capitalised
in fhe accounts
Payable:
- net later than one year - .
= later than one year but not later than five years 189,552 250,687
- later than five years - .
Total Operating Lease Commitments 189,962 250,687
(k). Capital Expenditure Commitments
Contracted for:
Bulding Construction & Improvements 1,247 016 -
Fecreation Developmert 458 &5 208,334
RoadFootpath Development 308,150 g41 146
Park=/Enwvironment Development 1,921 803 486 100
Total Capital Expenditure Commitments 3,843,278 1,645 580
Payable:
- not later than one year 3043378 1,645,580
- later than one year but not later than five years . -
- later than five years - -
Total Capital Expenditure Commitments 3,943,278 1,645,580
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Mote 17. Related Party Disclosures

Councils obyectives can and in some cases are best met through the use of separale entilies & operations

These operations and entities range from 100% ownership and control through 1o lower levels of cwnership and
conlrel via co-operative arrangements with other Councils, Bodies and other Outside Organisations

The accounting and reporting for these varous entities, operations and arrangements vanes in accordance with
accourting standards.

The City of Bayswater is in joint venture with:
(a) Homeswest - Community Housing Project

Ten (10) Houses.
- Stage 1 Mo 2 Hacdrill Street (4 Units)
- Stage 2 Mo 20 Francis Street (6 Units)

The City has a 25% interest in the project. Operating costs are funded by the City from rental received on the
houses Excess income over expendiure is retained as a restricted cash itemn for future commurity bousing
projects.

(b) City of Swan - Altone Park - a community, sporting and recreational facility
The financial statements reflect the City of Bayswaters interest in the joirt development with the Cily of Swan for
the development of a community recreation and sparting facility at Altone Park

The City of Bayswater has the following interest in the assets and ligbilities of the venture
- Pavilicn - 50%

- Recreation Centre - 50%

- Library - 33%

Operating costs are shared on the basis of each interest
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Mote 17. Related Party Disclosures (cortinued)

The City's share of the assels and liabilities o each veriune are recorded in the staterment of financial pesition
under the following classificaticrs:

207 2018
5 Actual Acual
Buildings
- Community Housing Prajesct 1.408,4588 1,343,412

(c) Eastern Metropolitan Regional Council

The City of Bayswater is a participart in the Eastern Metropolitan Regional Council (EMRC).

Comprising six member councils it is primariy cancerned with refuse ervironmental and safety services.

2017 * 2016

City of Bayswater 32,684,701 18.6T% 31,846,064
Town of Bassendean 7,538,338 4.31% 7,275,988
Shire of Mundaring 18,974,032 10.84% 18,082 545
City of Swan 57 074,405 38.37% 60,228 185
Shire of Kalamunda 28,747,212 16.43% 27 488,876
City of Belmont 19 580,184 11.42% 18,683 217
175,009,772 100% 163,615,977

2mT 2016

Council Council

Actual Actual

The City's interest in the assats and liabilities of the EMRC is as follows:

Current Assets 17,663,192 17,617,832
Mon-Currert Assets 17,424,086 17,083,265
Total Assets 35,087,278 34,701,097
Cumrent Liabilites 9&7.007 1,413,332
Mon Current Liabilities 1,415,570 1,441,701
Total Liabilities 2,402,577 2,855,033
MNet Assets 32,684,701 31,846,064
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Mote 17. Related Party Disclosures (cortinued)

(d) WALGA Local Government Housing Trust

The City of Bayswater retaing an equity interest in the Western Australian Local Government Association
(WALGA) as a consequence of 8 contribution towards the cost of purchasing Local Government House

The tofal funds retained in the Local Government House Trust towards the cost of the WALGA building
amaounted lo $582 000 over 620 unil allocations. The City of Bayswaler has for the first lime capitalised its
share of 10 Units amounting to 5178 835 based on the Trust's 2014 financial staterments.

Council's Share of Net Income Council's Share of Net Assets

Actual Actual Actual Actual

2017 2046 2047 2016

WALGA - Unit Housing Trust - - 178,885 178,885
EMRC 538 837 2 770,033 32,684,701 31, 848, 064
Total 838,637 2,770,033 32,863,586 22 024,949

(e) Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Transactions with Key Management Personnel

The City's key managemeant personnel are as follows:

Any person(s) having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the enlity,
dereclly or indirectly, including any elected member, are considared key management parsonnel

The compensation paid to Key Management Personnel for comprises:

2017
Short-Term Employee Benefits 1,080,170
Post-Employmert Benefits 112,567
Cther Long-Term Benefits 14,888
Termination Benefits 261,884
Total 1,468 508

Short-Term Employee Benefits
These amounts inzlude all salaries, paid leave, fringe benefits and cash bonuses awarded to KMP. Details in
respect to fees and benefits paid to elected members may be found at Note 30

Post-Employment Benefits
These amounts are the cument year's estimated cost of providing for the City's superannuation contributions made

during the year.

Other Long-Term Benefits
These amounts represent long service benefits accruing during the year.

Termination Benefits
Thesa amounts represent termiration benefits paid to KMP,
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Mote 18. Trust Funds

Balance Amounts Amounts Balance
3 1=Jul-1&  Received Paid 30-Jun-17

All monies held in the Trust are excluded from the financial
staternents as the City hag no control over these funds,

Cash in Lieu of POS 3,300,995 253,649 . 3,584, 64
Town Planning Bonde/Other 753,308 332410 {249,037 836,771
BRE/BCITF TIA17 502,193 (518,287 57,323
Crossoverfiferge Bonds 531,872 400,720 {390,543) 542,043
Unclaimed Monies 53,987 0,498 (17,253 46,182
Cther 430,884 116,324 (B7,075) 489,123
5,153,553 1,644,784 {1,242,241) 5,556,108

Mote 19. Total Assets Classified by Function and Activity
217 2016
% Actual Actual
Governance / Administration 1,245 814 1,104,080
Law, Order, Public Safety 3,350,835 3,130,872
Health 980,802 971,473
Education & Welfare 51,151,736 53,583,473
Housing 1,784 727 1,518,757
Community Amerities 324605014 308,497 672
Recreation & Culture 201,886,806 278,780,558
Transpart 21072038 20,332 118
Eccnomic Services 435118 337 S50
Other Property & Services 17.705 823 20,503 642
Unallocated 107 159618 101177 817

821,389,622 790,238,822

MNote 20. Acquisition of Assets

2017 2047
-] Actual Budﬁ
By Program
Law, Order, Public Safety
Bailding 28,855 18,500
Computer Equipment 286,408 384,572
Equipment 5025 70,288
Fleet 155,052 .
Infrastructure - 18,000
Health
Buildings 1126 -
Fleet 52 093 -
Furniture & Equipment 31,129 2B 612
{continued on nexd pege]
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Mote 20. Acquisition of Assets (continued)

27 2017
$ Actual Budget
Education & Welfare
Building 44,441 a974,825
Furniture & Equipment 57,180 103,000
Infrastructure - 1,000
Housing
Bailding 2240 43,000
Community Amenities
Infrastructure . 417 458
Recreation & Culture
Building 1,345,177 3,145,778
Plant - 4,840
Computer Equipment 4,114 s
Furniture & Equipment 178,831 302,850
Fleet 56,7 -
Flant 121,417 -
Infrastructure 2 735007 4 605 899
Transport
Infrastructure 5,942 429 5,645 718
Economic Services
Flest 233 6883 .
Other Property & Services
Infrastructure 122 823 164 030
Buildings 68 659 103,000
Computer Equipment 481 181 797 515
Fleet/Plant 1,126 859 1,996,000
Furmniture & Equipment 19,878 38,500

13,134 629 18,874 355
By Class
Froperfy, Plant & Equipmernd k)
- Buildings 1,490, 505 4285103
= Furniture & Equipment 282043 544 250
- Computer Equipment 771,704 1,192 087
- Plant 1,790,114 2,000,240
Infrasiruciura i)
- Roads 3,608 056 5,438 074
- Drainage 119,735 184 279
- Footpaths 2214628 718,230
- Parks & Gardens 2725007 4,389 892
- Other Infrastructure 122 823 121,800

13,134,629 18,874,355

page 51

Page 101



ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 12 DECEMBER 2017

Finandial Stalements 2017
City of Bayswater

Motes to the Financial Statements
far the year ended 30 June 2017

Mote 21. Disposal of Assets

Net Book Value Sale Price ProfitiLoss)
3 Motes Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget

The following assets were disposed of during the year

By Asszet Class
Froperly, Plant & Equipmern! (k)
Buildings 171,230 = L - {171,239) -
Fleet 630,671 632,118 456,767 851,000  (173904)  (81,118)
Flant 203,930 252,420 126,105 129,200 (TTE25)  (123,120)
By Program
Froperly, Plant & Equipment
Govemance 108,759 - 80,508 - {28,191) -
Law, Order, Public Safety - 92,492 - 80,000 - (12,492)
Health 72661 91,350 55,051 78,000 {1BE10)  (15.350)
Education & VWelfare 24,300 - 14,630 - {9,760) -
Housing 7,968 . - - (7 968) :
Community Amerities 16,437 27,750 10,628 28,000 (5, 794) 250
Recreation & Culture 245,184 177,875 44,773 70000 (203405)  (98.475)
Trarspart 236,605 &8 970 157,056 68,300 (81548)  (31,620)
Eccnomic Services 121,742 125,783 108,226 118,000 {16 506) (6.783)
Cther Property & Services 166,052 P69 768 114,875 230,000 (51177 (33,764)
Total 1,005,840 864,538 582,872 680,300  (422.968)  (204,223)
2017 207 2016
$ Actual Budget Actual
Summary
Profit on Asset Disposals - 250 490,071
Loss on Asset Disposals (422 568) (204,488) (407 210)
Het ProfitLoss) on Disposal of Assets (422,968) (204,238) 82,261
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Mote 22. Financial Ratios

Amounts Indicator Target Pricr Periods
$ 2017 2017 2016 2015
Liguidity Ratio
1. Current Ratio'"
CUITEI'IﬁISEEEESE Re-s_mc_tg-.:l Current As&els 28187912 Sp5:q4 =100 1 155 128
Current Lizabilities less Liabilities Associated with 13,759,397
Restricled Assets
Debt Ratio

2, Debt Service Cover Ratio "
Crperating Surphus befors Inlerest and Depreciation Exp 12726444

100341 :° =200:1 148,26 20561

Principal and Interest Repayments 12,607

Coverage Ralio

3. Own Source Revenue Coverage Ratio "'

Cren Source Dperating Rlevenue 65,376,611 % T6.61% 4
COperating Expense B2E738T5 TR 4% o B4
Financial Periormance Ralo

4, Operating Surplus Ratio '

Operating Revenue less Operating Expense 769,306 P

Crwn Source Operating Revenue B5376,611 LS =1 A7 S0
Assal Managemen! Rahos

5. Asset Consumption Ratic
Depreciated Replacement Cost of Depreciable Assets 300,053, 504
Current Replacement Cost of Depreciable Assets 571042604

*** These ratios have been amended to reflect the interpretation and clarfication
of gefintions in the Financial Management Regulations.

66.55% = 50% B8.11% BB.70°%

e

B, Asset Sustainability Ratio ™

Capital Renewal and Replacement Expenditure 13,134,629 85" 1 1307 14
Depreciation Expense 11,955,277 108 0T T2 0%
7. Asset Renewal Funding Ratic ™
MNEY of Planned Capital Renswals over 10 years 681615148

T5-85% 54 30% 52.23%
MNPV of Required Capdal Expenditure over 10 years B30 95T 503 Rl
Hatey

M This is & medified commercial retiz designed bo focus on the Bguidity posilion of the Coundll thad has arisen from past year's transactions.
L This relio is the measuwement of Council's ability 1o repay L5 deid including lease pawments,

1 This ratio is the measmerment of Counci's ability b2 cover its costs Birogh its own revende effors

1 This ratio Is a measure of Councils ability to cover Bs operational costs and have revenues vallable for capital Aunding or cther pumposss

" This ratio measures he extent lo which depreciatle assels have been consumed by comparing their writlen Sown value 1o their
raplacement cost,

" This ratio Indicabes whelher Councll 1S replacing of renewing existing non-financial asseats at the same rate thel its overall B55s Stock
15 wearing out.

™ Thig retio is & measure of (he abilty of Councal 1o lund ils projected assel renewal 7 replacements in the fulune
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Note 23 Information on Borrowings

Borrowing Hate  Principsl i Repapmorty 3o-Jan-AT Hepaprorty
3 Ennagulion % b8 Losw  Achad  Dudgel  Actesl  Dodgm  Achal  Dudge
{a). Debenture Repayments
Racreation & Cuttare
- 1691 Busaings * WaTS
- E22 Morgyhiorarcs Ree. Club ing I WATC
0 Galrsdy R CluEroomsy 3 WATC
Fundirg of = & bomn recary were Lnded by paoarsl pUpos rcose
| Gaf Oapporieg Lasr  * Thows boann dencted with = are ssbject ol s regay 2 Ll Fam & sanrunty op EL it o lcar

I WATC = WA Trasuury Coporston

Forgr it Semermwery (1T

City of Bavswater

Notes to the Firancial Statements
o the year endied 30 e 2017

Note 24{a) Rating Information pown i Frsnosl vean

Budget Badget Basiget Busget
fumberof  Rumable Rae  mnm Ban Tomi Rame  (etenm Bk Totai
3 lwie  Rate i3 Propeies Walsn  Pavense Ratey Ratws.  Romnue  Revenes Rata Fats  FRevenus
Rate Type
General Rake
Resideriial - Gereral LY. ST ] S3AAE  sarsemies 37 887437 - - IFSATAF 37 504182 A 00 & TES0N T
Commeroal s 00 ieTEMS 55020263 - = BSEISE3 3503 5000 = E00aDE
Incirsinal LR RR L] bl fahrie  JETIN = - dETIR  riiEas 009 - ETiasan
Eub-Tatal TEATE  Srsempod 37 FPAAIN - = STARLER AT HOTTE i «  WTATLTTE
Minirum Rates Wimimar
Residurtial 2 M7 TRERAAn 4 ES30EY - hESEcE: LM AT - A e
Commiindusiral [ =i LR AR Tag1T - TRart T BT - fa Xz
Sub-Taial L L L ] - - dymme g resan - L e
L il 00 8
Rates Writer OF ™ [R50 -
Totals “iimima “iimm s
s [
o
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Mote 24(b). Surplus/(Deficit) B/Fwd and C/Fwd

2017 2016
Carried Fwd Brought Fwd
5 Nebes Actual Actual
Current Assets
Cash - Unrestricted 3 23,915 445 21,331,050
Cash - Restricled Reserves 3 44 417 329 42 200, 344
Cash - Restricted Unspent Grants Hd) 902 653 796,326
Prepaymenis ' 110,526 180,627
Rates - Currert 5 653912 747 548
Sundry Debtors 5 3,027 552 2,629,851
G5T Receivable 5 361,306 403,203
- Fuel and Materials B 98,771 112,780

73,487,804 68,412,029
Current Liabilities

Sundry Creditors g 4,531,885 4,837,020
Accrued Interest on Debentures g 202 438
Accrued Salanes and Wages g9 822 525 789,199
Cther Current Trade and Cther Payables g 24 380 413 2172035
Currert Employes Banefits Frovision 11 4 857 374 5,202 855

Currert Loan Liability 10 5977 10,825
34,707 57T 36,012,373
Net Current Assets 33,780,317 32,299,656
Less:
Reserves - Restricted Cash 3 (44, 417 3200 (42 200 344)
Cash Backed Employee Pravisions 12 1,190, 894 41,286, 149
Aged Persens Homes - Restricted 12,892,251 14,088,217
Surplus/{Deficit) 8,548,133 5,583,678

' Restricted Grants & Contributions that are not expected to be spent in the next 12 months.

page 56

Page 105



ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 12 DECEMBER 2017

Finandial Stalements 2017
City of Bayswater

Motes to the Financial Statements
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Mote 25. Discounts, Incentives, Concessions & Write-offs (201617 Financial Year)

§
(a) Discounts
Mil
Total
] hobes Cost [ Value
(b). Write-Offs
Rate Assessment ) 4,583
General Debtors 2(a) 18,022
— 22,605

Mote 26. Interest Charges and Instalments (201617 Finarcial Year)

Interest Admin, Actual  Budgeted
§ Rate % Charge Rewvenue Revenue
Interest on Unpaid Rates 11.00% 175,279 115,427
Interest on Instalments Plan £.90% 157,204 160,000
Charges on Instalmert Plan 8500 _ 132814 123737

465,397 393,164

Ratepayers had the option of paying rates in 4 instalments, due on 17 August 2016, 17 October 2016,
18 December 2016 and 20 February 2017,
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Mote 27. Fees & Charges

2017 2017 2016
$ Actual Bu dget Actual
Covermance 1368 631 149,237 130,717
General Purpose Funding 26,816 - 41 G54
Law, Order, Public Safety 3B 488 243 500 244 ©57
Health 200 808 210,730 238 777
Education and Welfare 780277 431 a7 970,649
Housing 83,805 57,450 58,815
Community Amerities 11,226 688 11,208,190 10,680 586
Recreation and Culture 7,195,019 8,023 875 7417 G625
Transport 328,093 405,400 431,706
Eccnomic Services 461 834 550,200 564 G158
Cther Praperty and Senvices 383 56,094 27,293

‘20,681,030 21,486 673 mﬁim
e —"  ———

Mote 28, Grants, Subsidies & Contributions

M7 2016
3 Actual Actual
Grants, subsidies and confributions are included as operating revenues in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income:
(a). By Mature & Type
Operating Grants and Subsidies 13,482,556 11,344, 734
Contributions 3,744 557 3,095,707
Mon-Operating Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 4,012,352 2101,034

21,240,285 16,541,496

(k). By Program

General Purpose Funding 3,481,179 1,205,805
Lene, Orcler, Public Safety 336377 82 656
Health 40,330 GE, 489
Education & Welfare 10,895 621 10,211,683
Housing 5289 4709
Community Amenities 3,004 431 G60,013
Recreation & Culture 338 293 529142
Transpart 2807109 3,017,200
Economic Senvices - 4,G39
Cther Praperty & Services 331,645 757,051

21,240,285 16,541,496
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Mote 29. Employee Numbers

2017 2016 2015
$ Actual Actual Actual
The number of full-time equivalent employees at balance date e 337 347
Note 30. Councillor Remuneration

2017 207 2018
] Actual Budget Actual

The following fees, expenses and allowances were paid 1o council members andfor the manyor.

Meeting Fees 36T 685 355,350 355,350
Mayor's Allowence 88 864 a7 550 a7 550
Deputy Mayor's Allowance 22 218 24,858 2,888
Other Allowances 37 400 44 §50 48 330

516,145 509,738 511,178

Mote 31. Employee Costs

2m7 2T 2018
5 Actual Budget Actual
Wages and Salaries 27,867 662 27,730,254 265,934,584
Superannuation 3,151623 3,240,481 3,145,139
Workers' Compensation Insurance 527 8955 843 427 542 538
Conferences/Training 355 304 373432 287 256
Total Employee Costs 31,902,544 31,887,604 30,909,976
Less Capilalised Costs (363 758) (385 545)

31,638,786 31,887,604 30,514,431
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Mote 32. Financial Risk Management

Financial Stelements 2017

Councils activities expose it to a vanety ol iinanceal rsks including (1) price risk, (2) credit sk, (3) hguidity risk

and (4) interest rate risk.

The Councils overall risk managemerd program focuses on the unpredictability of inancial markets and seeks
to minimise potentisl adverse effects on the financial perfformance of the Council

Council does not engage in transactions exprassed in foreign currencies and is therefore not subject to foreign

CUmency risk.

Financial risk management is carried out by Council's Finance Section under policies approved by the Council

The City held the following financial instrumerts at balance date.

Carmying Value Fairvalue
Mees 2047 2018 2017 2016
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2 89235427  BASITTI0 69235427 643277H
Receivables (Current & Non-Current) 5 4,851,308 4521742 4,851,308 4521742
Investment in Joint Venture 32,863,586 33155476 32,853 585 33,185,476
106,950,321 102,008, 538 105,220,521 102.03%3,538
Financial Liabilities
Payables (Current & Nar-Current) 5466713 5,588,850 5466713 5,588,850
Borrowings (Current & Mon-Current) 10 25,882 36,707 25002 23475
Refundable Contributions 24,380,813 25,172,035 24,359,413 25172035
20,882 0028 30,798, 6497 79882 008 30,785, 461

Fair Value is determined as follows:

- Cash & Cash Equivalents, Receivables, Payables - are estimated to be the canrying value which approximates

market value.

- Borrowings & Held to Maturity |rvestments - estimated fulure cash flows discounted by the cumrent

market interest rates applicable to assets & Rabilities with similar risk profiles

- Financial Azzets classified (i) "at fair value through profit & less® or (i) Available for Sale -
based on quated market prices at the reporting date or independent valuation.
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Mote 32. Financial Risk Management (continued)

§

(a). Cash & Cash Equivalents, Financial assets "at Fair Value through the Profit & Loss”,
"Available-far-sale” financial assets & "Held-to-matunty” Investments

Councils objective is 1o maximise its return on cash & investrnerts whilst rmaintaining an adeguate level of
liquidity and preserving capital.

Councils Finance Section manages the Cash & Investments porifalio with the assistance of independent advisors.

Council has an Irvestment Pelicy which complies with the refevant legislation. The policy is regularly reviewed
by Council and an Investment Report is tabled befare Council on 2 monthly basis setting out the make-up and
performance of the portfalio,

The mejor risk associated with Investments is price risk - the nsk that the capital value of Investments may
fluctuate due to changes in market prices, whether there changes are caused by factors specfic to individual
financial instruments of their isswers or are caused by factors affecting similar instruments traded ina market,

Cagh & Irvestments are alzo subject to interest rate risk - the nsk that movements in interest rates could affect
returns and income

A further risk associaled with Cash & Investments is credd risk - the risk that the investrment counterparty will
ot complete their obligations particular te a financial instrument, resulting in a financial loss to Council - be it of
a capital or income nature,

Council manages these risks by diversifying its portfalio and only purchasing investments with high credit ratings
oF capital guarantees in accordance with imvestment restrictions prescribed in the Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 1996

Council also seeks advice from independent advisers before placing any funds in Cash Equivalents &

Imvestments.
30-Jun-1T7 30-Jun-16
Impact of a 1% " movement in interest rates on cash and investments
Equity 692 354 BA3 27T
Statement of Comprehensive Income 652 354 B43 277

MNotes:

1. Sensitivity percentages based on management's expectations of fulure possible market movements.
{Price movemanis calculated on investrmerts subject o fair value adjustments. Interest rate
maovements calculated on cash, cash equivalents and managed funds. )
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Mote 32. Financial Risk Management (continued)

§

(b). Receivables
Councils major receivables comprise (i) Rates & Annual charges and (i) User Charges & Fees.

The major risk aszociated with these receivables ig credit risk - the rigk that debls due and payable to Council
may not be repaid.

Council manages this risk by monitoring cutsta nding debt and employing stringent debt recovery procedures,
It also encourages ratepayers to pay their rates by the due date through incentives.

Credit rigk on rates and annual charges is minimised by the ability of Council to secure a charge over the land
relating to the debts - that is, the land can be sold to recover the debl. Council is also able to charge interest
on overdue rates & annual charges at higher than market rates which further encourages the payment of debt.

The level of cutstanding receivables is repanted to Council mortthly and benchmarks are set and monitored fer
acceptable collection performance.

Council makes suilable Prowasion for daubtiul recevables as required and carries out credit checks on most
non-rate debiors.

There are no material receivables that have been subjected to a re-negotiation of repayment terms.

A profile of Council's receivables credit risk at balance date follows

A0-JunA7 AD-Jun-16
% %
Percentage of Rates and Annual Charges
Current G0.63% 43,00%
Cwverdue 39.07% 51,00%
Percentage of Other Receivables
Current 8537% 82 35%
Cwverdue 4 E3% 7.64%
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Mote 32. Financial Risk Management (continued)

§

(c). Payables & Borrowings

Payables & Borrowings are both subject to liquidity risk - the risk that insufficient funds may be on hand to meet
payment obligations as and when they fall due

Council manages this risk by monitoring its cash flow requirements and liquidity levels and maintaining an
adequate cash taffer,

Payment terms can be extended & overdraft facilities drawn upon in extenuating circumstances.

The contractual undiscounted cash outflows (ie. principal and interest) of Council's Payables & Borrowings are
set aut in the Liguidity Table below:

1 Due Due Due Tatal
within betweaen after contractual Carrying
1 year 1 & 5years 5 years cash fows Values
2017
Payables 5,466 712 - - 5,466 712 5,466 712
Barrowings 5977 16,905 - 25 882 22 855
Refundable
Contributions - - - 24 389 413 24 385 413
5472 689 19,905 = 29 882 007 29 879,090
20186
Payables 5,638 557 - - 5,538 857 5,638 857
Borrowings 10,825 16,447 6,435 36,707 33,478
Refundable
Contributions - - - 25172035 25172 035
5,648,382 18,447 6,435 30,847 288 30,844 068

' The City of Bayswater Aged Persons Homes  holkds 525,172,035 in refundable contributions (Accommodation
Bonds). These contributions have been classified as current liabilifies as the provider does not have the right
to defer seftlement. However the expected setlement of the liability is expected to be greater than twehve
marths.

Accommaedation bonds ane charged for admittance in accordance with current State and Federal Government
regulations. These fees can vary according to each individuals finanzial status and, in accordance with current
palicy embodying the relevant regulations, varying amcunts are deducted for "Retention” over a peroad of $ years

Borrowings are also subject to interest rate risk - the risk that movements in interest rates could adversely
affect funding costzs & debt servicing requirements. Council manages this risk by borrowing long term and
fixing the irterest rale on a tasis that is most suiable for the circumstance, Council cificers regular
review interest rate movements to determine if it would be advantageous o refinance or renegotiate

part, or all of the kcan portfolio.

page 63

Page 112



ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 12 DECEMBER 2017

Finandgal Stalaments 2017
City of Bayswater

Notes to the Financial Statements
far the year ended 30 June 2017

Mote 32. Financial Risk Management (continued)

The following inlerest rales were applicable lo the Councils Borrowings at balance dale,

30-Jun-1T 30-Jun-16
Weighted Weighted
average average
interast Balance interest Balance
rate % $ rate % $
Bank Loans - Fixed G.55% 22965 G.62% 33476
225955 33,476

Notes:
1. The interest rate risk applicable to Variable Rate Bank Loan is not considered significant.

Mote 33. Fair Value Measurements

The Council measures the following asset and abilily classes al fair value on a recurring basis
= Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment

- Investment Property

- Firancial Assets & Ligbilities

The fair value of assets and liabilities must be estimated in accerdance with various Accounting Standards for
either recognition and measurement requirements or for disclosure purposes.

ANSE 13 Fair Value Measuwrement requires all assets and liabilities measured at fair value to be assigned to a
“level in the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted queted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access
at the measwement date,

Level 2: Inputz other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either direclly or indirectly

Leveal 3: Inputs for the azset or liability that are not based on obzervable market data (unobservable inputs)
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Mote 33. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

Financial Stelements 2017

(1) The following table presents all assets and liabilities that have been measured & recognised at

fair values:
| Fair Value Measurement using:_l
Lewvel 1 Level 2 Lewvel 3 Total
Cucted Significant Significant
prcEs in obsenable L ot arvable
2017 acthve mits inputs inpats
Property, Plant & Equipment
Land - 323,786,000 323,786,000
Land - Under Control - 10,410,000 - 10.410.000
Buildings . TEO.D00  181,7E3507 182543507
Furniture & Equipment - 2,66 402 . 2,858,402
Fleet - ER L 3.109.047
Computer Equipment - 1,596,801 1,599,881
Plant 3.578.811 3.579.811
Total Property, Plant & Equipment - 5932951 1E1,7E3507 527,696,458
Infrastructure
Roads - = BT 408 580 B7 408 580
Drainage 39541073 39541078
FDGipalhE - - 2TAI2TW 272 TH
Parks & Gardens - - 18,333 668 18,333,664
Other - - 3,427,242 3.427.348
Total Infrastructure - 186,533,446 186,533 446
2016
Property, Plant & Equipment
Land - MOT94LMET 307942357
Land - Under Control 10,410,000 - 10.410,000
Bulldings - 17,244,188 153,872,575 171116761
Fumiture & Equipment - 2822741 2822741
Fleet 3,068,181 - 3068181
Computer Equipment - 1,296,704 1,296,704
Flant 3,357,357 - 3357 357
Total Property, Plant & Equipment - MAB45BT2  155168,279 500,015,151
Infrastructura
Roads - - 88,270,770 88,270,770
Drainage - - 3ogB4284 39184204
Foctpaths - - 27315850 27315850
Parks & Gardens - - 0332118 20332118
Cther - - 39420830 3542620
Total Infrastructure - 189,045,852 189,045,852
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Mote 33. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

(2) Transfers between Level 1 & Level 2 Fair Value Hierarchies

During the year, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 Fair Value hierarchies for recurring fair
vilue measurements

(2) Valuation technigues used to derive Level 2 and Level 2 Fair Values

(1) Recurring Value Methods
The following methods are used to determine the fair value measurements.

The City's Land and Buildings were revalued in 2014 by APV Valuers & Asset Management,
Wihere Council is unable to derive Fair Valuations using guoted market prices of identical assets
{ie. Level 1 inputs) Council instead utilises a spread of bath observable inputs (Level 2 inpuls) and
unobserveble inpuls (Level 3 inputs).

The Fair Valuation lechnigues Council has employed while Wilising Level 2 and Level 3 inputs are as follows

Property, Plant & Equipment

Land
Level 2 valuation inputs were used to value land held in freehold title as well as land used for special purpose
which is restricted under current zoning rules

The valuation of freehold (saleable) land has been camied out using the market approach and they have been
assessed on the basis of the estimated amount which each interest in each property being valued might
reasonably be expected to realise in an exchange between market paricipants given highest and best use.
The most significant inputs inte this valuation approach are price per square metre.

The valuation of restricied or otherwise non-saleeble land has been valued using the cost approach.

Specific Considerations

Cortaminated Sites - Several sites valued are deemed lo be potentially cortamirated by activities carried out
by council These valustions represent the current replacement cost of the land the council would need to
acquire "non-contaminated” land and as such any instances or pessibilities of contamination have been
disregarded

Zorings - A number of parcels of land have been given zonings that relate to public open space, conservation
areas and specific Iocality 2onings. These zonings are not representative of surrounding land use. The high level
of development restrictions would not be considered normal in @ open market situation,
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Mote 33. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

(2) Valuation techniques used to derive Level 2 and Level 3 Fair Values [conlinued)

Waluation has been based on the highest and best use of the land. In an open market silustion these properties
wiuld be zoned similarly o surrounding land uses

It ghauld be noted that there is no evidence of sales within specific zoned areas.

Sale prices under comparable land sites in close proximity are adjusted for key aliributes such as property size.
The most significant inputs inte this valuation approach are price per square metre.

Buildings

Level 2 Valuation |nputs

These were uzed to determine the fair value of a range of properties. Thig included the bulk of residential and
commercial properties,

The residentisl properties fair value has been derived from seles prices of comparable properties after adjusting
for dilferences in key attributes such as property size The most significant inputs into this valuation were price
per metre,

Lewvel 3 Valuation [npuls

Specialised buildings were valued using professionally qualified Registered Valuers. The approach estimated the
replacement cost for each building by componentising the buildings into significant parts with different useful lives
and taking into account a range of factors. While the unit rates based on square metre could be supported by
market evidence (Level 2) other inputs (such as estimates of residual value, useful life, pattern of consumption
and assat condition) required extensive professional judgement and impacted significantly on the final
determination of fair value. As such these assels were classified as having level 3 valuation inputs.

Flant & Equipment
Fant and Equipment fair values were determined by independent valuers as at 30 June 2018,

Subsequent to the 2016 council's revalued assets are reviewed to ensune that the carmying amount does not
differ significantly from that determined using fair value at reporting date

Level 2 valuation inputs have been applied having regard to the condition and useful life of the asset class except
for computer equipment which has been valued at Level 3
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Mote 33. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

(2) Valuation techniques used to derive Level 2 and Level 3 Fair Values [conlinued)
Infrastructure

All council infrastructure assets were fair valued using & deprecigted replacement cost valuation technigue. This
method used assets current replacement cost less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such
cost to reflect the already consumed or expired future economic benefits of the asset. The gross cost of
replacing the full service potential of the asset was established then adjusted to take into account the expired
senice potential of the asset.

The current replacement cost was measured by referencing the lowest cost at which the asset could be obtained
i the normal course of business,

The total cost values have been calculated using work code unit costs based on current tender and general
markel rates,

All eaunci infrastruciure has been valued at fair value ubilizing in house professional Asset Management staff,
Level 3 valuation inputs have been applied to all asset categones.
Infrastructure Categories

Roads
The road asset comprises seal, Pavement and Kerbing components.

The City of Bayswater's sealed road length is 351.4 Km and does net include MRWA controlied roads

Waluation methodology comprises
{1) Current replacement cost to replace the entire network : Current Replacemeant Cost = Unit Cost X Cuantity
(2) Depreciated Cost is the value the asset has deteriorate . Valuation Depreciation Rate (Critical Life)
= (10Q/Critical Life (Years) % Per Annum

Critical Life - The lowest calculated life of longewity in years between "Conditioned Assessed Life and Design
Assessed Life (Anmual Revaluation)

Footpaths

The footpath network comprises
Concrete Paths
Brick Paved Paths
Asphalt Faths
Slab Paths

The City of Bayswater's foctpath length is 317.2 Km.
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Mote 33. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

(2) Valuation techniques used to derive Level 2 and Level 3 Fair Values [conlinued)

Waluation methodology comprises
(1) Current replacement cost (o replace the entire network | Current Replacement Cost = Unit Cost X Quartity
(2) Depreciated Cost is the value the asset has deteriorate . Valuation Depreciation Rate (Critical Life)
= (100 Critical Life (Years) % Per Annum

Critical Life - The lowest caloulated Iife of lengevity in years between "Conditioned Assessed Life and Design
Azzeszed Life (Annual Revaluation)

Drainage
The drainage netwark comprises Pits, Covers and Pipes

The City of Bayswater's length of pipes is 209.7KM

Valuation methodology comgrises
(1) Current replacement cost to replace the entire network | Current Replacement Cost = Unit Cost X Guantity
() Depreciated Cost is the value (he assel has detenorate | Valuation Depreciation Rate (Critical Life)
= (100fCritical Life (Years) % Per Annum

Critical Life - The lowest calculated life of langevity in years between "Conditioned Assessed Life and Design
Azseszed Life (annual Revaluation)

Parks/Reserves/Car Parking
Waluation methodology comprises
(1) Current replacement cost to replace the entire network : Current Replacement Cost = Unit Cost X Quartity
{2) Depreciated Cost is the value the asset has deteriorate : Valuation Depraciation Rate (Critical Life)
= (10Q/Critical Life (Years) % Per Annum

Critical Life - The lowest calculated Ife of longewity in years between "Conditioned Asseszed Life and Design
Assessed Life (Annual Revaluation)

Miscellaneous Infrastructure
The components split out to establish fair value for this calegory comprise the following
Bus Shelters
Public Litter Bins
Lighting
Entry Staterments
Signage Poles
Street Signs and Parking Signs
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Mote 33. Fair Value Measurements (continued)

(2) Valuation techniques used to derive Level 2 and Level 3 Fair Values [conlinued)

Waluation methodology comprises
(1) Current replacernent cost 1o replace the entire network | Currert Replacement Cost = Unit Cost X Quartity
(2) Depreciated Cost is the value the asset has detericrate . Valuation Depreciation Rate (Critical Life)
= (100 Critical Life (Years) % Per Annum

Critical Life - The lowest caloulated Iife of lengevity in years between "Conditioned Assessed Life and Design
Agsessed Life (Annual Revaluation)

(4). Fair Value Sensitivity to Uncbservable Inputs

Relationship between asset consumpation rating scale and the level of consumed service palential

Sensitivity to Unobservable Amount of Potential Impact

Market Inputs

$ Lower % Upper % Lower § Upper $
Infrastructure

Roads 10.00 10.00 (2, 740,858) 8,740,858
Drainage 10.00 1000 (3,854, 108) 3,054,108
Footpaths 10,00 10,00 (2,782,273 2782273
Parks & Gardens 10.00 10.00 (1,833,370 1,833,370
Cther 10,00 10.00 (342, 735) 342,735
Total Infrastructure [18,653,345) 18,653,345
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Mote 34. Segment Reporting

Residential  Independent Other
Aged Care  Living Units Segments Total
§ 2017 2017 2017 2047

In accordance with the Aged Care Act 1997 and the Residential Care Subsidy Principles provided under this Act,
Council provides the following segment reparting relating to Residential Aged Care in relation o its services
conductad at the City of Bayswater Aged Persons' Homes.

Current Year Information for City of Bayswater

Segment Expenses

Emplwee Costs - - [31.538,788) (31,538, 78E)
Materials & Contracts (7.594.812) (B49.507) (23,324,204}  (31,588,523)
Litilities . - (3.618,808) (3.618,808)
Depreciation & Amartisation (239684 (620649  [11.094944)  (11,955.277)
Interest Expenses - - [1.862) [1,862)
Ingurance - - (B28,220) (B28,220)

(7,834 496) [1,270,1%6)  (70,407,915) (79.512,567)

Segment Revenues

Rate - - 41,967,660 41,967,660
Fees & Charges 1,547 831 1,236 484 17,6886, 685 20,681,030
- Accommeodation Charges 57,841
- Bond Retentions 47,817
- COther Operating Revenue 1,242,223
Operating Grants, Subsidiaries & Contnbutions 7,273,585 - 9,954 348 17,227 933
Interest Earnings 353,475 448 841 1,916,735 2,718,055
Cther Revenue 18,866 18,866

9,174,844 1,685,325 71,744,275 B2.604,544

Non-Operating Revenue

Mon-Operating Grants, Subsidiaries & Contributions - - 4,012,352 4,012,352

Fair Value Adjustments to Financial Assets at Fair

Walue through Profit and Loss - - (2,738,340} (2,738,340)

Met Share of Interests in Controlled Entitites,

Associated Entities and Joint Ventures - - 838,637 838,637

Prefit on Aszet Disposals - - (422 Ba8) (422 888)
- - 1,689,681 1,688,681

Segment Result 1,340 448 415,169 3,026,041 4,781,658

Segment Assets

Cumrent Assets 14,674,751 16,682,063 42,131,070 73,487 894

Mon-Current Assetss 14,588,393 38,881,577 B84, 421,658 TAT BO1 828

29,263,154 55573640 736,552,728 821,389,522

Segment Liabilities
Current Liskilites [11,148,508) (13,455179) (10103,889) (34,707.577)
- Refundable Accommaodation Bonds  (11,008,152)

Operating Grants, Subsidiaries & Contributions - - (477, 444) (477, 4dd)
{(11,148,509)  {13.455,179)  (10,581,333)  (35.185.021)
Met Assets for Segment 18,114,645 42118481  T25971,335  THE.204,501
page T1
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Mote 34. Segment Reporting (contirued)

Residential  Independent Other

Aged Care  Living Units Segments Total
5 2016 2018 2016 2016
Prior Year Information for City of Bayswater
Segment Expenses
Employes Cosls {224 878) (14495  (I0274080)  (30.514.431)
Materials & Conlracts (7.355.670) (285564)  (21.586,803)  (29,528037)
Ltilities - - (3,802,397) (3.802,397)
Depreciation & Amortisation (233,121) (828 852) (B.572,684) (10,434 757)
Interest Expenses - - [3,308) (3,308)
Insance . . {740,411} (740,411}

(7.812.75T) [929.011)  [66.080.563)  (7T4,823.341)

Sagment Revenues

Rate . - 30,545,805 30,545,805

Fees & Charges 1,592,557 545378 18,710,083 20,848,000

- Accommeodation Charges 320,163

- Bond Retentions 82857

- Other Operating Revenue 1,181, 547

Operating Grants, Subsidiaries & Contributions 7,220,244 . 7.211,218 14,440,462

Interest Earnings 303,710 4530 1,842 856 2,508,587

Cther Rievenue - - 707,020 707,020
9,125,521 598,400 68,017,081 78,140,982

Non-Operating Revenue

Mon-Operating Grants, Subsidiarnies & Contributions - - 2101,034 2101,034

Fair Value Adjustments to Financial Assets at Fair

Walue through Profit and Loss 43317 5,040 (8,608, 541) (8,561, 184)

Met Share of Interests in Controlled Entitites,

Associated Ertities and Joint Vertures - - 2,770,033 2,770,033

Profit on Assat Disposals - - 490,071 490,071

Loss on Asset Disposals - - (407 810) {407,810}

43,317 5,040 (3,656,213)  (3,607,858)

Segment Result 1,385.071 74,429 1.718,715) 290,215)

Segment Assets

Currert Assets 13,107,535 18,386 679 38,017,815 68,412,029

Morn-Currert Asselss 13,837,500 41,547 736 685,441 487 721,826,793

26,945125 57,934 415  TOS5,359,282  T90,238.822

Segment Liabilities

Currert Liabilles [(10,682341)  (14,6208858)  (10,701,133) (36,012,373
- Refundable Accommadation Bonds  (10,639,445)

Operating Grants, Subsidiaries & Contnbutions - (537, 334) (537,334)

{10,582,341)  (14,628.859)  (11,230.467)  (36,549,707)
MNet Assets for Segment 18,262,784 43,305,516 694,120,815  T53.689,115
Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment 45,164 140,117 13,454,601 13,639,882

Mote 35. Events occurring after the Reporting Period

Council is unaware of any material or significant "non-adjusting events” that should be disclosed.
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Mote 36. Council Information & Contact Details

Principal Place of Business:
51 Broun Avenue
Morley VWA BDEZ

Contact Details
Mailing Address:

PO Box 457

Marley WA 5943

Telephone: 08 9272 0522
Facsimile: 08 9272 0565
AUDITORS

Grant Thornton Audit Pty Lid

Lewvel 1, 10 Kings Fark Rd

West Perth 6005

Other Infermation
ABN:  61-054-003-131
MNAPS: 1705

Opening Hours:
8 30am-4.30pm (Monday to Fricay)

Internet: www bayswaterwa govay

Email: mail aler wa.gov.au

Elected Members
MAYOR
Councillor Barry MckKenna

COUNCILLORS

Councillor Stephanie Coates (Deputy Mayor)
Councillor Sally Palmer

Councillor Brent Fleeton

Councillor Chris Comish

Councillor Catherine Ehrharct

Councillor Alan Racford

Councillor Michelle Sutherand

Councillor John Rifici

Councillor Terry Keryon, JP

Councillor Dan Bull
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Independent Auditor's Report
to the Rate Payers of the City of Bayswater

Auditor's Opinion

Wie have audited the Snancial report of the City of Bayswater, which comprizes the statement of
financial position as at 30 June 2017, and the staternent of comprehensive income (by program),
the statement of comprehensive income (by nature or type), statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash lows for the year then ended, and comprising notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and the Chief Executive Officers statement.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the City of Bayswater:

a  precants fairly, in all material recpects, the City of Bayswater's financial position as at 30 June
2017 and of its performance and cash flows for the year then ended; and

b cornplies with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations),

¢ are prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1995 Part &
(as amended) and Regulations under the Act,

Basis for Auditor's Opinion

Wie conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilties
under thoze standards are further described in the Auvdifor's Responsibiifties for fhe Auval of the
Financial Report section of our report. We are independent of the City of Bayswater in accordance
with the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's

APES 110 Code of Ethics for Profecsional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to ouwr audit of
the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Coda.

Wie believe that the audit evidence we have obtained iz sufficient and appropeiate to provide a
basiz for our audit opinion.

Granl Thomton Audi Pty Lid ACN 130913534
& subsachary or related enlity of Grant Thambon Ausiraba Lbd ABN 41 127556 30

Tortd Tharritin’ redern bt i ke bk o 3l T vl oo [ persaiie i, it il el v i vt et bl e B i 0 e o it e, i B
camtaotesgarss, Ghoamt Thorntes Ausitrakn Ld o o pos ks s of Gheant Thornites Intmmsationay| 48 PO TIL ) 5T amidchs vt s s it vkl parroroy 0TI, sl inch mossmbar fom
il ooph gl ey Ereiined i ekl b gt rerber e GTIL doms, sl perabdin nerwcr ' iy (T vl i b v, e vl it o, il s e oy v et el
o e g wolhnr's 5t o st s B 8 ool cosadesd e, Bt ot o ths e Virmat: Thosbant” sy rofier s Cirunt: Thootams M | maed DM 1 137 550 309 el i
nntrahan wistsfire v ard reltied setibet GTL ook i Badriar rrbied eyt oot Thomter Rutesla Limted

Vi
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Statutory compliance

I did net, during the course of my audi, become aware of any instance where the Councl did not
comply with the requirements of the Local Govemment Act 1995 and Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 1986 as they apply to financial statements.

Responsibility of the Chief Executive Officer for the Financial Report

The Chief Executive Officer of the City of Bayswaler is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and Local
Government Act 1985 Part 8. This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining intemal
contred relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial repart that is free from
matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or erar; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates thal are reasonable in the circumstances

The Ceuncil is responsible for overseeing the City of Bayswater's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Cur objectives are to obdain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is
free from material msstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and o issue an auditor's report that
inchades our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, bul is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a
maternial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, incividually of in the aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to
influence: the economes decizons of users taken on the bass of this financal report.

A further description of our responsibiliies for the audit of the financial report is located at the
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website at:

e i fil i,
This descripticn forms part of aur auditor's report.

(Gt e

GRAMT THORMNTON AUDIT PTY LTD
Chartered Accountants

V) oo

Patrick Warr
Partner - Audit & Azsurance

Perth, 1 December 2017

page 74

Page 124



ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 12 DECEMBER 2017

13.6 Proposed Topic Areas for Internal Audit
Reporting Branch: Corporate Services
Responsible Directorate: Finance and Corporate Services
Refer: Item 13.3.1 A&RMC: 28.03.2017

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Application:
For the Audit and Risk Management Committee to consider an Internal Audit Plan for 2018.

Key Issues:

This report provides an outline of the proposed three-year Internal Audit Plan to commence in
2018.

BACKGROUND

A report was provided to the Audit and Risk Management Committee at its meeting of 28 March
2017 outlining the merits of developing an internal audit to augment the normal audits that are
required under legislation. The Committee was advised that internal audit was a separate role to
risk management, and was essentially a 'deep dive' into specific areas to identify potential
weaknesses in systems and procedures, and was therefore more targeted and extensive than
the normal audit approach, which was based on sampling.

Council subsequently endorsed the recommendation for funding allocation in the 2017-18
budget, and noted that once the scope of the Internal Audits had been determined, further
reports would be provided to the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

A summary of potential topic areas for internal audit has now been developed, with priority topic
areas identified. In developing the Internal Audit Plan, officers considered that it should be
balanced in its coverage and contain topics that matter to the City, its stakeholders and the
community. The objective of presenting the Internal Audit Plan to the Committee is to seek
comments and endorsement for whether the Plan would result in efficiency, effectiveness or
accountability improvements in that business activity.
CONSULTATION
This review has been undertaken through:
analysis of the Office of the Auditor General (WA) audit topic selection methodologies;
consideration of the City's quarterly Risk Management Assurance Reports;
examining industry risk issues; and

taking into account the feedback of relevant City staff as to potential focus areas.

ANALYSIS

An allocation of $25,000 has been made in the Annual Budget 2017-18 for Internal Audit project
work, and six potential topic areas have been outlined as below.

The comments reflect the suggested timeframes for investigating any potential weaknesses in
the related systems and procedures, and the following Internal Audit Plan is considered to be
realistically achievable within the available funding. Subject to the outcomes of the 2017-18
program, the Plan will be reviewed and potentially extended as funding permits.
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Proposed

# INTERNAL AUDIT TOPICS 17-18 | 18-19 | 19-20

1 | Cyber Security

Cyber security has been an increasingly regular feature in the media
with multiple significant attacks and data breaches impacting various
industries. The outgoing Auditor General (WA) has identified this as
an emerging focus area. An internal audit focus could involve the
examination of the City's wider crisis management planning including
public, media and customer service rather than how the City has ua
fixed vulnerabilities. Whilst the City's Information Services directorate
has demonstrated that it has kept up with growing regulatory
expectations with strong systems and contingencies in place, an
internal audit presence could assist the City in promoting more
organisational collaboration. Extensive work has already been done
by the City's Information Technology team in cyber security training
and testing, and it is not seen as an immediate priority and could be
included in the 2018-19 program.

2 | Fraud & Misconduct

An internal audit presence could potentially examine and evaluate the
adequacy and the effectiveness of actions taken by the City to fulfil its
obligations to report instances, manage investigations and report
outcomes of suspected fraud and corruption. Internal audit may
examine how well the City deters fraud and monitors compliance a
through its internal controls such as policies and reporting
procedures, segregation of duties or specific divisional controls ie.
account reconciliations. As this is an area of focus in the normal
audits, there are extensive controls in place, and it is therefore
recommended for review in 2018-19.

3 | Procurement & Tendering

Procurement and Tendering is an important vehicle in the delivery of
the City's programs and services. An audit work program could
potentially review the adequacy of internal controls in the City's
procurement and tendering processes.

Key activities and processes could be examined including:

the City's strategic approach to procurement and tendering;

validation that organisational procurement plans are established
based on operational requirements and priorities;

validation that technology controls are operating as intended;
validation that analysis and management reporting of contracting
activity is carried out.

As extensive work has been done in recent years to develop
appropriate controls as a response to earlier CCC reports of the
sector, this topic area is recommended for review in 2019-2020.

4 | Corporate Record Keeping

Corporate Record Keeping practices are closely aligned to risk and
essential for auditing and accountability. In recent years, greater
regulatory and compliance requirements have been imposed.
Auditor General Departments have consistently reported that
government agencies are not performing well enough in the
management of electronic records. Internally it has been identified | G
that there is a general apathy for, and disregard of, record keeping
practices at the City. Past Assurance reports to the Committee have
identified that record keeping practices at the City are not consistently
implemented by staff, namely that staff are not importing and
registering emails into ECM accurately, or at all. Given these
concerns, it is recommended that this be an area of priority for 2017-
18.

5 | Performance Reporting
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INTERNAL AUDIT TOPICS

Proposed

17-18 | 18-19 | 19-20

Performance reporting is a key program for the City promoting
Council transparency, accountability and performance. The City
plans for our community, then reports on its implementation of these
plans. The City's major reporting takes place through Annual
Reports, Quarterly Performance Reports and End of Term Reports.
An Internal Audit focus would likely centre upon the efficiency,
effectiveness, economy (and in certain circumstances, compliance
aspects) of the City's planning, programs and services. Given that
the new powers of the Auditor General to audit the local government
sector include performance audits, it is recommended that this be an
area of priority for 2017-18.

Financial Sustainability

Internal audit should also act to anticipate and understand how
regulatory and reporting developments in the areas of financial,
sustainability and integrated reporting may affect the City. The focus
of internal audit would likely be on assessment of the efficiency and
effectiveness of financial and operational reporting, compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, proper management of the City's
assets and the level of common practices and processes in business
units.

As the Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural Affairs
has not expressed any concerns about the City's financial ratios, it is
recommended that this be included in the 2020-21 program.

In determining topics for internal audit, particular emphasis is being given to:

%)

Context: Is it the right time to review this area? Is there another review or audit in
progress covering similar issues? Would an audit of the area reinforce other important
current messages or themes? Is there strong community interest in the topic?

Materiality: Does the business activity or program have potentially significant financial,
economic, social or environmental management implications?

Risk: Are there any indicators of known or suspected problems? Are issues emerging in
related areas that could affect the area being considered for audit? Are there inherent risks
that may not be well managed?

Auditability/Efficiency: Is the area amenable to audit? Will information and evidence be
available? Can it be audited with resources that match the impact and materiality of the
topic or will it take disproportionate resources for limited benefit?

As a consequence of applying these principles it is anticipated that two topic areas will be
selected for each upcoming financial year whilst the current allocated funding arrangements are
in place.

OPTIONS

The following options are available to Council:

OPTION BENEFIT

RISK

Support the proposed Internal
Audit Plan for the next three
financial years.

Finalisation of topic areas for
assessment will provide a
framework for the direction and
orientation of internal audit.

Potential delay to activation of
the Internal Audit Plan which
has already been endorsed by
Council.
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2. | Not support the proposed Internal
Audit Plan.

The Committee may wish to
defer the report and seek
further information on the
Internal Audit Plan.

An Internal Audit Plan may not
be resolved in time for
completion of project work as
per the budget allocation.

3. | Support the proposed Internal
Audit Plan but with changes to the
priority areas.

Changing priority of some of the
topic areas may better reflect
the Committee's priority areas
as informed through community
engagement.

Focusing on areas that
already have strong controls in
place would still be of value in
terms of independent
validation, however other
areas of greater operational
priority may have to be
deferred due to funding
constraints.

CONCLUSION

Option 1 is recommended as it provides a framework for the direction and orientation of internal

audit.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
Nil.

STRATEGIC LINK

In accordance with the City of Bayswater's Strategic Community Plan 2017-2027, the following

applies:

Theme: Leadership and Governance.

Aspiration: Open, accountable and responsive service.
Outcome L1: Accountable and good governance.

COUNCIL POLICY AND LEGISLATIVE IMPLICATIONS
Section 7.13(i) of the Local Government Act 1995.
Regulation 13, 14 and 15 of the Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996.

VOTING REQUIREMENTS
Simple Majority Required.

ATTACHMENTS
Nil.

COUNCIL RESOLUTION
(OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION)

That the Audit and Risk Management Committee recommends that Council approve the
proposed Internal Audit Plan 2018-2020.
CR LORNA CLARKE MOVED, CR ELLI PETERSEN-PIK SECONDED

CARRIED: 10/0
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12. REPORTS FOR NOTING/INFORMATION

Nil.

COUNCIL RESOLUTION - EN BLOC RESOLUTION

To approve (en bloc) the Committee/Officer's Recommendations to Council Items 13.1,
13.2, 13.3 and 13.4 and those items requiring an Absolute Majority, be carried with an
Absolute Majority.

CR STEPHANIE GRAY MOVED, CR LORNA CLARKE SECONDED

CARRIED: 10/0

13. MANAGEMENT/ADVISORY COMMITTEES
13.1 Audit and Risk Management Committee - Terms of Reference
Reporting Branch: Corporate Services

Responsible Directorate: Finance and Corporate Services

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Application:

To propose new Terms of Reference for the Audit and Risk Management Committee as part of
the routine review of the Terms of Reference of committees following local government elections.
Key Issues:

This report proposes new Terms of Reference for the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

BACKGROUND

Audit committees play a key role in local government governance and oversight responsibilities.
Appointment to the committee must be by an absolute majority decision of Council.

The requirement to have an audit committee is set out in Part 7 of the Local Government Act
1995 (the Act) which covers the essential requirements for appointment of auditors and
conducting audits.

The detailed requirements for appointing auditors, developing an audit plan and conducting and
reviewing audits are dealt with under the Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996.

In 2016, the Local Government Amendment (Auditing) Bill was introduced to provide for local
governments to be audited by the Auditor General. The two most significant aspects of this Bill
are that:

local governments will not be able to appoint their own auditors once the current contracts
expire; and

the Auditor General and the Office of the Auditor General (OAG) will be conducting
financial and performance audits of the sector.

This Bill allows the Auditor General to contract out some or all of the financial audits but all audits
will be done under the supervision of the Auditor General and Office of the Auditor General.
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Model Terms of Reference were developed by the Department in 2013 to assist local
governments in defining an appropriate role for their audit committees. The minimum
expectation is that the Terms of Reference cover the legislative requirements as outlined in the
Act and the Regulations.

The current Terms of Reference for the Audit and Risk Management Committee were adopted at
the Special Meeting of Council of 21 October 2015, with the stated purpose 'to make
recommendations directly to Council in accordance with Regulations 16 and 17 of the Local
Government (Audit) Regulations 1996'.

Revised Terms of Reference for the Audit and Risk Management Committee are attached for
consideration (Attachment 1). These are based on the Department's model, which does not
have to be adopted in its entirety. The discretionary particulars such as the number of members
and meeting frequency are marked accordingly, should the Committee wish to amend these.

CONSULTATION

The Department of Local Government and Communities produced its Operational Guideline No.
9 Audit in Local Government - The appointment, function and responsibilities of Audit Committee'
in September 2013 (Attachment 2) and the model Terms of Reference are appended to the
guideline. As part of the routine post-election review of the committee structures, officers have
identified that several other local governments (Cities of Belmont, Canning, Gosnells, Swan and
Joondalup) have based their audit committee Terms of Reference either completely on the
Department's model or aspects of it. Other local governments (ie City of Perth) have taken a
different approach by adopting Terms of Reference developed by specialist auditing consultants,
but the principles and intent are similar.

ANALYSIS

The Department's model Terms of Reference essentially summarise the legislative requirements
and also provide a point of reference for the role and functions of the committee. It is not
mandatory for local governments to adopt the model Terms of Reference nor do they have to be
adopted in their entirety, and they can be modified to suit the individual local governments. For
example, the number of endorsed members and the frequency of meetings can be varied
provided that they meet the legislative requirements of at least one meeting per annum and a
minimum of three members.

The implications of the Auditor General taking over audits of the sector are difficult to determine
at this early stage, as transition across the sector will occur as the existing audit contracts expire.
It is anticipated that by financial year 2020-2021, all local governments will be audited by the
Auditor General, regardless of whether or not their contracts have expired. It can only be
assumed at this stage that the financial audits will be similar in nature to those already being
carried out in the sector. However the amendments to the Act also provide for a new category of
audits known as *“performance audits” which will examine the economy, efficiency and
effectiveness of any aspect of a local government’s operations.

As this is quite a broad-ranging brief, greater clarity of the role and functions of the Audit and
Risk Management Committee will support the ongoing strategy of building an appropriate
governance and oversight framework to prepare the City for these changes.

The draft Terms of Reference also provide greater clarity on the role of the Committee in Risk
Management and Internal Audit.

OPTIONS

The following options are available to Council:
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OPTION

BENEFIT

RISK

1. | Council implements new Terms of
Reference based on the
Department's model.

More prescriptive than current
Terms of Reference.
Prepares the City for future

Nil - the model Terms of
Reference do not extend the
role and functions of the

involvement by the Office of | Committee beyond what is

the Auditor General. currently in the legislation
anyway.

2. | Council does not implement new | Detailed Terms of Reference | The current Terms  of
Terms of Reference for the Audit | are not specifically required | Reference are brief and
and Risk Management Committee. | under the legislation. require reference to the

legislation to clarify the

detailed role and functions of
the Committee.

CONCLUSION

Option 1 is recommended as it is consistent with the model Terms of Reference and will provide
greater clarity of the role of the Committee in respect to the legislative requirements. It also
reflects the current direction of work in the internal audit and risk management areas.
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Nil.

STRATEGIC LINK

In accordance with the City of Bayswater's Strategic Community Plan 2017-2027, the following
applies:

Theme: Leadership and Governance.
Aspiration: Open, accountable and responsive service.
Outcome L1: Accountable and good governance.

COUNCIL POLICY AND LEGISLATIVE IMPLICATIONS

Nil. The draft Terms of Reference are not mandatory.

VOTING REQUIREMENTS
Simple Majority Required.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Draft Terms of Reference for the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

2. Department of Local Government and Communities Operational Guideline no. 9 - Audit in
Local Government — The appointment, function and responsibilities of Audit Committees.

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

(OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION)

That the Audit and Risk Management Committee recommends that Council approve the
draft Terms of Reference for the Audit and Risk Management Committee (Attachment 1).

CR STEPHANIE GRAY MOVED, CR LORNA CLARKE SECONDED
CARRIED BY EN BLOC RESOLUTION: 10/0
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Attachment 1

TERMS OF REFERENCE

CITY OF BAYSWATER AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The primary objective of the Committee is to accept responsibility for the annual
external audit and liaise with the local government's appointed auditor so that
Council can be satisfied with the performance of the City in managing its financial
affairs.

1. | Objectives

The Committee will also consider recommendations for practice improvement as
may be made from time to time through the City's Internal Audit processes and
will also consider reports at least annually on the City's Risk Management
Framework.

Reports from the Committee will assist Council in discharging its legislative
responsibilities of controlling the City's affairs, determining the City's policies and
overseeing the allocation of the City's finances and resources. The Committee
will ensure openness in the City's financial reporting and will liaise with the Chief
Executive Officer to ensure the effective and efficient management of local
government’s financial accounting systems and compliance with legislation.

The Committee is to facilitate:

= the enhancement of the credibility and objectivity of internal and external
financial reporting;

« compliance with laws and regulations as well as use of best practice
guidelines relative to auditing: risk management; internal controls;, and
legislative compliance;

+ the provision of an effective means of communication between the external
auditor, the Chief Executive Officer and the Council.

2. | Powers The Committee does not have executive powers or authority to implement actions

in areas over which the Chief Executive Officer has legislative responsibility and

does not have any delegated financial responsibility. The Committee does not

have any management functions and cannot involve itself in management

processes or procedures.

The Committee is to report to Council and provide appropriate advice and
recommendations on matters relevant to its terms of reference in order to
facilitate informed decision-making by Council in relation to the legislative
functions and duties of the local government that have not been delegated to the
Chief Executive Officer.

3. | Membership The Committee will consist of five* elected members including the Chair.

All Members shall have full voting rights. The tenure of Member on the
Committee is in accordance with section 5.11 of the Local Government Act 1995,
and other Councillors are appointed as Deputy Members in accordance with
section 5.11A. The Chief Executive Officer and other employees are not
members of the Committee.

The Chief Executive Officer or his/her nominee, is to be available together with
the Director Finance and Corporate Services or his/her nominee, to attend all
meetings to provide advice and guidance to the Committee. Other Council
officers may attend meetings as and when required. The City shall provide such
administrative support to the Committee as may be required from time to time.
*minimum three required under legislation
4. | Meetings The Committee shall meet at least quarterly**. Additional meetings shall be
convened at the discretion of the Chair.
“*minimum annually under legisiation
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5. | Order of The order of business for Committee meetings shall be, or as near thereto as
Business practicable:

Members Present,

Apologies;

Leave of Absence;

Declarations of Interest;

Question Time;

Declaration by Members whether they have given due consideration to all
matters contained in the Agenda before the meeting;
«  Confirmation of Minutes of Previous Meeting;

«  Non Confidential Items;

+ Confidential Items; and

«  General Business.

The duties and responsibilities of the Committee will be to:

6. | Duties and
Responsibilities (a) provide guidance and assistance to Council as to the carrying out of the
functions of the local government in relation to internal and external

audits***;

(b) develop and recommend to Council an appropriate process for the
selection and appointment of a person as the local government’s auditor***;

(c) consider and recommend to Council a list of those matters to be audited;
and the scope of the audit to be undertaken**;

(d) recommend to Council the person or persons to be appointed as auditor™*;

(e) consider and recommend to Council a written agreement for the
appointment of the Auditor***. Such agreement is to include: the objectives
of the audit scope of the audit; a plan of the audit, details of the
remuneration and expenses to be paid to the auditor; and the method to be
used by the local government to communicate with, and supply information
to, the auditor;

(f) meet with the City's auditor once in each year and provide a report to
Council on the matters discussed and outcome of those discussions***;

() liaise with the Chief Executive Officer to ensure that the City does
everything in its power to assist the auditor to conduct the audit and carry
out his or her other duties under the Local Government Act 71985 and
ensure that audits are conducted successfully and expeditiously;

(h)y examine the reports of the auditor after receiving a report from the Chief
Executive Officer on the matter and determine if any matters raised require
action to be taken by the local government; and ensure that appropriate
action is taken in respect of those matters;

(i) review the report prepared by the Chief Executive Officer on any actions
taken in respect of any matters raised in the report of the auditor and
present the report to Council for adoption prior to the end of the next
financial year or six months after the last report prepared by the auditor is
received, whichever is the latest in time;

0 review the scope of the audit plan and program and their effectiveness***;

(k) seek information or obtain expert advice through the Chief Executive
Officer on matters of concern within the scope of the Committee’s Terms of
Reference following autherisation from the Council; and

0] support the implementation of a Risk Management culture and satisfy itself
that appropriate and adequate risk controls and processes are in operation.

**subject to the Auditor General appointing auditors under the amended Part 7 of
the Local Gavernment Act 1995,

Location City of Bayswater Civic Centre.

Liaison Officer | Director Finance and Corporate Services or nominated officer.
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Attachment 2

Local Government

Operational Guidelines
Number 09 - Revised September 2013

Audit in Local
Government

The appointment, function
and responsibilities of
Audit Committees

Page 134



ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

12 DECEMBER 2017

Page 2 of 20

Audit i Local Government

1. Introduction

The Local Gavernment Act 7895 (the
Act) requires that all local govemments
gstablish an audit committae. An

audit committes plays 8 key role n
asaisting a local government to fulfil its
governance and oversight responsibilities
in relation to financial reporting, intemal
contrel structure, nsk management
systems, legislatve compliance, ethical
accountability and the intemnal and external
audit functions,

The purpose of this guidelne 15 to assist
loeal governments to establish and
operate an effective audit commities.
Clear and comprehensive terms of
reference, setting out the committee’s
roles and responsibilities, are essential
and a model terms of reference faran
audit commuttes g provided with this
guideline. Matters such as the governing
legislation, membership, printary roles
and responsitilities of the committee and
ancillary functions are also addressed.
Guidance 13 provided to the committes
as it approaches its task of appainting

an external auditor through provision of

a rminimum standard audit specification
and as it forms an opinion of the local
government's intemnal audit regquiremants.

2. Audit Requirements,
Committees and Functions

The ralevant parts of the Act and
regulations that relste to audit
reguirements, audit commitises
and their functions are listed below,

Financial Management

I relatian to financial management under
Part B of the Act, a local government is to -

al prepare and adopt an annual budgst
in the form and manner prescnbed
(section 6.2}, A copy of the budget is
to be sent to the Department within
30 days of adoption.

b) prepare an annual financial report
and such other financial reparts as
prascribed. The accaunts of the local
govermiment and annual financial report
are 1o be submitted to the auditar for
audit by 30 September (saction 6.4).

gl have a municipal fund and a separate
and distinct trust fund (section 6.6

dl establsh and maintain resenve funds
for the holding of monies sat aside for
future use {section 6.11)

Audit Requirements for
Local Governments

Part 7 of tha Act and the Local
Government (Audit) Requlations 1996
ithe Regulations! address the situation of
audit. |n relation to the duties of the local
government with respect to audits -

al the local government 15 to do
aeverything in its power to —
I. &ssist the auditor to conduct an aucdit
and carry out his or her other duties
under the Act; and
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il ensure that audits are conducted
sugcessfully and expeditiously;
bl a local government is to meet with its
auditor at least once in every year,
¢l a local government 12 to examine the
report of the auditor and is to -

I. determine if any matters raised
require action to be taken by the
local gevernment; and

il ensure that appropriate action is
taken in respect of those maners;

i a local government is to -

i. prepare a report on any actions taken
in respect of any matters raised in
the report of the auditor; and

il. forward a copy of that report 1o
the Minister by the end of the next
financial year, or six months after the
last report prepared by the auditor
is received by the local gavernment,
whichever 3 the latest in time.

Establishment of the Audit Committee
The Act and Regulations provide that:

In relation to the establishiment of an
audit cammittes —

a) each local government is to establish an
audit commuttes consisting of thres or
more persons to exgroise the powers
and discharge the duties conferred
on it

bl meambers of the committes ars 1o
be appointed by an absolute majority
decision of Council. At lzast thres of
the members, and the majonty of the
mambers, are to be slectad members;

¢l the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) 15
not o be a member of the committes
and may not nomnate a person to
be a member or have a parson to
represent lim or her as 8 member of
the committes;

di an employes is not to be a member of
the committee,

el the only powers and duties that can
be delegated to a commities are any
of the powers and duties of the local
government under Part 7 of the Act;
that 15, thase relating to audit. The
committee cannot on-delegate the
powers and duties delegated to it;

fI an audit committee with a member
who 15 a persan that 13 not an elected
meamber can be delegated povwers and
duties referred to in (&), and

g a decision of the committes is 1o be
made by simple majonty.

Audit Committee Functions

The Regulations state that an
audit cammittee —

lal is to provide guidance and assistance
to the local government -
ti} as to the carrying out of 1ts functions
in relation to audits camied out under
Part 7 of the Act;
) as to the development of a process
o be used to select and appoint a
person o be an auditor,
fa} may pravide guidance and assistances to
the local government as to —
lil maters to be audited,
tiil the scope of audits;
il its functions under Part 6 of
the Act;
tivh the carrying out of its functions
refating to other audits and
other matters related to financial
managemsiit;
le) is to review a report given to it by the
CEC under regulatian 17(3) (the CEO's
report) and s to -
il report to the council the results of
that review;
il give a copy of the CEQ's report Lo
the coungil,
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() review the annual Compliance Audit
Return and report to the council the
results of that review, and

te} consider the CEO's ienmal reviews of
the approprigteness and effectiveness
of the local government's systems
and procedures in regard to risk
management, internal contral and
legislative comphance and report to the
council the results of those reviews,

3. Operation of
Audit Committees

Role and Responsibilities

The rale of the audit commities 13 to
support Councll in fulfilling its governance
and oversight responsibilities in ralation
ta financial reporting, internal contral
structure, sk management systems,
internal and extarnal audit functions and
ethical accountatility,

The audit comimittse should critically
examine the audit and managsment
reports provided by the external auditor,
The committes would then determine

if matters raised in the reports requirs
action 1o be taken by the local govermment
and ensure that appropriate action 15
implemented.

A further role for the audit committees
would be to reseive and authaorise the
report relating to the audit prepared by the
CEQ that is to be sent to the Minister

This report would outline any actions the
leeal government has taken or intends 1o
take in relation to the matters entified
by the auditor.

While a formal internal audit function
could be considered to be an operational
function and therefore the respansibility
of the CEQ, it i1s desirable foran

intarnal auditor to have a direct line of
communication to the Audit Committes.

The Audit Cammittee neads to form an
apinion af the local government's intemal
audit requirements and recommend a
course of action that ensures that any
intermal audit processes adopted are
apprograte, accountable and transparent,
The role of the external auditor in this
regard can be established at the time

of appomtiment.

Pleass note that an audit committes {or
any other committee) cannot be given

a management task where the Act and
Regulations make the CEQ specifically
responzitle. Where the local government
i assigned the function through the
legizlation, the audit committee may
have & role unless the function has beean
delegated to the CEC by the Council

The deliberations and recommendaticns
of the committee must ba indepsndent
and autanomous. Therefare, the Act
prolubits the CEQ being 8 member of
the committee. However, it is essential
that the CEO be given every cpportunity
to provide hisfher expart advice to the
cammittee as hafshe doss with full
Council and other comimiliees,

A miode! terms of reference is attached as
Appendix 1 to assist local governments
to deling an approprate role Tor s audit
committes: When considenng the model,
loeal governmants need to remember it 18
a guide and they can delete ar modify any
matters they believe not applicable.
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It is impertant to note that the legislaton
gives the audit committes a specific rola in
appointing the auditor. It is to recammend
to the Council who should be appointed
as the auditor. Attached as Appendix 2

is 8 medel ‘Minimium Standard Sudit
Specitication’ that local governments can
use whan developing a process 1o be

used 1o select and appoimnt a person to

bz the auditar,

Local governments can amend the
document to suit their indwvidual
requirements, Any scope adopted must
meet, as a minimum, the legislative
requirgments, as outlined in the Act
and the Regqulations.

The legislation specifies that a local
governmeant 15 raquired o meet with

its auditar at least once in every year

The term "local government” in thig
context means the Council. If Counzil so
resolved wvia a formal delegation, & meeting
between the audit committes and the
auditar wauld satisfy this requirement

It is acknowledged that the requirement
to meet at least once per year may
incur a significant financial burden for
the more remaote local governments.

In such circumstances the meating

can be conducted by telephone or

video conferaince. The Counci| or sudit
committee should resolve how the
mesting with the auditor will be conducted
and for the record of the meeting to
show that the auditor was involved

and the maters discussed. It would be
inapproprate for Council representatives
to meat with the auditor n thewr offices
unless they were members of the Audit
Commitiee or a significant majority of
the members are present.

The committes may need to haise
regularly with the external auditor

1o discuss the audit plan, results of

the audit and implementation of any
recommendations for action emearging
from the audit. How communication and
ligizon between auditor and commitissa
iz to accur should be addressed in the
agreement of appointment.

Advice from the auditer may address
i2sues slich as -

lih  anassesament of accounting
procedures,

il anassessment of intemal contrals;

iy anassessment of risk;

v compliance with the Act and
associated regulations;

vl compliance with Council policies,

il performance assessments on the
efficiency and effectiveness of
operations;

il processes af the internal audit;

il cutcomes of the external audit pnor
1o issue of management and audit
reports; and

lix} changes to accounting standards and
legislation and the impact on the local
govermment.

Membership

The Act requires that an audit committes
is to consist of & minimum of 3 members
and i that sitwation all must be council
migmbers, Where a8 committee cansists
of more than 3 membears then a majonty
of those members must be counail
members. Local governments may decide
to appoint a committes imvolving only
electad mambers or they may appoint
ohe or mere persons who are external

to the Council. If a Council congiders it
appropnate, the whole Council can be
appmntad to the audit committes,
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If the lecal government wishes to appoint
one or mere persons other than elected
members to the committee, which is
recommended, it should ensure that they
have the requisite knowledge and skills to
provide benefit to the committee

Operation of the Committee

Irrespective of the membership of the
committes, all legislative requirements
relating to committee meetings such

as advertising meesting dates, notice of
meeting and kesping minutes of meetings
nesd to be complied with.

The legislation prevents a meeting

fea being paid to an external person

but it i1s permissible for a payment

to be made as a reimbursement of
expenses, commensrate with the
expertise and knowledge such people
bring to the committee. The Council will
need to determing whether payment
will be offered and the level of that
reimbursement payment,

Members of the committee should be
encouraged to attend appropriate courses
to keep them up to date with legislation,
accounting and othar relevant 1ssues,

Other Responsibilities

Local governments are required by
legizlation 1o complete a statutory
compliance return (Compliance Audit
Retum or CAR) annually and have the
return adapted by Council The retum
15.a checkhist of a local governmeant's
comphance with the requirements

ef the Act and its Regulations,
concentrating on areas of compliance
cansidered "high risk”

The Audit Committes 15 to review the
annual CAR and report 1o the Council the
results of that review, prior to adoption
of the return by Council. After adoption,
the returmn I to be signed by the Mayor
or President and the CEO prior to it being
forwarded to the Departiment.

The Audit Cammities is ta consider the
CEQ's biennial reviewss (see Regulation 170
of the appropriatensss and effectiveness
of the lacal government's systems and
procedures in regard to nsk management,
intarnal contral and legislative compliarice
and report ta the courcil the results of
those reviews,

Anached as Appendix 3 is information to
assist in determining what falls within the
terms ‘nsk management, internal control’
and ‘legislative compliance.

The audit committee could also consider
proposals from the CEQ as to whether the
compliance audit, and the bennal reviews
of risk management, internal control and
legislative compliance, are undertaken
internally or an external party is contracted
to undertake the task. In the case of

an external party the audit commitiee
would have responsibihity to receve the
review repart from the CEO and make
resammandations on it to full Council.
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4. The External Audit

Appointment of the Auditor
The Act and Regulations provide that —

al on the recommendation of the audit
committes a local government 1s

to from time to time appoint, by
absclute majority, a person to be its
auditor;

the local govermment may appaint one
or mare parsens as its auditor;

¢! the lecal government’s auditer is ta be

a person wWno 1s -

a. aregistersd company auditor, or

b. an auditor approved by the Minister;

db a person may not be appeinted as a local
government audrtor if that person is -

a. a counciller or employee of the
lacal government;

b. in debt to the lacal government for
more than £5,000;

¢. a councillor sremployee of a regional
local gowvernment in which the local
government 15 a participant,

d. a member of an incorporated
assocation formed by the local
gavarnmeant; or

a. a class of persons as prescribed in
the Regulations;

ab an auditor 1s not to be appointed for
mare than five vears, and

fi the appointment of a persan as an
auditor 1s to be made by agreement in
writing and is to include -

[, the oectives of the audit,

ii. the scope of the audit;

iii. & plan for the audit;

v, details of the remuneration
and expanses to be paid to the
auditor; and

v. the method to be used by the
lacal government to communicate
with, and supply infermation to,
the auditer,

b

The committee should undertake a proper
selection and appointment process as part
of appointing, or reappointing an auditor,

If reappomtment is being considerad, the
process should nclude the review of key
Iszuas as in 1. to v. above.

It is important to realise that the Act
specifies that it is a named parsonls) that
15 appainted as auditor, not the company,
or ‘the partners’ of the company which
emplays the persan. Therefore, when

the audit report 1s recaved 1t must be
signed by the personish appointed as the
auditor; it cannot be the generic signature
identifying the firm.

Conduct of the Audit
The Act and Regulations provide that —

a! the auditor is required by 31 Decamber
next following the financial year to
which the audit relates, to examine the
accounts and annual financial report
submitted for audit;

bl the auditor iz to form an opinion as
to whether -

I, the accounts are properly kept, and
ii. the annual financial repart -
* §5 prepared 0 accordancs with
the financial records; and
+ reprezents fairly the results
of the operations of the local
government and its financial
position at 30 June;

¢! the auditor is to prepare a repart on the
audit and within 30 days of completing
the audit forward a copy to -

1. the mayor or president;

. the CEQ of the local government;
and

i, the Minister;
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d) the report is to give the auditor's
opinien an -

i. the financial position of the local
government; and

ii. the rasults of the operation of the
local government;

gl the report is to include -

i any matanal matters that indicate
significant adverse trends in the
financial position or the financial
management practices of the local
govermiment;

ii. any matters indicating non-
comphance with finansal
management ragquiremeants of the
Act, Regulations and any other
wiritten law,

ii. details of whether information and
explanations were chiained,

iv. a report an the conduct of the audit;
and

¥, the apinion of the auditor as to
whether or not the specific financial
ratios reported are supported by
verifishle informatian and reasonable
assumptions,

fl where it iIs considered aparopriata

to do so the auditor is to prepare a

managermeant report to accompany the

auditor’s report;
gl where the auditer considers that -

i. thereis any error or deficiency in an
account or financial report;

ii, any maneay paid fram, or dus to the
local governmient has been, or may
have been misapplied; or

i there is a matter arising from the
audit that needs to be addressed
by the local government; details are
10 be ncluded in the report to the
Minister, and

hl the auditor has a right of access at
all reasonable times to such books,
accounts, documents and assets of the
local government as are in the opinion
of the auditor necessary to allow the
audit to be conducted.

Scopa of the Audit

The Act and Regulations prescribe the
scope of the external audit of the annual
financial statements of a local government

The scope details are going 1o vary
between local governments but as an
aicl a modeal minimum standard audit
specification is attached as Appendix 2
to this guideline. Indiidual logal
governments can amend that decument
to suit their partcular needs.

Reperting by the Auditor

Regulations require the auditor, whene
appraprate, to prepars 2 managament
report to accomgaany the auditor's

report. Although there 1s no lecizlative
requirement for the auditor to prepare

a management report unlsss he or she
deems it appropriate, local gavernment
may wigh to require the auditor to prepare
a report on all iIssues wentified dunng

tha auait,

The auditer, after completing the audit, is
to forward a copy of his or her audit and
management report to -

+ the Mayor or President;
- the CEC of the local government; and
= the Minister via the Department.

It 1= the CEQ's responsibility to ensure that
the external audit report 15 provided to the
audit committee. In considering the audit
and management reports presented to the
audit committee, the CED should:
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ab examine any critical matters raised
in the regorts that affect the financial
positian of the local government; and
bl provide comment onany crtical
matters rarsed and action proposed to
be taken to address those mattaers.

Once Council has addressed matters
raised, or accepted the CED's planned
remedial action on matters raised in
the audit and management reports, the
CEO should provide feedback to the
Department on those matters.

Appendix 1

Model Terms of Referance -
Audit Committeas

Important: The following Model Terms of
Heference contains clauses that may not
be applicable to each local government
Local governments will nead to consider
each clause and only adopt those that are
applicable to the reles and responsibilities
and delegated powers and functions that
will apply to their audit committee.

The clauses that may be considered
apticnal have been astensked (*).

Ojectives of Audit Conmittess

The primary chiective of the audit
caommittes is to accept respansibility
for the annual external audit and lizise
with the lecal government’s auditor so
that Council can be satisfied with the
performance of the local government in
managing its financial affairs.

Reparts from the commiittes will assist
Council in discharging its legislative
responsibilities of controlling the loeal
government’s affairs, determining the local
govermment’s policies and oversesing

the allccation of the local government’s
finances and resources. The committeea
will ansure openness in the lacal
government's financial reporting and will
liaise with the CEQ to ensure the effective
and efficient management of the local
government’s financial accounting systems
and compliance with legislation,

The commities is to facilitate -

+ the enhancemeant of the credibility and
objectyvity of *internal ard external
financial reporting;
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« *pffective management of financial
and other nsks and the protection of
Council assets;

« compliancewith laws and regulations as
well as use of best practice guidelines
relative to audit, sk management,
intemal control and legislative
complance,

* *the coordination af the intermnal audit
function with the external audi, and

« the provision of an effective maans of
communication between the extemal
auditor, *internal auditor, the CEQ and
the Council.

Powers of the Audit Commitiee

The Audit commitlas is o report 1o
Council and pravide appropriate advice
and recammendations on matters

relevant to its term of reference. This is

in arder to facilitate informad decision-
making by Council n relation to the
legislative furctions and duties of the local
governiment that have not been delegated
to the CEOQ.

The committes is a formally appointad
committee of council and is respansible
to that body. The committes does rot
have executive powers or authority to
implement actions in areas over which
the CEO has legislative respansibility and
does not have any delegated financial
responsibility, The committes does not
have any management functicns and
cannot invalye itself in managsment
processes or procedures.

Membership

The committes will consist of *faur
mambers with three elected and *one
extarnal person. All members shall have
full voting rights,

*Extarnal persons appointed to the

cammittes will have business or financial
management/reporiing knowledge and
experience, and be conversant with
financial and other reporting requirsments.

*Appointment of external persons shall

be made by Council by way of a public
advertisemeant and be for a maximum
term of tweo years, The terms of the
appointment should be arranged 1o ensure
an orderly retation and continuity of
membarship despite changes to Council's
electad representatves.

* Baimbursement of aporoved expenses
will be paid to each external person who is
a member of the commitiee.

The CEQ and employess are not members
of the commitize.

The CEQ or hisfher nominee is ta be
available to attend mestings to provndsa
advice and guidance to the committee

The lacal gavarnment shall provide
sagretarial and administrative support to
the committee.

Mestings

The committee shall meet at least "guarterly.
Additional meetings shall be convenad st
the discretion of the presiding person.
Reporting

Reports and recommendations of each
cammittes meeting shall be presentad to
the next ordinary meeting of the Council,

*The committee shall report annually to
the Council summansing tis activities
during the previous financial year.

Duties and Responsibilities

The duties and responsisilities of the
cammittee will ba -
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al Provide guidance and assistance to

Council as to the carrying out the

functions of the local government in

relation to audits;

Develop and recommend to Council an

appropriate process for the selection

and appomtment of a person as the

loeal government’s auditor;

Develop and recommend to Council -

a list of those matters ta ba

audited: and

= the scope of the sudit to be
undertaken;

Recommend 1o Council the person or

persons to be appointed as auditor;

Develop and recommend to Council

awritten agreament for the

appointment of the external auditor.

The agresment 15 to include -

the objectves of the audit;

the scope of the sudit;

a plan of the audit;

details of the remuneration and

expenses to be paid 1o the

auditor; and

the method 1o be used by the

lacal government to communicate

with, and supply infermation to,

the auditor;

Meet with the auditor ance in sach

year and provide a report to Council on

the matters discussed and outsome of

those discussions;

Lisise with the CED 1o ensure that the

lecal government does everything in its

pOWEr To —

assist the auditar to conduct the

audit and carry out hus or her other

duties under the Local Government

Act 1895 and

ensure that audits are condustad

successfully and expeditiously,;

Examing the reports of the auditor after

recaiving a report from the CEG on the

mattars (o -

b

¢l

o)

el
ki

m)

f

n

q!
ol

h

< determine iIf any matters raised
require action to be taken by the
local government; and
= ensure that appropriate action 15
taken in respact of those matters;
Rewview the report prepared by the
CEC on any actions taken in respect of
any matters raised in the report of the
auditar and presenting the report to
Council for adoption prior to the end
of the next financial year or & months
after the last report prepared by the
auditar is received, whichaver is the
latest in time,
Review the scope of the audit plan
and program and its effectiveness;
*Beview the appropriataness of special
internal audit assignments undertaken
by internal audit at the request of
Council or CEQ (z2e reference to
internal audit page 144,
*Review the level of resources
allocated to internal audit and the scops
of its authonty,
*Review reparts of internal audits,
manitor the implamentation of
recammendations madea by the audit
and review the extent to which
Council and management reacts to
mattars raised;
*Facilitate haison between the intemal
and external auditor to promote
compatibility, to the extent approprate,
between their audit programs,
*Review the local government’s draft
annual financial report, focusing on -
- accounting policies and practices,
= changes to accounting policres and
practices;
the process used in making
significant accounting astimates;
significant adjustments to the
financial report (if any) ansing from
the audit process,
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= compliance with accounting
standards and other reporting
requiraments, and

+ significant vanances from pror years;

pl *Conswderand recommend adoption of
the annual financial report to Council.
Review any sigrificant changes that
may anse subsequent to any such
recommendation but befare the annual
financial report is signed;

gl *Address issuss brought to the
attention of the comnmittes, including
rasponding to requests fram Council
for advice that ars within the
parameters of the committee’s terms
of reference;

rl Seek information or obitain expert advice
through the CEQ on matters of concern
within the scope of the commitiee's
terms of reference following
authonsation from the Council;

s} Bewview the annual Compliance Audit
Return and report to tha council the
results of that review, and

tl Consider the CEQ's biennial raviews af
the approgriatensss and effectivensss
of the local government’s systems
and procedures in regard to risk
managerment, intermal contral and
legistative compliance, required to
be provided to the committes, and
repart to the council the results of
those reviews,

Internal Audit

Many local governmeants have recognised
the need to improve their intermal auditing
processes, and have moved to either
employ an intemnal auditor or contract out
the internal audit function.

Internal auditing is an independeant,
chjective assurance and consulting astivity
designed to add value and imprave an
oroganisation’s operations, It helps an

crganisation accomplish its objectives by
bringing a systematic, disciplined approach
to evaluate and improve the effectiveness
of nsk managemeant, control, and
JOVErmance Drocesses,

The scops of an internal audn would be
determined by the Audit committes, with
ingatit from the CEQ, based on the size of
the local government’s internal operations
and the level of compliance to be achieved
The rale differs from that of the external
auditor who 1s appointed by councilon the
recammendation of the Audit Committee,
to report independantly to it, through

the mayorfpresident and the CEO, on

the annual financial statements. The
extarnal auditor's primary role s to

decide whether the annual finarcial
statements of a local government are
free of material misstaterment

There are cartain functions of the internal
audit that complement the external
auditor's rale, Az the external auditor
plans for an effective audit they need to
assess and determine wheather to nclude
the scope, procedures and outcomes of
the intermal audit, The CEQ must refer

all mternal audit reports to the Sudit
Committes far consideration

A internal auditor's actvities should
typically include the following:

ta) review of the internal control
structure, monitoring the operations
of the information system and
intermal controls and providing
recommeandations for improvements;

bt a nisk assesasment with the intention of
faninsing exposure to all forms of nsk
on the local government,

tc) examination of financial and operating
infarmation that includes detailed
tasting of transactions, balances and
procedures;
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{d) a review of the efficiency and
effectiveness of operations and
services including non-financial controls
of a local government;

(e} a review of compliance with
management policies and directives
and any other internal requirements;

{f) review of the annual Compliance Audit
Return;

(g) assist in the CEQ's biennial reviews of
the appropriateness and effectiveness
of the local government's systems
and procedures in regard to risk
management, internal control
and legislative compliance; and

(h} specific tasks requested by
management.

For local government, the internal auditor
should report functionally to the audit
committee and administratively to the
CEOQ. It should be remembered that
pursuant to section 5.41 of the Act, the
CEO is responsible for the day-to-day
management of council activities including
the direction of staff and implicitly the
internal audit function. The CEOQ may
choose to delegate this responsibility
provided always that the delegation

does not directly or indirectly interfere
with the ability of the Internal Auditor to
conduct an internal audit function free
from interference.

A clear and properly defined reporting
relationship ensures that the internal
auditor is empowered to perform their

role working with management. The direct
reporting line to the audit committee also
acts as an adequate safeguard in the event
of a serious breakdown in internal controls
or internal control culture at senior levels in
the organisation,

While it is recognised that smaller
councils may not be able to justify a

full-time internal auditor, a small size of
operation does not justify forgoing internal
audit altogether. If audit committee or
management is of the view that the
employment of an independent internal
auditor either full-time or part-time is not
warranted, it may request the council to
have the internal audit function undertaken
as necessary by an external contractor, or
expand the role of its external auditor.

The external auditor or his or her
professional company should only
undertake internal audit functions that
complement the external audit and do not
cloud the objectivity and independence

of the external audit. An external auditor
must not audit information prepared by
them or their accounting practice, as this is
considered incompatible with the standard
of independence.

Local governments that do not establish
an internal audit process but require

a review of the financial management
systems and procedures, may decide to
use the services of the external auditor
for that purpose. Such reviews are to be
undertaken every four years in accordance
with regulation 5(2)(c) of the Local
Government (Financial Management)
Regulations 1996.

The review of financial management
systems and procedures provides the
external auditor with greater assurance
of systems and procedures used to
prepare the annual financial statements,
and whether they provide information
free of material misstatement.
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Appendix 2

Model Minimum Standard Audit
Specification

Important: The fallowing Medel Mininum
Standard Audt Specification may be used
as the basis for the calling of tenders or
seaking of quotes for the appointment

of an auditor Local governments nead

to consider the Model to ensure that

only those clauses applicakle to its
requirements are used. This applies,

in particular, to the "Critcal matters to
baaudited”

Introduction

Thiz dacument is provided for the
assistance of auditors who wish to
apply for the role of auditor with the
City/Town/Shire,

Auditors are required to addrass all of the
matters outhned in the specification.

Auditors whao subrmit an application may
bve askad to provide further infarmation
andfor make & presentation to the audit
Carmittes.

Ohijectives of the Audit

To provide an independent audit opinion of
the accounts and annual financia! reports
of the local government for each financial
vear covered by the tarm of the audit
appointment.

Term of Audit Appointment

Far the financial years commencing 1 July
cveen through to 30 June...... . {hot more
than & years)

Scope of the Audit
The auditor s to -

Carry out such work as 15 necessary to
form an opinion as to whether -

ta) the accounts are properly kept; and
tb) the annual financial report -
(il s prepared in accardance with the
financial records; and
i) represents fairly the results of the
operations of the local government
and the financial position of the
local government at 30 June in
accordance with the Australian
Accounting Standards, the Local
Government Act 1895 (as amended)
the Act), the Local Govermirnent
fFinancia! Management! Regulations
1998 (as amended! and other
randatary professional reporting
requirements,

Give an opinion in his ar her audit
report on -

ta) the financial position of the local
government; and

{bl the results of the operation of the
local government

Include in his or her audit report -

ta) any matenal matters that indicats
significant adverse trends in the
financial position or the financial
management practices of the local
government;

to} any matters indicating nen-comphance
weith financial management or control
requiremants of the Act, Regulations
and any othar written law,

tc) details of whether infformation and
explanations were obtained by the
auditor;
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id} a report on the conduct of the audit;
and

le} the opinion of the auditar as to
whether or not the specific financial
ratios reported are supported by
venfiable information and reascnable
assumptions.

Audit Methodology and Approach

Crther requirements of the Auditor -

{a) The auditor is required to comply
with the requirements of section 79
of the Local Government Act 1995
and the Local Government (Audrt)
Reguiations 1938,

b} Ar audit is to be carried out in
accordance with accounting standards
adopted from time to time by the
Australan Government Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board (AuASE)

e} The auditor is to provide tha local
government with a general outline
of hisfhar methodology,

id} The auditer is to provide the local
governmant with a plan for the
audit including -

« timing of itenim audit visits;

= final audt visit (within 20 days of
bemng adwised that the accounts and
annual fimancial report are available
for audit];

= timang of the legisiative requirement
to meat with the local government
and whether that meeting will be in
person or by some other means;

« the method to be used to
communicate with, and provide
advice and information to, the local
government; and

(e} The auditor is required to produce an
audit report as required by section 79
of the Local Government Act 1995 and,
if considered apgropriate by the auditor,
a management repor

Critical Matiers to be Audited

The auditor 15 to include in ks ar her
appheaton the sxtent to which the critical
ratters autlined below will be audited so
as to form an opinion on the manner in
wihich they have been mamntained.

it Revenue
« Rates ravenus
« Gowvernment grants
« User pays revenus
= Profit on sale of non-current assets
= Othar income
il Expenditure
= Salary and wage costs
« Depreciation
= Materials and contract expenditure
< Loss on sale of non-current assets
+ Insurances
« Bad debts
+ Dther expanditure
) Current Assets
= Bank and short term investments
« Hecewables and prepayments
+ Inventory
vh Meon-Current Assets
- Property, plant, fumniture and
equipment
= Infrastructure and depreciation
= Other racewables
il Liabilimies (Current and noncurrent)
« Creditors-and accruals
+ Leoan bemowings including new
loans raised
« Provision for anhual and long
sarvice leave entitlements
vl Reserve Funds
vl Contingsnt Liabiliues
il Capital Cammitments
it Accounting Pelicies and Notes ta the
Financial Statemants
%) Cash Flow Statament
b The financial ratios required by
the Local Government (Financial
Management! Raguiations 1998
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Hours, Fees and Expenditure
The auditor is to provide —

+ estimate of the time to be spent on
the audit;

« fees for completing the audit in
accordance wath this specification,

« nominated auditor{s) and registared
company audit numberish, and

- expenence of the nominated auditars
in completing local government audits.

The auditor is to provide a fee forany
additional audit requested by Council

larms
Conditions to be noted by auditors -

- the audnor shall nat sub contract to a
third party;

» the auditor shall not, and has no
right to, assign the audit contract 1o
third partias;

+ the auditor shall not be engaged by
the local governiment to undertake
any financial consultancy with the
local government that reguires the
preparation of financial infarmation
that will be the subject of the annual
audit; and

« the auditar shall confirm that he or
she has, and will maintain dunng the
duration of the audit term, professional
indemnity insurance covering the legal
ligkility arising out of any neglect,
default, error, or omission

Termination of Appointment

The appaintment as auditor is
terminated if =

{a) the auditor ceases to be a registered
company auditor;

ib) the auditor ceases to be an approved
auditor under Section 75 of the Local
Government Act 1985,

iz} the audiaor is a disqualified person
under Section 74(2] of the Lacal
Government Act 1985,

td) the auditor resigns by natice in writing
to Counctl; or

te} Council servas notice in writing to the
auditor terminating the appointment,
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Appendix 3

Issues that should be considered for
inclusion in the CEO's Review of Risk
Management, Intemal Control and
Lagislative Compliance

Please note: Section 7 of the Department's

Western Australian Local Government
Accounting Manual provides a
comprehensive internal contral framewerk
related to internal contral and nsk
managemeant.

Risk Management

Internal contral and risk management
systems and programs are a key
expression of a local government's
attitude to effective controls, Good audit
committee gractices 0 monitoring intermal
cantrel and risk management programs
typically include:

+ Rewvievang whether the local
government has an effective risk
managemeant system and that material
operating risks to the local government
are appropnately considered,

+  Reviewing whether the local
government has a current and affectve
Busmess continwty plan (ncluding
disaster recovery) which 1s tested
from tme to time;

+ Assessing the internal processes for
determining and managing material
operating risks in accordance with
the local government’s identified
tolerance for nsk, particularly in the
following areas;

- petential non-compliance with
legislation, regulations and standards
and local government's policies;

- impartant accounting judgements or
estimatas that prove to be wrong;

litigation and claims;
= misconduct, fraud and theft,
- - significant business risks, recognising
responsibility for general or
specific risk arsas, far example,
environmaental nsk, cccupational
health and safety. and how they are
managed by the local government;
Obtaining reqular risk reports, which
identify key rizks, the status and the
effectiveness of the risk management
systems, to ensure that identified
nsks are monitored and new risks are
identified, mitigated and repontad,
Assessing the adequacy of loeal
government processes (o manage
insurable rsks and ensure the adequacy
of iInsurance cover, and if applicable, the
level of self-insurance,
Reviewing the effectiveness of the local
govermment’s mtsmal contral system
with mianagement and the internal and
extarnal auditors;
Assessing whether management has
contrals in place for unusual types
of transactions andfor any potential
tranzactions that might camry more than
an acceptable degree of risk;
Asszessing the local government’s
procurement framawaork with a focus on
the probity and transparency of policies
and procedures/pracesses and whether
these are being applied,
Should the need arise, mesting
periodically with key management,
intemal and external auditors, and
compliance staff, to understand and
discuss anv changss i the logal
government’s control emvironment,
Ascertaining whether fraud and
rmisconduct nsks have been identified,
analysed, evaluated, have an
appropnate treatiment plan which has
been implementad, cormmunicatad,
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monitored and there is regular reporting
and ongoing management of fraud and
misconduct nsks.

Internal Control

Internal contrel is a key componeant

of a sound governance framework,

in addition ta leadership, long-tenm
planning, compliance, resource allocation,
accountability and transparency. Strategies
to maintain sound intermal controls are
based on nsk analysis of the internal
cperations of a local government,

An effective and transparant internal
control environment is built on the
following key areas

- integrity and ethics,
+ policies and delegated authority,
- levels of responsibilities and authorities,
+ audit practices;
« nformation system access and secunty;
- management operating style: and
« human rescurce manageament
and practices.

Internal control systems invalve policies
and procedures that safeguard essets,
ensure accurate and reliable financial
reporting, promoete compliance with
legislation and achieve effective and
efficient operations and miay vary
depending on the size and nature of

the local gevernment.

Aspects of an effective contral framework
will include:

+ delegation of authonty;

« documentad policies and procadures;

« trained and qualified emplovees;

« system controls;

+ effective policy and process review,

- regular internal audits;

- docurmentation of risk identification
and assessment; and

= regular laisen with auditer and
legal adwvisors.

The following are examples of contiols
that are typically reviewed:

« separation of roles and functions,
processing and authorisation,

« control of approval of documents,
letters and financial records;

- companson of internal data with cther
or external sources of information;

= fimit of direct physical access to assets
and records;

= control of computer applications and
information systam standards;

= limit access to make changes in data
files and systems;

= regular maintenance and review
of finangial contral accaunts and
trial balances,

» gcompanson and snalysis of linansal
results with budgeted amounts,

+ the anthmetical accuracy and content
of records,;

= report, review and approval of financial
payments and reconciliations; and

- companson of the result of physical
cash and Inventary counts with
accounting recards.

Legislative Compliance

The compliance prograims of 2 local
governmant are a strong indication of
attitude towards meeting legislative
reguirements, Audit cammitiee practices
in regard to momtonng comphance
programs typically include:

« Monitonng compliance with legislation
and regulations;

+ Reviewing the annual Compliance Audit
Return and reporting to Council the
resilts of that review,

-+ Staying informed about how
management is monitoring the
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effectiveness of its compliance and
making recemmendations for change
as necessary;

+ Reviewing whether the local
government has procedures for it 10
receive, retain and treat complaints,
including confidential and anonymous
employae complaints;

* Obtaining assurance that adverse trends
are identifiad and review managemesnt's
plans 1o deal with thess,

- Reviewing management disclosures
in financial reports of the effect of
significant comphance 1ssues;

+ Reviewing whether the internal
andfor external auditers have regard
to campliance and athics risks in the
development of their audit plan and in
the conduct of audit projects, and report
comphance and ethics issues to the
audit commuttas;

« Considenng the internal auditor's role
in agsessing compliance and sthics
risks i thear plan,

« Monitoring the local governmeant's
complance frameworks dealing
with relevant external lagislation and
regulatory requirements; and

- Complying with legislative and
regulatory reguirements imposed on
audit committee mambers, including
not mizusing their position to gain an
advantage for themselves or another
or to cause detniment to the local
government and disclesing conflicts
of interest.
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These guidelines are also avalable on the
Department’s website at www.dlgc.wa.gov.au

]
’ Local Government Advisory Hotline
1300 762 511

Email: Ighothne@dige wa.govau
8.20am=5.00pm, Monday to Friday

-

About the Guideline serias

Thiz docurnant end others in the senea are intended a2 a guide 1o good practice and should not be taken

a3 a compliance requiramant Tha contant 13 based on Clapartment officer knowladge, understanding,
ahearsation of, and appropriate consultation on contempaorary good practics n kool povamment Guidalines
miay also mvalie the Deparmant’s views on the intont and interpratation of relovant logislation

All gridelines are subjsct to review, amandment and re-pubishing a= required Therelora, conmments on any
aspact of the gudeling are walcome, Advice of mathods of impravement in the area of the guidaline topic
that can bo reported to other local governments will be especially banehcial.

i F FEL N = TS HER. - TTHEREE TEE: T O

For more infarmation about this and othar guidelinas,
contact the Local Government Regulation and Suppert Branch at

Department of Local Govermnment and Communities
Gordon Stephenson House, 140 William Street, Perth WA GOO0
GPO Box R1250, Perth WA 6244

Telaphone: 108) 8551 8700 Fax: (08) 6652 1555

Freecall {Country onlyl. 1800 820 51

Email: mfo@dige.wa.govau Website: www.dige. wa.gov.au

Translaung and |nterpreting Service (TIS) —Tel: 1314 50
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13.2 Proposals for Audit and Risk Management Committee Training

Reporting Branch: Financial Services
Responsible Directorate: Finance and Corporate Services

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Application:

For the Audit and Risk Management Committee to consider the proposals provided by the
advisory directorate of Australian Institute of Company Directors (AICD) and Business Advisory
Division of Moore Stephens to conduct internal training for the benefit of Audit and Risk
Management Committee members.

Key Issues:

This report provides a summary of the proposal and costings provided by AICD and Moore
Stephens for internal governance training to be conducted with Audit and Risk Management
Committee members.

BACKGROUND

To enable Committee members to become fully inducted into their new roles and discharge their
obligations in relation to the audit and risk management oversight function, professional
development training in this regard is commended. This will include coverage of the following
topic areas:

introduction to the role of the Audit and Risk Management Committee in relation to
governance, risk, internal control and financial management;

review the challenges that Committee members are likely to face in their roles;

provide information sheets/reference materials to Committee members for future reference;
and

indicative training content (for discussion with training provider) including functions of the
Audit and Risk Management Committee, legislative background, statutory obligations
(Audit Regulation 17, oversight) and recent industry changes (operation of Local
Government Audits).

AICD has put forward a proposal to conduct a Governance Workshop for the City's Audit and
Risk Management Committee as part of its Governance Series. This course provides an
introduction to the role of the Committee in relation to governance, risk, internal control and
financial management. Based on an introductory module developed by AICD, the course leader
uses case studies and content which reflect the current real-life scenarios that affect the
Committee, and challenges that members are likely to face in their roles.

Moore Stephens has put forward a proposal to provide internal training to Elected Members,
specifically tailored to the City's requirements. This will include an introduction to the role of the
Committee in relation to financial management, governance, risk, internal control and financial
management.

CONSULTATION

The attached proposals and summary have been provided as a result of consultation with the
business advisory divisions of AICD and Moore Stephens respectively.
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ANALYSIS

The AICD workshop proposal (Attachment 1) will be structured around an existing module from
the organisation's 'Governance Series' of training for local government organisations. This
workshop will incorporate additional training content in addition to the core topic areas identified
by the City including: key governance relationships, examination of leadership roles, discussion
of how risk management principles can be applied to the role of Councillors and assessing
financial performance. The workshop is proposed to run onsite at the City for 3.5 hours at a cost
of $8,000. AICD has indicated it is able to further modify content and duration of the training if
that is required.

The Moore Stephens proposal (Attachment 2) has been tailored specifically to the City's
requirements (the role of the Committee, risk, internal control and financial management). The
workshop will focus on an introductory level of content, with a select number of topic areas
covered within limited time. The workshop is proposed to run onsite at the City for one hour at a
cost of $2,000. It is intended that this training will be held prior to/during an Audit and Risk
Management Committee meeting in early 2018.

Both consultancies have outlined experience in delivering programs for local government clients.
Currently Moore Stephens is the appointed auditor for forty-nine local governments across
Western Australia, giving the organisation a detailed knowledge of the unique statutory
requirements relating to the audit function. The key points of difference between the quotations
are in the detail of training content, cost and duration of the workshops.

AICD requires a minimum of four weeks to develop and organise the program. It is believed
Moore Stephens requires a similar lead time.
OPTIONS
The following options are available to Council:
OPTION BENEFIT RISK

1. | The Committee engage Moore | This proposal is relatively | Committee members may not

Stephens to conduct Audit and | cheaper in cost and time be fully inducted into their
Risk  Management Committee roles..

training for new and existing

members.

Estimated Cost:

$2,000
2. | The Committee engage AICD to | This training is more | Committee members may not
conduct Audit and Risk | comprehensive with content | have sufficient time to spare.

Management Committee training
for new and existing members.
Some refinement of content and
duration of training may be
required.

Estimated Cost:
$8,000

from the Company Directors
Course for board directors to
give an understanding of
compliance, risk, strategy
finance and the role of the
board, however involves more
time commitment and is
relatively more expensive than
the other proposal.

The Committee does not support
the proposals for internal training of
new and existing members.

Estimated Cost:
Nil.

No cost to the City.

Committee members are liable
to fully discharge their
governance responsibilities in
relation to this committee.
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CONCLUSION

Option 1 is recommended with respect to time and money constraints.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The cost of this training can be sourced from Members' training allocation (Conferences
account).

STRATEGIC LINK

In accordance with the City of Bayswater Strategic Community Plan 2017-2027, the following
applies:

Theme: Leadership and Governance.
Aspiration: Open, accountable and responsive service.
Outcome L1: Accountable and good governance.

COUNCIL POLICY AND LEGISLATIVE IMPLICATIONS
Section 7.13(i) of the Local Government Act 1995.
Regulation 13, 14 and 15 of the Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996.

VOTING REQUIREMENTS
Simple Majority Required.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Australian Institute of Company Directors, 'Proposal to the City of Bayswater', October
2017.

2. Moore Stephens, 'Proposal - Audit and Risk Committee Training’, November 2017.

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

(OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION)

That the Audit and Risk Management Committee recommends that Council approve the
proposal submitted by Moore Stephens to conduct training with the City's Audit and Risk
Management Committee as summarised in Attachment 2.

CR STEPHANIE GRAY MOVED, CR LORNA CLARKE SECONDED
CARRIED BY EN BLOC RESOLUTION: 10/0
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Attachment 1

AUSTRALIAN INSTITUTE
of COMPANY DIRECTORS

October 2017

Proposal to City of Bayswater

companydirectons.com.au

Page 157



ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 12 DECEMBER 2017

AUSTRALIAN INSTITUTE
of COMPANY DIRECTORS Eroposal to Clty "f;fﬁf}‘:ﬁ;

Introduction to the AICD’s Advisory Business Unit

The Australian Institute of Company Directors (AICD) is Australia’s leading provider of govemnance education
and development programs, governance assessment services and board advisory services.

Az an integral part of the AICD, the ‘Advisory’ Business Unit focuses on business-fo-business (B2B)
relabonsheps, servicing For-Frofe, MNotdor-Prafit (MFF), government and university chents. Based on our
extensive knowledge and experise, combined with the contributicns of Australia's lzading directors, chairs
and key advisors to major corporations worldwide, the AICD is uniguely positioned to provide beards and
senior executives with leading edge information and thinking on govermance excellence across Ausiralia and
internationally.

In House and Bespoke Governance Development and Eduecation

Our inchouse and bespoke governance education programs support clients in their pursuit of better
performance by developing governance capabilities, knowledge and insights.

The depth of cur education curriculum and extensive experience in teaching the principles and practice of
good govemnance offers an unparalieled source of knowledge and content to support the development of
capabality across the Governing Team

COWFIDENTBL Prpdil Fom P Auilenin Redluts of Cancany Dredirt
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AUSTRALIAN INSTITUTE
of COMPANY DIRECTORS Propesal to City of ;S?ﬁf}"::f;

Our Understanding of Your Requirements

Following the recent corversation between Alison Hutton (City of Bayswater) and Dennis Samann (AICD), we
understand you are seeking a governance workshop for your Audit and Risk Committee. The workshop will
focus on areas such as, the purpose, role and functions of the Committes

Toassist AICD in preparabicn for the workshop, City of Bayswater will provide their Charter, which will be used
to tailor the delvery.

Our Proposed Approach

Wile will work with City of Bayswater's nomirated contact to ensure AICD are fully briefed regarding current
izsues faced by the Committee.

We will hold pre-briefing sessions with the facilitator about the delivery of the courss itself, including any other
documents that can be included within the program

Dennis Samarnin will work closely with City of Bayswater to ensure 2ll elements of the agreement are delivered
to mutual satisfaction

Below are examples of programs we have delivered for Local Government clients. The content can be further
refined in conjuction with cur facilitators and the City of Bayswater

Governance Essentials for Local Government

This pragram consists of four half-day courses. Each course may be undertaken in conjunclion with the other
courses in the Govemnance Essentials for Local Government program or 8s & stand-alone educalion offering.

The Role of the Council and Councillor provides an overview of how lhe Council uses systems and
processas to control and monitor — or govern — Council activiies. These are distinct from management's
role, which is to ersure that the day-te-day operations of the Council are carried cut within the framework of
policies and strategic guidelines the Councillors have established. Farticipants also explore the duties and
responsibilities of a Councillor; and the Council’s key governance relationships, including those with Local,
Stale and Federal levels of Government, Local Government stafl, the lecal community and special interest

groups.

COWFIDENTBL Prpdil Fom P Auilenin Redluts of Cancany Dredirt
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AUSTRALIAN INSTITUTE
of COMPANY DIRECTORS Propasal to City Df;?ff'.f}::f;

Leadership: The Councillor's Role assists Councillors 1o increase their understanding of their awn
leadership style, others’ styles and how leadership is used to build an effective, high-performing Council. It
axamines the leadership roles of primary Courcil representatives and illustrates how good leadership
contributes to the solving and preventing of problems, the building of trust, and the ennichment of the local

community.

Risk: Issues for Councillors focuses primarily on the Council and Councillor risk, rather than activity or
operational risk. It covers how to develop risk profiles and likelihood and consequence matrices; and
application of gqualitative and quantitative tools tomanage risk Farticipants emerge with well-farmed views on
risk management, their risk appetite, and how risk management prnciples can be applied to their rele as

Councillors.

Introduction to Financial Statements for Councillers introduces Councillors to financial concepls, the key
financial statements, the duties imposed on them, and how to establish a basic understanding of assessing
financial performance, Participants learn commaon ralios used by boards to menilor performance, and
corsider igsues o be mindful of when guestioning managerment on the preparation of inancial statements
and when reviewing financial reports.

Solution Delivery

The AICD provides world-class governance education to build the capability of organisaticns, directors and
executives and has developed its courses over many years. Unless otherwise agreed, AICD will provide each
participant with electronic and hard copy course, though the AICD retains all rights in all courses and materials
it develops. AICD will also provide a pest-course feedback report and proof of program completion for each
partiapant

AICD reguires a minimum of 4 weeks lo develop and organise this program, subject lo availability of facilitators

Participant details (name, position and contact information) should be advised at the time of confirming the
delivery date of the proposed program Details will be shared with the facilitator to enable mare effective
planning of the course delvery. We may contact participants after the course in relation to program feedback,
and education and events information.

The AICD may have a representalive attend the program as part of its commitment to monitoring quality and
to ongeing improvement.

Matters discussed and opinions expressad in a session are corfidential and will not be disclosed outside the
ses=i0n by owr representalives

COWFIDENTBL Prpdil Fom P Auilenin Redluts of Cancany Dredirt 4
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AUSTRALIAN INSTITU

TE y
i COMPANY DIRECTORS Proposal to City of Bayswater

a7 hafamy

Investment and Professional Fees

The price for your Sclution is

Investment (ex GST)

Half day delivery (3.5 hours) $8,000

AICD to provide course material, facilitator, post course feedback report
City of Bayswater to provide the venue, audio visual equipment and catering for participants.

This includes all elements of the Solulicn described in this Propesal. This pricing is valid for three months from
the date of this Proposal.

If you would like to engage us to provide the Solulion, please contact me as per the details below

Best Regards

Dennig Samann
Account Manager

Australian Institute of Compary Direclors

Level 1

77 5t Gearges Terrace
Perth VWA G000 Australia
companydrectors. com.au
ABM 11 008 484 197

DHEIDTHT L Pogddil Fam B Auilesh i Rl ote of Dosoar wwor
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Attachment 2

Serpus about Success™
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Why Appoint Moore Stephens

At Moore Stephens we have an experienced local government team to
provide our clients with 2 tailored solution for all their governance training
requiremeants.

Our proposal outlines the following reasons to appoint Moore Stephiens:

Qur team possess the rght skills, experdence and credentials 1o meel your
EONENEGLEL Rl needs. They have an in-depth understanding of the local government industry
and relevant experence presenting Lo Local Government Audit Commiliees.

TR el Ela LGl Ve can demonsirale a proven cagacity 1o work wilth local governments 1o
Local Government achieve outcomes and meet deadlines.

We have an excellent track record of delivering high quality services to local
government throughout Western Australia,

An integrated service

All our engagements have a nigh level of partner and senior staff invoivement,
This increased acoessibility means we can develop @ detailed understanding of
your City to deliver oractical outcomes.

Accessible partners
and staff

Qur service s not just compliance Focused. We can guide you througn all the

T Tig | i 3 ¥
The right fit relevant requirements and advise you on other potential industry related issues.

We trust our prososal will contain all the information you requite al this stage of consideration, and we ook
feraard to discussing your requirements further.

Clty af Bayzwater

Ll
Proposal - Avdit and Risk Committes Training G S AR frp a1 3
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Scope

We understand the Uty seeks assicstance to provide internal training to Elected Memoers on the Audit & Rigk
Commillee Lo ensure;

# The Audit and Risk Assurance Committee Members are fully inducted into their new roles; and

¢« The Audit and Risk Assurance Committee Members maintain their understanding of the committee's
functions.

The training is to include the fol owing:

# Introduction to the role of the Committes in relation to governance, risk, internal control, financial
management;

¢  Review challenges that committee members are [ikely to face in their reles; and

s Provide information/reference sheets for members future reference;

INDICATIVE TRAINING CONTENT (for discussion)
« Legislative Background
Local Gavernment Act 1995 and
Associated Local Government Regulations
& Recent industry changes - Operation of Local Government Audits
«  Composition of the Audit Committes
+«  Functions and Memaershia of the Audit Committes
+ Internal Controls and Risk
« Statutory Obligations
Financial Management
Audit Regulation 17
Risk Management
Governanae
Cweersight
Interaction with the Auditor
» Challenges, Traps and Pitfalls

¢ Questions

City of Bayswater

h Wa) P d 1 4
Proposal - Audit and Risk Committee Training SRR |
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Capacity and Timing

UNDERSTANDING
We have a detailed snow'edge of the unigue statutosy requirements in Weslern Australia relating the Loca
Government Audit function,

We are the appainted auditars for 49 local governments acrass Westera Australia, ranging in size from the City
of loondalup to the Snire of Halls Creek. We regulacly attend meetings with Cleat Audit Committees and part of
this role s to exolain their roles and obligations.

Our training will reflect this experience and understanding with targeted content covering the most imaortant
isues to make the most of the limited time available. This experience wil result in the Members of the
Committes being able to sk awide range of questions of Lhe Presenters and receive a response in context,

CAPACITY
We intend 1o provide two presenters drawn from our team, as altached, all of which ame very experienced
presenters wilh an engaging style Lo ensure a quality oulcome,

TIMING

We understand you will Tkely be accessing the training in early February 2018, with a training session
approximately 1 Aour including questions.

VEMUE
City of Bayswater,

City af Bayswator

Ll li] wWal P
Proposal - Avdit and Risk Committes Training T S ) g a1 B
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Fees Estimate |

Dur indicative fees estimate for undertaking the engagement & n accordance with our understanding of the
sgoae of service as outlined n this document.

Fee fexd G5T)

Preparation of training presentation and lacilitale workshop witn Audit & Rist

Committes Members and Sanior Stafl 52,000

Our fee estimate is valid for 60 days from the date of our response. We propose to bill for our services at the
comaletion of the raining event.

FEE ASSUMPTIONS AND INCLUSIONS
In the pregaration of eur fee estimate, we have made the following assumptions:

¢ The training will be provided in onasite at the City of Bayswater: and
»  The City of Bayswater will provide the tralning facilities inwhnich to undertaxe the training.

FEE EXCLUSIONS
Cur fee estimate excludes:

o Goods amd service Lax,

City af Bayswator
Ll li] wWal P
Proposal - Avdit and Risk Committes Training e
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Relevant Experience

INTERMNAL AUDIT SERVICES

We nave conducted a wide range of Internal Audits for local governments, Most recently, an end to end
process review of tenders and contracts was conducted for Town of Bassendean.

City of Aloary
Town of Bassendean

City of Bayswater

City of Cackburn

City of Inondalup
Town of Port Hedland

Clty of Rackingham

City of 5tirling

City of Yincent

Ehire of Wyndham-East Kmberiey

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT REVIEWS

Internal Audit - 2003 to present

Internal Audit - 2013 to present

End to End Review of Procurement Processes 2017
Receipting Systems and Processes 2015

Cash Handling Procedures 2015

Activity Based Costing Review

Fuel Management Process

City Festiva's

Tender probity reviews 2010 and 2011
Selected Preacurement Events Review 2016
Meterng of Utilities Usage 2008

Assel Management Review 2008, 2012 & 2018
- 2013 (o 2017

Eey Transaclion Cycles Process Review 2015

Internal Audit

Inthe course of the past sitesn yeass, we have also orovided detailed Fnancial Management Review services
te the majority of cur clients and other lozal govesnments state wide.

Im all, since the year 2000, we have performed approximately 200 Financial Management Reviews Lo various
local governments in both the metropolitan and regional areas,

During this time, we have develosed a unigue methodology in relation to these Financial Management
Reviews wnich is cased on our extensive (ocal government cnowledge and experience,

Financial Management Reviews undertaken since the beginning of 2016 total thirty five (35) as follows:

City of Alaany Sovire of Corrigin Snire of Mount Marshall
City of Armadale Town of Cottesloe Lhire of Nostham
Shire of Ashburton Siire of Derby-West Kimberley Snire of Nosthamoten

Shire of Bragxtan
Shire of B-oome

Shire of East Pilbara
Saire of Halls Croek

Shire of Shark Bay
Shire of Three Springs

Shire of Crapman Valley
Shireof Chittering

Shire ol Carnarvan

Shire of Christmas lsland
Town of Claremont

Zhire of Cocos (Keeling) Islands
Shire of Coorow

City af Bayswator

City of Kalgoorlie — Boulder
Snire of Katanning

Shire of Kellerberrin

City of Kwnana

Shire of Lake Grace

City of Melville

Shire of Marawa

Froposal - Audit and Risk Committes Training

Town of Vicloria Park
Saire of Westonia

Shire of Wongan-Ballidu
Snire of Woodan(ling
Shire of Yilgarn

Shire of York

Moore Staphens (WA] Pty Ltd | 7
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Relevant Experience (continued)

AUDIT REGULATION 17 REVIEWS

Ower the course of the past 3 years, we have also conducted Audit Regulation 17 reviews for the folowing:

Shire of Ashburton
Shire of Broome

Shire of Christmas Island
Shire of Coorow

Shire of East Filbara
Shire of Katanning

STATUTORY AUDIT SERVICES

City of Kwinana

Shire of Laverton

Shire of Morawa

Town of Port Hedland

Shire of Serpentine-larrahdale
Shire of Shark Bay

Shire of Three Sarings

Shire of Victoria Plains

Shire of Wiluna

Shire of Wyndham-East Kimberley
Shire af York

The firm is the argest external auditor of local government in the State. For the year ended 30 June 2017, we
are the incumbent auditors of forty-nine (19} local governments throughout Western Australia {(and have had
a significant client base dating back to 1990).

City of Albany

Shire of Ashburton

Shire of Augusta-Margaret River
Shire of Brookton

Shire of Broome

Snire of Carnarvon

Shire of Chapman Valley

Shire of Chittering

Shire of Christmas Island
Town of Claremont

Shire of Coces (Keeling) Islands
Shire of Coolgardic

Shire of Coorow

Town of Cottesloe

Shire of Derby-West Kimberley
Shire of Dumbleyung

Shire of East Pilbara

City of Bayswater

Shire of Exmouth

City of Fremantle
Shire of Gingin

Shire of Gnowangerup
Shire of Halls Crepk
Shire of Irwin

City of Joondalug

City of Kalgoorlie-Bou'der
Shire of Katanning
Shire of Kelleroerrin
City of Kwinana

Shire of Lake Grace
Shire of Mt Marshall
Shire of Mukinaudin
Shire of Mundaring
Shire of Narembeen

Proposal - Audit and Risk Committes Training

Shire of Mgaanyatjarracu
Shire of Mortham

Shire of Northamptan

Shire of Plantagenct

Shire of Quairading

Shire of Serpentine-Jarrahdale
Shire of Shark Bay

City of Subiaco

Shire of Three Springs

Shire of Toodyay

Shire of Trayning

City of Vincent

Shire of Wongan-Ballidu

Shire of Wyndnam-East Kimberley
Shire of Yilgarn

Shire of York

Moore Stephens (WA} Pty Ltd | 8
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Relevant Experience (continued)

TRAINING WORKSHOPS

Ower the past twenty years, we nave also conducted an annual workshog, wiich in 2016 was attended oy over
one hundred (100) local governments from all over Western Australia, These workshops have addressed the
Annual Financial Repert, Budget, accounting standards, the mandating of fair value, related party disclosure,
infrastructure assets, cashflow statements, ratio analysis, sustainability and various other topical accounting
155005,

We are also the long serving contract grovider for WALGA'S tax service and provide regular training services
under this conltract.

In summary, extensive assistance to local government have been provided in the following areas;

+ Financial Management Reviews + Ratio Interpretation Assistance
+ Financial Report preparation s GS5T & FBT Advice

+ Audil Regulation 17 Reviews *  Long Term Financial Plans

«  Statutory Comaliance Audits *  Strategic Plans

s nfrastructure Assels advice «  Corporate Business Plans

+«  Fair Value implementation «  Workforee Plans

« Budget Conversion and Assistance = Asset Management Plans

FOUNDATION PARTMER OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT PROFESSIONALS AUSTRALIAN WA

We are a suascriner member of Local Government Professionals Australia WA and an active participant in
Institute events, In 2014, we became a Foundation Partner of Local Government Professionals Australian Wa
{formerly known as LGMA WA} having areviously been a Princigal Partner since the oeginaing of 2008 and a
major saonsor of the annuwal conference since 2000 as wel as other regional conferences and sporting events.

City of Bayswater

h L
Proposal - Audit and Risk Committee Training ST ONRTET | B
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Quality

The firm takes a three-tiered approach to quality assurance:
s Project Speciflication;
#  Slaff Selection: and
s [uality Reviews.

All review projects are designed and documented before commencement to ensure the objectives of our client
are specifically addressed and our methodelogy is understocd. The document is anoroved prior to
commencement of fieldwork.

The Partners and senior staff have had extensive experience in the provision of audit, asoounting and advisory
services. Partners and stalf attend ongoing in-house staff training, national and international conferences and
undertake presentations.

Field operatives and supervising personnel are selected on the basis of their experience in the project sunject
matter and their abilty to add value to the tinal aroject outcome,

The guality review process is further enhanced by a peer review conducted by the Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand practice reviews program. Our ast practice review under the grogram found our
files complied with the Institute’s quality requirements,

City of Bayswater

M h W 0
Proposal - Audit and Risk Committee Training S Ry D £
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Key Personnel

David Tomasi

Partner

Relevant experience:

+ Commenced his career as an Auditor in 1985,

David brings the necessary local
Eovernment experience, expertise and
knowledge 1o help ensure an efficlent,
effective and value for money senvice.

= Broad range of experience acrass all industry sectors induding

five years with a “hig 4" accourting firm ang twelve manths in
the LK,

Extensive local goverrment expenience since 1990, induding
development of the firm's local governmert esternal and
interral methodology anc approach, and ergagement partner
o3 sgnificant number of our locsl government chents
spanning three decades.

Sigrificant expenence with Audic Regulazior 17 reviews,

Creveloped the firm's methodology in relation to Financial
Maragemen: Reviews and has been irvolved ir 3 large majority
of tham since 2000,

Facilitated Strategic Plans al l'wao local povernment autharities.

Irwabved in numerous special investigations ard corsulting
ENEagements,

Presertec firm's workshogs (since incepicn in 1995).

Previously 5 member of the DLERD's Fimancial Reporting
Warking Party, whick, amongst other things, was charged with
the review of the Financial Management Regulatiors to ensure
consistency with recent changes to Australian Accounting
Stancargs [&IFRSs) and provicing guidance on other firancal
reporting matters,

Industry Papers Presented:

David has presented mary Papers cowerirg industry specific
matters, Inclucing:

Asset Management, Cosh Flow Statements, Locol Government
At and Accounting, B85, Farr Yalue, Reportiig, BOMAN I Cloud
Computing, Cyber Secuvily and Electroni Payment Risks

City af Bayswator
Proposal - Audit and Risk Comrmittee Training

Role:

Ll

Partner in charge ol the Audi
and Local Government Divisions

Quality Control Leader

Ergagement Partner induding
Local Government Augit and
Consulting angagements)

Qualifications:

L]

Bachelor of Commerce [LIWA]
Chartered Accountart | Sellow)
Registered Compaty Auditor
Registered Tax Agent

Registered Co-operative
Company Auditor

Registered Self-Managed
Superannuation Fund Auditor

Maoore Stephens [Wa] Pty Ltd |

12

Page 173



ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 12 DECEMBER 2017

Key Personnel (continued)

Paul Breman

Local Government Services
Director

Relevant Experience: Paul's experience and "hands-on”
knowledge is widely recognised in the
*  |nvoled in the Local Government industry for over 35 years, !ndusmr.
= Praviously held positions at & vaniety of local govermments in
WA rangirg from large metropolican Councils such as the City
af Melville to small rural local povernments such as the Shire Role:
of Wes: Arthur, £

= |oined Moore Stephens in 2007 from his most recent position * Local Government Direcror

as Executive Manager of Corporate Services, Shire of « Responsibility scross our
Esperance. Remole ACoounTing Services, (T
e z
= ACertifiec Fractising Accountant with an in-ceptk krowledpe Salutinns and consulting
of Incal govern ment accounting and governance practices AN SEEMEnLY
« Recipient of rumercus finarcial maragement awarcs Qualifications:

indluciirg the W Public S3actor CPA of the Year 2001, o e Al Rt sy

= Brings 1o the finm 3 rare sirength of local povernmeent
expariernce  which demarsirates the firm's  long-term
commitmeant tathe Incustry. & Fellow of CPA Australia

* Diploma in Local Government

+ Detailed krowlesge of the industry adds cepth and #  Fellow ol LG Professionals WA
urcerstanding 1o all our local government engagements,

City af Bayswator

i Moore Stephens [Waj) PiyLtd 1 13
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Key Personnel (continued)

Anne Cheng

Manager - Risk Advisory
Services

Relevant experience: Anne's specific risk management and
compliance audit knowledge and
= Internal Augit professional with over 25 years' internal audit experience helps us to provide a quality
complanoe ana fisk maragement experience, audit service:

= Hoshac brond exposure 10 avariety of industries and business
environments including

Education, Role:
Fmancial;

= Risk Maragement and Compliance
Local Government; i ;

hariager
- Mining and Sesources, and o :
- Wand Gas Qualifications:
= Proven ability to drive compliance and carporate = Bachebor of Arts (Universitg of
ROvernance, British Colurnbia)
= Performed a number of Augit Regulation 17 ergagements =  Certified Internal Augicor (CCAj

Tar our local government clients,

*  Sigrificant experience ceveloping, designing and
implementing risk maragemen:, compliarce, governance
ang internal audit frameworks.

= Spenlic Sarbannes-Onley [500) peperience arnd regponsible
lar abtairirg section 303 andg 404 certification.

Papers Presented:

# Anne has presentes many papers arg corducted specific
training worksheps inclucing.
Complanae and Governance Frameworks;

- Design arc implemensation of internal Audit
Framaworks,

- Risk Maragement; ang
- 50K Certification

City af Bayswator

Moore Stephens (WAJ Py itd | 14
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Other Matters

Disclaimer

The services provided interms of this engagement comprise an advisory engagement, which is not subject to
assurance or other standards issued oy the Australian Auditing and Assurance Standard Board and,
consequently no opinions or conclusions are intended to convey assurance either expressed or implied.

Moore Steghens, Perth, a Perth based partnership of trusts (“the firm"), carries on business separately and
indeaendently from other Moore Stephens member firms around Australia and worldwide.

Services grovided under this engagement are provided by the Firm and not oy any other indegendent Moore
Stephens member firm. No other independent Moore Stepnens membes has any liagility for services provided
by other memiers.

Throughout this document a reference to Moore Stephens refers to Moore Steahens (WA) Pty Lid as agent,
ABN 99 433 544 961, An independent member of Maoore Stephens International Limited - member in principa
cities throughout the world. The Perth Moore Stephens s not a partaer o agent of any other Moore Stephens
firem.

Copyright
All rights reserved.

Any report, plan, presentation or document prepared and/or spreadshect supalied will be areaared solely for
Lhe purpose sel oul in Lhis proposal and is nol to be used for any other purpose or distribuled 1o any other
party without Moore Stephiens prior consent. Any reliance glaced by a third party on the report is that party’s
responsioility.

Conflicts of Interest

The firm currently grovides extensive audit and advisory services to local povernment nowever, we do not
believe the arovision of these training services would comaromise our ohjectivity in the delivery of these
SErYices.

Should the possibility of a perceved or actual conflict arise, the matter would be raised with the CEO
immediately and activities suspended until the issue is resolved to the satisfaction of the CED.
Proposal Approver

Paul Breman, Director
Email poreman@moarestephens com.au

Date of Proposal
24 November 2017

City of Bayswater

M h [
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MOORE STEPHENS

Level 15, 7 The Esplanace,
Perth Wa 600D

T +61 (008 5225 5355
F+61 [0)8 2225 6181

parth Emoorests=phens.com.au

wwiw. moorestephens.com Serious about Success®
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13.3 Ministerial Circular - Local Government Risk Profile
Reporting Branch: Corporate Services

Responsible Directorate: Finance and Corporate Services
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Application:
To advise the Audit and Risk Management Committee of a Ministerial Circular that has been
distributed to the sector in relation to local government risk profile.
Key Issues:
This report provides an outline of the Ministerial Circular in relation to the risk profile of local
government authorities comprising financial ratios and compliance with legislative requirements.
BACKGROUND

Under regulation 50 of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996, the
annual financial report is to include, for the financial year covered by the annual financial report
and the two preceding financial years, the following seven ratios:

Current Ratio;

Asset Consumption Ratio;

Asset Renewal Funding Ratio;

Asset Sustainability Ratio;

Debt Service Cover Ratio;

Operating Surplus Ratio; and

Own Source Revenue Coverage Ratio.

To demonstrate how the ratios are used as indicators, the 'Current Ratio' measures the ability of
a local government to meet its short-term financial obligations out of unrestricted current assets.

The standard is not considered by the Department to have been met if the ratio is lower than 1:1
as it indicates that the local government does not have sufficient assets that can be quickly
converted into cash to meet its immediate cash commitments. The City's Current Ratio exceeds
this target.

Similarly, the 'Debt Service Cover Ratio' measures a local government’s ability to repay its debts
including lease payments.

A 'basic' standard is achieved if the ratio is greater than or equal to two. An 'advanced' standard
is achieved if the ratio is greater than five. The City's indicator in 2017 is 1003:1 (unaudited).

It is generally accepted accounting practice to regard ratios as indicators only, and they should
not be considered in isolation.

The Department monitors these ratios and, should there be any concerns, raises them with the
respective local government.

The Department recently issued a Ministerial Circular (Attachment 1) which alludes to some
concerns raised by the sector on how the Department has communicated with the sector on
these ratios.
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The Department's Manager Sector Governance was not able to advise of specific local
governments which have raised such concerns, however was able to confirm that the
Department does not have any concerns with the financial statements submitted to date by the
City of Bayswater.

On that basis, the circular is attached for information of the Committee only, and no action is
required.

CONSULTATION

The Department's Ministerial Circular is attached for information.

ANALYSIS

No action is required at this time as the Department does not have any concerns with the
financial statements submitted by the City of Bayswater. It is noted that the circular recommends
that should any non-compliance issues be raised, officers should engage with elected members
through the Audit and Risk Management Committee.

OPTIONS
Not applicable.

CONCLUSION

The Ministerial Circular is provided for information only and the Department has confirmed that it
has no concerns with the City of Bayswater.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
Nil.

STRATEGIC LINK

In accordance with the City of Bayswater's Strategic Community Plan 2017-2027, the following
applies:

Theme: Leadership and Governance.
Aspiration: Open, accountable and responsive service.
Outcome L1: Accountable and good governance.

COUNCIL POLICY AND LEGISLATIVE IMPLICATIONS
Nil.

VOTING REQUIREMENTS
Simple Majority Required.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ministerial Circular No. 8 - Local Government Risk Profile.

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

(OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION)

That the Audit and Risk Management Committee recommends that Council receive the
report on the Ministerial Circular No. 8 - Local Government Risk Profile.

CR STEPHANIE GRAY MOVED, CR LORNA CLARKE SECONDED
CARRIED BY EN BLOC RESOLUTION: 10/0
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Attachment 1

Hon David Templeman MLA
Minister for Local Government; Heritage; Culture and the Arts

Our Ref. 66-02771

TO ALL LOCAL GOVERNMENTS

CIRCULAR N° 08-2017

LOCAL GOVERNMENT RISK PROFILE

| am aware of concemns raised within the local govemment sector about the
Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural Industries’ Risk Profile and
the way the Department has communicated with the sector with regard to the Profile.

The Department has an important role in building capacity and good governance in
the local government sector, and providing effective regulation through ensuring
compliance with the Local Government Act 1995 and regulations. By adopting a
risk-based approach, and accepting that not all risks can be eliminated, the
Department is able to direct resources toward the greatest threats to a
local government's ability to function effectively in the interests of its community.

Local governments produce a wide range of information that is used by the
Department to categorise local governments according to their potential risk.
The Department has prepared this Risk Profile for the last six years.

Where a local government is reporting, or being reported, as non-compliant with
legislative requirements andfor producing financial results below prescribed
standards, the Department makes the organisation aware of the fact and provides
advice an how to remedy the siluation.

In these circumstances, officers should be engaging with elected members,

preferably via the Council's Audit Committee, so the Council can be apprised of the

situation and, as appropriate, develop strategies to:

* address non-compliance;

« initiate action plan(s) for continuing improvement, and

« identify what Council considers might be sound financial health for itself where
that might be below sector standards or benchmarks,

Level ¥, Dumas House, 2 Havelock Streel, West Perh, Westerm Australia G003
Telaphone: +51 8 8552 5400 Facsimile: +61 8 6552 5401 Email: Minister. Templeman@dpc.wa.gov.au
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| understand that both the Western Australian Local Government Association
(WALGA) and Local Government Professionals Australia (WA) (LG Professionals)
have now been provided with details of the local governments identified on the Profile,
together with information on the assessment criteria used to determine their level of
risk. Additionally, | am advised that the Department has formed a reference group
with WALGA and LG Professionals, to better coordinate the provision of assistance to
high risk local governments.

The Department has advised that, in light of the sector’s concerns, it will be reviewing
the way it communicates with the sector about the Risk Profile, and will be more
proactive in advising strategies for local governments to improve their categorisation.
| will continue to call meetings annually with the Corruption and Crime Commission,
Public Sector Commission, the Department and the sector to discuss more serious
and systemic risks and work on solutions.

| encou you to familiarise yourself with your local government's compliance
requir so that you can contribute to the good govemance of your crganisation,
to epéure th qre is transparent and proper accountability for your community.

PLEMAN MLA
LOCAL GOVERNMENT;
HERITAGE; CULTURE AND THE ARTS
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13.4 Risk Management Assurance Reporting
Reporting Branch: Corporate Services
Responsible Directorate: Finance and Corporate Services
Refer: Item 8.3: A&RMC: 12.09.2013

Iltem 8.4: A&RMC: 17.06.2014
Iltem 8.5: A&RMC: 21.10.2014
Iltem 8.1: A&RMC: 24.11.2014
ltem 8.2: A&RMC: 17.02.2015
Iltem 8.1: A&RMC: 16.06.2015
ltem 8.2: A&RMC: 10.11.2015
ltem 8.2: A&RMC: 16.02.2016
Iltem 8.1: A&RMC: 22.03.2016
Iltem 8.3: A&RMC: 28.06.2016
ltem 15.1.3: OMC: 06.12.2016
Iltem 13.4.4: OMC: 23.05.2017
ltem 13.1.3: OMC: 12.09.2017

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Application:

For the Audit and Risk Management Committee to consider and endorse to Council the fourth
Risk Management Assurance Report which examines the Risk Management practices of the
City.

Key Issues:

This report provides a summary of findings within the assurance phase of the City's
Organisational Risk Management Framework.

BACKGROUND

The Audit and Risk Management Committee has been provided with periodic reports on the
development of the City's risk management systems as required under the Local Government
(Audit) Regulations 1996.

The City has established essential documentation outlining its commitment and objectives with
respect to managing uncertainty that may impact the City’s strategies, goals or objectives.

The City's Risk Register is a centralised record that identifies for each known risk: a description
of the risk; its causes and potential impact; an outline of existing controls, including the person
accountable for managing the risk; a risk rating; and an overall priority for the risk. There are
approximately 90 risk issues within the City's Risk Register, which have been grouped under the
themes of:

Material Operating Risks;
Business Continuity Planning;
Procurement Framework;
Fraud Risks; and

Strategic Risks.

In December 2016, the City commenced activation (‘Assurance’) of the Risk Management
framework through quarterly examination of selected risk topics from the corporate risk register.
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The Assurance process examines the efficiency and effectiveness of current risk controls with
operational managers or 'risk owners' to identify how improvements or further control activities
can be implemented to reduce risk. Further control activities include developing new policies or
practices, employing new technology and applying additional resources or resolving gaps in
practices.

The risk issues considered are summarised in the attached Assurance Register (Attachment 1).

CONSULTATION

The Assurance testing process has promoted an ongoing internal collaboration between the
City's Risk Management Advisor and managers or 'risk owners' within respective operational
areas to mitigate risk and identify new or emerging risk issues.

ANALYSIS

The City's assurance testing process examines the efficiency and effectiveness of mitigation
activities identified by each risk owner for the purposes of:

ensuring that controls are effective and efficient in both design and operation;
obtaining further information to improve risk assessment;

analysing and learning lessons from risk events, including past experiences, changes,
trends, successes and failures;

detecting changes in the external and internal context, including changes to risk criteria and
to the risks, which may require revision of risk treatments and priorities; and

identifying emerging risks.

The outcomes of this report address the principles and guidelines identified in the AS/NZS 1SO
31000:2009 standard which underpin effective risk management. The fourth quarter findings
demonstrate:

1. The City's underlying commitment to Risk Management requires some development

Quiality improvement and the management of risk within the City should form part of both
strategic and operational planning in every area and service of Council delivery. To be
effective an integrated approach should be taken to Risk Management encompassing all of
the City's business activities including customer service, community development and
events, procurement, capital development, information technology, contractor
management, workplace health and safety, workforce management, financial planning, and
all other areas of operation.

It is also recommended the City revisit its risk management priorities in light of changes to
key management personnel and business priorities recently identified in the Service
Review 'Seed' Project. The City has previously undertaken this task in 2014 in consultation
with Local Government Insurance Services (LGIS). A review will assist the City to identify
what external requirements it needs to achieve and what aspects of Council business
should be targeted. If there are particular business areas that need support, the City needs
to define what resources are available to make improvements.

2.  Continual Improvement is being demonstrated, progress is being measured and
learning is being reviewed

An effective Risk Management process provides a framework for considering everything
the City does, how it is done and identifying ways to make it better before problems are
identified. Whilst the City's Risk Register and Assurance Plan is managed by the Risk
Management Advisor, the risk issues and subsequent actions are owned by individuals.
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The assurance review process has been effective in encouraging staff to participate and
share their experiences. Networking and discussion have assisted in identifying gap areas
and potential solutions to improve outcomes. Assigning risk ownership also ensures a
specific person is responsible and accountable for the regular review, reporting, monitoring
of controls, and implementation of risk treatments.

To sustain the process of improvement, further controls, actions and activities are currently
tracked through the City's Organisational Risk Register. As an example, site induction
training and task analysis for '‘Contractor Works' is being rolled out in December 2017.
Feedback will be sought from the Risk Owner after this time in January 2018 as to the
effectiveness of the training and any follow-on reporting requirements that might be
necessary.

Updated information is captured in the Corporate Risk Register and will be considered
during its next review cycle. This process demonstrates that progress is being measured
and learning is reviewed in order to sustain change and improvement.

It is however noted that some improvement could be made in relation to the frequency of
review. Current resourcing allows the Risk Management Advisor to work through
approximately forty to fifty risk issues in the Corporate Risk Register over the period of
twelve months, meaning that each risk issue is reviewed once every two years. Therefore
progress of learning and improvements are not as frequently reported.

3. Risk owners have made meaningful efforts to reduce the adverse impact of risks

Examining the effectiveness of risk controls during this assurance testing period has
indicated that, in most cases, risk issues have been 'Downgraded’ which demonstrates
improvement since the risk issues were established in June 2016. For example, in relation
to the risk issue 'Managing Venues and Public Events', a cross-functional team has
identified improvements to the event approvals process in order to deliver better outcomes
for community event organisers.

As a consequence of this work it is anticipated that fewer applications will be required and
that internal timeframes for approvals can be reduced ie. thirty-day approvals can now be
resolved in twenty-one days and sixty-day approvals in forty-five days.  Control
improvements have resulted in the likelihood/consequence rating reducing from 'Possible’
to Unlikely' and the overall risk rating improving from 'Moderate' to 'Low'.

4.  The majority of process controls are generally operating as intended, however some
inadequacies exist.

Examining the effectiveness of risk controls during this assurance testing period has
indicated that, in most cases, risk issues have been 'downgraded’ which demonstrates
improvement since June 2016.

In relation to the risk of 'Failure to establish effective contract terms and conditions' current
controls include: adopting Western Australia Local Government Association (WALGA)
model conditions for all contracts, adopting Australian Standard general suite of conditions
and compiling a Procurement Manual. The City monitors this risk issue at regular intervals
guided by relevant legislation including the Local Government Act 1995, Construction
Contracts Act 2004 and Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996. The sufficiency of
these measures is assessed as 'Adequate’ as existing controls are efficient, relevant,
documented and reviewed.

Whilst, generally, meaningful efforts have been made to reduce the adverse impact of risks
there was also one risk issue which returned an 'inadequate’ existing control rating in
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relation to ‘Managing Intellectual Property, Copyright and Media Creation'. An ‘inadequate’
rating indicates that process controls are not operating as intended, or are not being
complied with and there is a need for improvement or action. The City has previously had
a number of alleged copyright breaches with respect to attaching newspaper articles to
council agenda and minutes and the question of whether the City will get a future licence
with a media marketing company to manage this risk is undecided. The City has also
terminated its licence with 'Copyright Agency Limited' which entitled the City to some
sharing of copyright protected materials.

If the City decides not to pursue this option it will be about internally managing the
corporate risk. With respect to this risk issue the Governance Officer and Public Relations
Advisor have resolved to ensure that all councillors will be receiving media training,
including obligations under the Copyright Act, particularly in regards to sharing newspaper
stories on social media and that an internal email will be sent to staff about their
obligations.

Emerging Issues

While prioritising risks in terms of their potential impact and the likelihood of occurrence is
an effective technique for assessing known risks, it is not always effective in addressing
emerging risks. It is important to pay adequate attention to emerging or known risk issues
relevant to local government organisations:

High Density Living has been identified as a key strategy to manage urban growth
and is becoming an increasing feature of City plans. The risk issue centres on
balancing the emerging state government focus on urban consolidation against
residential satisfaction and quality of life. The experience of living in greater density
can also give rise to conflicting use of common areas (driveways, verge), noise
intrusion, lack of social cohesion, design and construction quality. There may be future
action required from developers and planners to address the concerns of people living
in greater density.

Cyber Risk has been identified by the outgoing Auditor General (WA) as a risk issue
with a general absence of standards. The Office of the Government Chief Information
Officer (GCIO) has been established to provide direction for the adoption and
maintenance of security protection controls: http:/gcio.wa.gov.au/tag/cybersecurity/.
The Auditor General has recommended that Audit and Risk Committees compare their
planning for Cyber Security to International Standards and in turn list their
priorities. The Australian Signals Directorate (ASD) standards provide detailed
guidelines to managing Cyber Security within organisations.
https://www.asd.gov.au/infosec/mitigationstrategies.htm

Red Tape Reduction has been identified by the outgoing Auditor General (WA) as a
future focus area for local governments. Attention should be on the review of
regulatory costs and existing administration to ensure that unnecessary restrictions on
innovation are removed and regulatory frameworks remain 'fit for purpose'. The
Auditor has recommended that councils keep watch for the Department of Finance
(WA) which will be issuing a report in December 2017 in relation to its work on Red
Tape Reduction.

OPTIONS

The following options are available to Council:
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OPTION BENEFIT RISK

1. | The Audit and Risk Management | Demonstrates activation of the | Committee may wish to have
Committee commends to Council | City's risk management | greater involvement in the
the Assurance testing report | systems, as required under | assurance testing process.
December 2017. the Local Government (Audit)

Regulations 1996.
Estimated Cost:
$ Nil.

2. | The Audit and Risk Management | Committee may wish to defer | Potential delay to activation of
Committee does not commend to | the report and seek further | the risk management system
Council the Assurance testing | information on the assurance | which has already been
report December 2017. testing process. endorsed by Council.
Estimated Cost:
$ Nil.

CONCLUSION

Option 1 is recommended as the results of this report provide an input into the continuous
improvement of the City's risk management framework. The focus of the fourth round of testing
is to demonstrate that the Assurance process is being activated with outcomes demonstrated.

A further 10-12 risk issues will be selected for testing in March, 2018.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Nil.

STRATEGIC LINK
In accordance with the City of Bayswater Strategic Community Plan 2017-2027, the following

applies:

Theme: Leadership and Governance

Aspiration: Open, accountable and responsive service.
Outcome L1: Accountable and good governance.

COUNCIL POLICY AND LEGISLATIVE IMPLICATIONS
Section 7.13(i) of the Local Government Act 1995.
Regulation 13, 14 and 15 of the Local Government (Audit) Regulations 1996.

VOTING REQUIREMENTS
Simple Majority Required.

ATTACHMENTS

1.

Risk Assurance Table

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

(OFFICERS RECOMMENDATION)

That the Audit and Risk Management Committee recommends that Council approve the
fourth quarter of Assurance testing phase of the City's risk management system, as
summarised in Attachment 1 to this report.

CR STEPHANIE GRAY MOVED, CR LORNA CLARKE SECONDED
CARRIED BY EN BLOC RESOLUTION: 10/0
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Attachment 1

Appendix 1 - Risk Assurance Table
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3t Description of Risk Risk Category June Current Controls Exisling December | Further control activities Risk  Owmner | Task Alert w Motation & Next Review
ﬁ What could occur? Risk themes 2016 List of current treatments, actions, activities. Controls T Further improvements, treatments, Name/Title. Timeline for E Explanation of cument ratings and future review
i defined by the | Fisk Rating risk | actions. mitigation & | schedule.
GCity. ratings Adequacy ratings activides. w0
of existng 5
E controls. E =
'E - o
HHE é f e
218 |2 21E |2
1 Failue fo  effeclively | Malerial Operating The CRy curenlly engages with the general public throwgh | Adegquate The Commuwications Officer will work | Public March 2018 seek Existing conirels rating Is noted as ‘Adeguale’ with
engage with the Media, Rigk a range of gervices, including onfine forums, Australa with the Public Relalions Advisor to | Relalions update fom rigk precess controls generally operaling as interded,
Post, primt media and TV and radi. develop a Media Engagement | Advisor owner  regarding however some inadgegquacies exist in respect o
Framework supporfed by a procedure, slatus of risk and Paiicy documeniation and there is some scope for
Gaoverning legisiation relevant fo this area inciudes Local and ghes drection for the framework development  of improvement
Government Act 1995, Corruption and Crime Cammission of interaction between the Cily and supporting  policy
Acl 2003 Local Governmen! (Rules of Conduct) media fo maidain and enhance the documents. The overall rigk rating iz unchanged dr.re. fa the
Reguistions 2007, Austrslian Standard: Freedom of reputation of the Cly. A policy or mimber of further contrel and mitigation activities io
trformation - Frofessional  Standards, Freedom  Of procedure  should outline be considered and implemented by the risk owner
fnformation Act 1992 Part 2 Privacy Act 1988, Local responsibifiies in relation to diect int the coming manths.
Government Act 1395 [Division 3 - Codes of Conduct), CWIWEEMTD m“r "ﬂﬂri- ﬂbf:f :‘;:
CREGIEYI; mamagement and dissemination of
Currently the Public Relations feam is authorised fo :’::;ﬁ;;';" ":d”;” "“F';‘Ef}, P “”:
respond to or inibate mediz contact the Mayar is direclly could incluce: PU-IPGSG scope, policy
guoted. Currently the PR team work with indhiduals across clafermant p{mﬁs D'melrm
the arganization fo communicale responses o tie media. repu!atfu.r:: and image, suthorisation o
Al media enguiries or requests for stralegic Ciy commen cominant end how o deal with
refafing fo the Cify's organizabional or policy activiies must confidential rformnation
currently be direcled fo the Public Relations team. )
The City haz a Commu
The Cify curendly has no Media Engagement Policy or Enua;?e.rr.-!e}m Framewerk Thﬂa;
Media Engagemert Framework. mplementing a Media framework is 8 guide for the City's
Engagement Policy or Framework would faciltate effective employees i use when faising with
puidance for empioyees regarding media engagement members of public. The risks
Thre Famework should oulline confrol measwes o remove ascociled with medi engagement
or minimise the risks associated with media engagement are  everpresent,  affect | every
and oulline procedures o respond in siuations where ermployee and améys reffact hack fo
incorrect and falze information has been passed fo the the City's repudstion
media. Staff mwst  understand  the  effect  that '
communications and their achvities can have on the
reputation and image of the City end undersfand their E
- obiigations fo maintain confidential Information, ensurimg & E
=| % | % | thal parsonal and business information of the City is =| B %‘i <
E .3 % accessed and wsed only for business purposes and nol 2 .3 5 x
% 2= disclosed unless required by legisiation. % = f §
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evangelists and Rephulike other positive comments.

- Description of Risk Risk Category June Current Controls Existing December | Further control activities Risk Owner | Task Alert w | Notation & Next Review
= What could oecur? Risk themes | 2016 | Listof current treatments, actions, activites. Controls 2017 Further improvements, treatments, | Name/Title. Timeline for | B | Explanation of cument ratings and future review
= defined by the | 'isk il sk | acdons. mitigation < | schedute.
City. ratings Adeguacy ratings activitles. 0
of existing s
controls. o
& g i
i i
HHE HERK
HHE 218 |2
2 Faiure  to  effectively | Maters! Operating The City wses social media plaliorms 1o enhance in accordance with the Management | Public The Ciy needs to Mo change m kelihood conseguence or overall
manage the City's Social | Risk connecthvity with s commumily, encowrage engagement Adequate FPractice for Facebook adminisfration | Relations develop strafegies risk rating. Contrals are largely unchanged since
Media piatforms and facilitate dizcuzsion of Councl issues, operations and social media adminisfralors are o | Adwizor, i bha able fo review in Jume 2016 Frocess coafrols  are
senvices, respond fo comments and messages | Coordingtor of | caplure any sccial generally operating as infended and are reviswed
within one warking day - sooper if | informabon media and lested, some scope for improverment has been
The City recognises that the use of scclal media plays an possible.  Responses must  be | Management communications identified,
imporfant role in the professional and personal ves of valvable, frendly and authentic. If through o ECM fo
employees end Councillors. The City also recognises the unsure how o respond o a comment, sty o
valve of online communication forums and  social the adminisirafor iz  direcled fo recordkeeping
networking, Witk the growth and popularity in social Corporete Communications seclion for responsthilities
networking and the spornfaneily in which content is offen gidance. The City's
posted, the Ciy must ensure thaf employees and coordinator of
Councifiors as well as the Council’s brand, reputation and The praclice also direcls the Information
the confideniialty of the business are prolected. Also, the administrator lo take a screenczhol of Managament ig
City must provide lools for the peneral public to voice the comment o provide context and curentty
cancerns and provide feedback lo the Cily. proof and register the file in ECM mwvestigating  with
under an allocated subject heading peer groups fo see
Governing legislation [ncludes, Locsl Government Act However, in praciice this does not how this eclivily is
1985, Privacy Act 1988, State Records Act 2000, occwr  and  adminisiralors are o managed and
screenshot content. recorded al olher
. WA councils.  An
The City cumenlly operales Facebook, Instagram and o -
Twitter accounts, This is managed by a small team of The Cily's mﬂrﬂr 'Df Information update  will  be
adn¥nistralors. Social media is one of the best ways for Manegement has idenlifed that The sabight from e
e Cily lo reach & wider auvcéence. Hawvig an aclive Siste Records Cffice of WA h‘?'r" "R"‘_ eSO
presence on all major social media networks (s a necessity aivady racoginised the use of so0cal actmvily i s anea
It the City wishes to engage with is community n new medie  for  communcations  wib I Pebriary, 2018,
ways. govermment ﬂuf.'nr:ﬁgs amd the need for
theze o be ideniified az corporate
The Cily has developed a Managemen! Praclice for commuMcStions.
Facebook  Administration  (Aprl 2097 which Ang LT ——
comTunicates our commiiment lo utiising approprate FOmmLCat = d rd
social media platfoorms as a8 means of improving ggf;gd ?Lﬁt ;::::Tg;hﬂ_ median::ch o
commumcations with the commumndy and stakeholders hard 4 i and ils
refating to the Ciy's inifatives, programs, facilties and BN, Sl
services, The management practice applies fo alf officers . . .
will administalor apd edilorial access o lhe Cily's Recordkeeping of soclal media is a
Facebook pages, faily  new canccpt fo . Pmt
Government organisabions so is in ifs
Administrator and editor access fo the City of Bayswater's infancy as ko fow we go shout i
Facebook pages is limied o managers, coordinalors or .
designated officers approved by a Director or the Ghisf The City's Public Reiations team couid
Exectiive Officer alzo fook lo dewelop and extend itz
curent polcy documemts into  an
All content uploaded to City of Bayswater Facebook pages overarching Socief ‘;""::‘“ “"’9“'9?"‘.';:_?‘*
must comply With the "City of Bayswater Use of Scclal {:n’;“" Fffm ; ”g’:’“ma;‘" ”:
Media Standard for Conduct and Ethical Berhaviows". conjunction wilh the Social Media
Administrators and Editors are fo refrain from expressing Engagement Frolocals which ouline
their personal views on the City's Facebook pages. Their the standards of behaviour and
roles are to post information and respond fe comments responsibilities of Councll employees
and messages on behaf of the Cily of Bayswaler. and Councitiors when using social
media professionally and personally,
Tha management praclice also szefs guidelines around staff training or awereness programs E
o | o | comment management and a priorilisation of responses z IS could be rofled out as a result of this. g
ﬁ ® | ® | including. fo Respend fo consiructive negalive commenis, ﬁ s | = g
5%|% Replies should be empathetic, apologetic and provide & 2| & |8 o
g == solufion, Reply to highly positive comments to create brand § E g §
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Foszsibie
Mincr
Moderale

Many aclivaling events are beyond ihe conlrol of the event
coordinafor. These may wclude human  behaviour
(particutarly where aicchol or drugs are consumed),
weather events, building/slructure fallures, fire and medical
emergencies. With tharough planning, most rmsks can be
mitigated. Bresches fo legislabion can result in large
penalties and damage o the Cily's repufation mncluding:
Liguoy Licensing Acl can resull in penaltes of up lo
310000, Health Act can resull in penaltes of up fo
$15.000. Emwronmental Frotecton (Noisst Regulatons
can resulf in penalies of up 35000, Food Act can resulf in
penalties of up o $500.000 and OSH Act can resulf fn
penalties of up o 2500, 000,

The Department of Health WA has developed guidaines
for concerts, events and organised gatherings which act as
a8 regource fo identify basic standards and safely measures
for eveni organisers which are necessary o meel the
reguirement of local governmeni police and emergency
service orgamisations.

Linlikely
Minor

improvements fo the event approval
process o deliver better otlcomes for
community event organisers based on:
8 risk  management  approach,
improved and regular communicalions
and a three-level system of evenis.

in particufar, emphasis is being ghven
fo  fmproved  communicafion  and
stakeholder relalionship management.
Secondly emphasis will be ghen o
Risk Maragement surrounding fow,
moderate and high risk events that will
aftract diferent approval processes
and imeframes.

Az a consegquence of applying these
principies it is anlicipated that fewer
applications will be required and that
itiernal imeframes for approvais can
be reduced.  30-day epmrovals can
now be resolved in 21 days and 60-
day apovovals i 45 days.

w | Description of Risk Risk Category June | Current Controls Existing December | Further control activities Risk  Owmer | Task Alert & | Notation & Next Review
= What could occur? Risk themes | 2016 | Listof current treatments, actions, activitles. Controls 207 Further improvements, treatments, | Name/Title. Timeiine for | £ | Explanation of current ratings and future review
& defined by the | fisk Rating sk | actions. mitigation 3 | schedule.
City. ratings Adeguacy ratings activitios. o
of existing =
controls. 5
.| :
HHH i :
= I 5|8
3 Failure  to  effectvely | Material Operabing The Cily not only hosts evenls but also approves and | Adequate Counci has reguested City | Events The proposed The existing canfrols for this risk isgue are raled as
manage venwe and o 5, a range c even e ne o a oarainalor, JERis 5 were aaequale, meanmg ineng S0me SCOpe
nd public | Risk monitors of Community ts which utiise th Administration review all of ifs | Coorgim frac e it te frvgy &1 s further for
evenls, Cily's amenilties (fakrs, concerts, festivals, sporfing events business processes wih a view o | Manager presanted fo the fmprovemeant, Howaver, process comfrols are
and communiy engegement programs). reducing red fape which impecis on, | Recrealion Audit and Risk generally operating as ntended and there sre some
and  impedes individuals and | Services, Management further conlrol actvities occwring around staff
Governing Legisiation includes: Health Act 1911, Liguor armganizations thet do business with the | Skategic Committee at #s frafning,
Contral Act 1988 Food Act 2008 Local Covernment Gy, One of the processes idenlified | Planning meeling i Avgust
(Functions and Ge}remﬂ Reguf&ﬂ'ﬂﬂsliﬂﬂﬁ. OSH Act 1954, iz the ewvent approvel process. | Projects 2017  and are The Rizk izsues have bean downgraded in terms of
OSH Regulafions 1956, Securify and Related Activities Afttough many events run smoothly | Manager. Ewaitig fkeffood from ‘possible’ o unikely’. The overall
{Contraf) Act 1996 Standards which must be addressed and without incident there is offen endorsement; rsk raling is now "Low” which means that it is
in refafion fo event planning include; ASNZS 4360 Risk tension amund the fime faken fo gain event  spplication acceplable with adequate conbrol: however there
Management Flan AS 3745, Emergency Plan, A-’C;‘M‘TI.I'ES aprovel  for evenls and  some forms and are shill some inadeguaces thal exsl and will need
3002 Eleclrical inslafistions AS 3533 Amusement rides misunderstandings about the supported to be addressed by furfher review.
and devices, AS 1851 Mainienance Standards, AS/NZS legisiathe e fﬂl’"’ ) W‘“’fﬁ‘ Wﬂf’;ﬂ Wg
17RE-3007 L tection. requirements of conducting an event, en be u
oiining pro refiect theze
A cross-funciional beam hes oenlified principles.
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FPossibia

Moderale
Moderate

for confracis is to have a sef of contract conditions {offen
referred fo as lerms amd conditions] fo provide &
reference point in the event of any disputes befween the
parlias. The City has a procuwrement manual avaiable on
free access which outlines requirements for terms and
conditions and this document 5 updated every 2 years

The City has a number of avenuwes for adopling contract
comditions. If can drafl ity own and seek legal advice on
the wording, or if can adopt the WA Local Govemment
Asgociatnon model condilions which are made availabie o
the secfor. Thase have been drafted with appropriate lega!
experfize. Thirdly, it can use standard ndusty form
conditions of contract, A number of these are availabls,
including the Australian Standard AS 4000 suite of general
conditions and throvgh ndustry professional associakans.
These must be ladored fo suid the specific project
requiremernds.

Governing Legislation includes: the Coruption Crime and
Misconduct Act 2003, Local! Government Acl 1595
Construction Contracls Act 2004 Local Govemment
(Financial Managemenll Regulationz 1996 Local
Govermment  (Awdill  Reguialions 1936,  Financial
Management Act (2008}, Freedom of information Act 1892
and Stale Records Act 2000,

Each project requirement is subject to the regulatory
tender limst, which is currently 3150, 000,

The Australian Standard suite of general conditions (AS
4000 serfes) is best sinted o buillding constuction projects
and (s widely accepled in the fnduslry. The [ndividual
confracts are writfen fo sul projects thal are either
Principal or Superinfendent adminizfered and whether
there iz 8 gesign element fo the project and so on. Checks
of @ number of the City'’s minor works projecits show that
they are based on AS 4502-2000 which is best suited fo
design and consbuct projects. Majr projects fover$im)
are bazed on AS 4000 - 1997 and ane such project was
done fn 2074, The earier AS - 2124 General Conditions
are shill widely used and thére are several other standard
form Condiions of Comtract avalable through the Master
Buikders Auskala and the Royal Ausfralian institule of
Architects.

Smaller projects use the Cily's Genersl Conditions of
Conlract for Minar Works, which are taken directly from the
WALGA model and have bean legally checked Az there
is a range of avenves avafable e idenlifed risk is in
ensuring that the most approprate sel of contract
comditions is vsed for each project Failure fo do so could
mean that i the event of a dispute, the specific rghts and
responsibities of each parly on the issve are mod
adequately defined,

Linfkely
Moderale
Modera

exchange af documeantaltion.
Essenlially, each parfy lo the comract
must purchase & licence fo view the
condifions and the only permitied
varralion iz through the addenda.

Checks of several consbuclion
projectz show thet the appropriale
condifions have been  applied,
howewver there (s some sk [n that the
decision making process refies on the
experhise of the offficers concerned. As
gn improvemeni, external advice iz
suggested o provide guidance on
which industry condilions are mosi
eppropriale  for different lypes of
projects and & corporale bugsinass rule
oF guldance nole could be developed
o ensure  [hal [here 75 consis!

application of s,

The decizion on  which sel of
condilions s the most appropriate is 8
decizion for each profect group, based
on their own expertize and knowledge
of the industry. Consullanis are
sometimes engaged on ferger projects
end will advise on such mallers. The
identified rick iz thal there are no
corporale business rules oF guidance
notes o aid s decision making.

As o secondary point  procedural
moenitering is recommended fo ensure
that the licence limils are mot breached
in the documents exchanged beween
the perties. Mondoring s also
recommended o enswre thal wherever
the City of Bayswaler General
Condifions are to be used, [hey are
supported by Special Condifions fo sef
out the specific project requirements.

Spectal  Condiions  should  be
consistent  wih  previous  similar
projects

developed a
project plan
ouliiming fhe work
fashks for
procurement &
tendaring in 2018
Busimess
improvement i
relaton to ferms
and condittons will
cenfre o seeking
extermal  advice,
developing
guidance notes for
differert lypes of

projects,  special
conditions for
special project
reguirermenils,
developing
fraining o new
staff on  project
reguirements,
ok e
standards  formes,
comracts and
oiher seclor
praclices, An
updale on the
progress of
business
improvement
activifies i

refation fo ferms
and condilions will

be sought from the
Manager of
Corporate

Services m

February, 2018,

3 Description of Risk Risk Category June Current Controls Existing December | Further control activities Risk Owmer | Task Alert 0 Notation & Next Review
-] What could ocour? Risk themes 20186 List of current trealiments, actions, activities. Controls 2017 Further improvements, treatments, | Nawre/Title. Timeline for | B | Explanation of cumrent ratings and future review
i defined by the risk Rating risk actions. mitigation 2 | schedule.
Ciy. ratings Adequacy ratings aciivites. o
af  existing w
E controls. E
iz g
A : §
3|6 | 3 &
4 Faliure ta  estabiizh | Procurement & The City emiers info confracls on a regular basis for the | Adequate A secondary fisk Is that the Australian | Manager The Manager of Existing controls were assessed as ‘Adeguate’ with
effective  conbrac! terms | Tendering supply of goods ard melenals and performance of Slandard series s subjecl lo hcence, | Corporale Covpor ale mrocess conbrods  surrownding e Cily's
and condifions. services, including consulfancy work. An essental elament which must ke considered in the | Services Services has procurement manwal and directives fram external

agencies buf with scope for improvemeni required
around the business rules or guidance noles
required fo aid decision-making and ensure
consistent applcation.

The owerall risk rating 15 unchanged due fo the
number of further conbrol and miligation aclivities fo
be considered and implermented by the risk owner
in the coming months. Once further contmols are
put in place a reduced risk profiie can be
considered.

Likelihood downgraded due fo extensiveness of
current controls and overall risk level downgraded
lo from a high Moderaie' fc a fow Moderatz' level
of risk since June, 2016,
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In 2016 the Ciy received advice that the constitution of the
Child Care Associalion was inconsisfent with  the
Associations Incorporalion Act 1887 and thal e Child
Care Associalion was a separate legal entity to the City of
Bayswater. This was addressed at the bme. [he
Bayawater Child Care Associalion aperales independently
of the Cily In accordance with the Associations
Incorparation Act 2015,

and this sk issue will be removed
from the Corporate Risk Register”.

® Description of Risk Risk Catagory June Current Controls Existing December | Further control activities Risk Owmer | Task Alert w | Motation & Next Review
& What could occur? Risk themes | 2016 | Listof current treafments, actions, activities. Controls M7 Further Improvements, treatments, | Mame/Title. Timeline for | B | Explanation of current ratings and future review
o defined by the risk Rating risk actions. mitigation .‘E schedule.
Ccity. ratings Adequacy ratings activities. [
of existing %
controls, =
i 8 3
o |E o | &
2|E]l= 2|1 E |=
:|E |5 :lE |3
=1 i I =1 I
5 Child Care Association - | Malerial Operaling This was idenlifed as a risk twough the initial LGIS risk *The City has no obligations or
Governance and Agency | Risk audit, reporting meguirements  for the
FReporting Bayswater Child Care Assoclation
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Unlikely
Moderate
Moderate

lo risk and the possibily of figalion becavse of a fadure lo
have appropriale systems in place o avaid breaching
copiright faw.

Governing Legislation includes the Copyright Act 1968
Copyright Amendment Act 2006, Freedom of Information
Amendment (Reform) Act 2010, Freedom af Information
Regulations 1883, Trade Marks Regulalions 1995 amd
Code of Ethics.

Coppright  law  prevenls unauthorised use,  inchuding
copying and digially shaing copyrighfed works, The
Coppright Acl provides certain exemplions for Sfale and
Commerwealth governments, However, there s no
equivalent exemption for local governments.

The City recently lerminated its foence with the Copyright
Agency Limited (ending in March, 2018) which represenis
newspaper amd magazine publshers, as wel as
Journalisls, authors and pholographers, g5 a8 non-exciusive
agent to lcense the copying of their works. This licence
entitied the Cily to some sharing of copyright protected
meaterial, however the contract was costly and fhere were a
number of alleged 'breaches asz prior fo 2015 there was 8
practice of attaching copies of nmewspaper arlicles fo
Council agenda and minules. These alfachments were
published on the City’s wehsie and formed part of the
formally endorsed minufes.

As a general rule, material provided by a media monioring
service cavt be shared and coped misrnally. Howewver,
clients of @ media monitaring service cannof reproduce the
material on ther website or share # externally.

A licence with media moniloring senvice could provide
additional functioralily such as manioring of media and
social media sites for key issues, fracking and analysiz and
distriburtion of press releases.

Lirlikedy
Moderate
arohe

newspaper slores on social media,

Friar o the hcence with the Copyright
Agency finishing the Cily's Senior
Governance Officer will also send out
an emall o staff explaming their
obligations under the Act. All previous
alleged breaches complained about by
the Copwight agency have been
remaved fram the website.

To awvoid a further breach i is
dasvable that higtorne agenda and
minutes are eudifed for any other
podential breaches. However, thege
aftachmenis have been added as FOF
images. As a result there Is no way o
search the agemda and mimses
elecironically and the Ciy does nol
have the rescurces to manually check
these documents.

A Brand Shile Guide must be finalised
amd implemented. This guidance note
would guide s in making
appropriafe decisions regarding brand
loga.

The Cily could also infernally consider
impiemenialion of a Copyrighl Policy
applying o the reproduction of
documents amd FOI requests This
document should delal the Cily's
commitmant fo high standsrds of
records management winist avoiding
infringing copwright in thal informadion.
'‘Work' fo be profecled can include
Written reports produced by engingers,
aceowrants, planners and
professionals.  Applicable to the Cily
Iz may include building plans and
specificalions, nfrastruciure plans and
tender documents. It has  been
identified thera (s a polential nesd for
staff  fraiming surounding  these
obligations.

be alde lo create
digital media o
use with respect lo
public  relabions,
cormmunity
engagement and
information
inifiafives  without
A LT ing
mdditional costs.

% Description of Risk Risk Category June | Current Controls Existing December | Further control activities Risk Owner | Task Alert e | Motalion & Next Review
& What could ocour? Risk themes 2016 List of current treatments, actions, activities. Controls 2017 Further improvements, treatments, | Name/Title. Timeline for | B | Explanation of cumrent ratings and futire review
=4 defimed by the risk Rating risk aclions. ritiga tion 2 | schedufe.
City. ratings Adequacy ratings sctivites. Y
of existing %
controls.
g : s
HHE HHR
HHE 5|z
& Failwe of the City ilo | Material Operafing Coppright 15 an  increasingly tesled aree for Jocal | Inadequate The quaston of whether the City will | Senior Further fo these The existing controls for this risk issue are rafed as
effectively manage and | Risk governments, local govermments must acguire inteflectual get a licence with a media markefing | Governance slrafegies, A& s adequate; meaning there is some further scope for
safeguard #s Intelieciual properly {IF] in ways which comply with feqisiation. Under company Is being locked a&f by the | Office, recommended  a improvemernt.  However, process comfrols are
Properfy, Copyright and fegisletion, local governmenis are able fo protect thekr Fublic Relaffons team. If the Cily | Coordinaltor posifion be tasked generally operating as inlended and are reviewed
Media Crealion branding and IF from use hy peaple who do mat have decides not to pursue this opfion & will | Informalion In facilitate media and fested  Risk has heen downgraded in terms of
authorily fo use il Along with meeling IP legislation, media be abouwl inlermally mamaging the | Mansgement creaiion. The fkelihood fom Tikely' fo possibie”.
crealion iz an srea where the City ie spending substantial corporate sk, Mansger of | posidion would
resources. It has been cakculated that the Cily, over a two Finance and | develop The existing controls in relation to this risk issue
year period (2014-2015), has paid 3120000 in cosis fo All councifiors will be receiving media | Corporate multimedia  when have been raled as Inadeguate” as the risk owner
dewvelop media. fraining, prowvided by the Public | Services, requested for the haz identified & need for improverment or achion.
FRelations Advisor, fncluding | Public City officer. In The lapse in confract and fack of awarensss of
The City must comply with ils obligations under the obligations under the Copyright Act | Relafions many cases, process conlfrols arownd copyright responsibilitics
Coppright Act 1968, Prewiously the City has been exposed parficularly in regards fo sharing | Advisor, employeas  wolrkd means the confrals are nof operating as infended

Page 193




ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

12 DECEMBER 2017

Possibie

Moderale

Moderale

conbrol of workplace, OS5H Reguwalions 1986 3.1.
Identification of hazards, and assessment and reduction of
risks, duties of emplover elc,, 511, Emplover elc. 1o chiain
MSEDS for hazardous subsiance efe. and Register of
hazardous substance, duties of employer efc. and Code of
Ethics.

Legisiation requies S0D5 documenis to be kepl onsite in
the primavy slorege area for any chemical Any City
employes who works with or can be exposed fo a chemical
must have access fo 305 documentation. Employees who
work with hazardous chemicals must be provided with
training on the safe use of that chermical.

Unikely
Mimar

training to relevamt
City staff with two

further  sessions
planned, An
update  will bhe
sowgh! Fom  the
City's  Workplace
Sately and Health
Cfficer  in April,

2018 as fo how
M3DS online 05
perforning and i
there are any gaps
in fraining
requirements

= Eu:ripﬂnn of Risk Risk Category June Current Controls Existl ng December | Further control activities Risk Owner | Task Alert 0 Notation & Next Review
= What could occur? Risk themes 2016 List of current treatments, actions, activities. Controls 27 Further improvements, treatments, Name/Title. Timeline for E Explanation of cumment ratings and future review
o defined by the | fisk Rating risk actions. mitigation < | schedufe.
City. ralings Adeguacy ratings acovides. Y
of exisung E
contrals.
3
g 2| 8
g A 2E e
HHE I3 |2
7 Fafture lo mairtain  an | Malerial Qperaling The Cily is required to document the use of chermicals on | Adequate SD5  and risks assocaled wih | Workplace The City has & two There has Deen a notalde reduction in this risk
£DS and harards regisier | Risk zite, and the legisfative requirement iz fo oblain the Safely chemicals are cumently identifed and | Safely and | year subseription profile due o the implemenialion of an onfine
in aecardance with Data Sheet [(SD5) Formerly MSDS, Material Safety Dals mansged ifwough an SDS and | HealthOfficer | to  an omine eleclronic chemical management system that has
lfegislative requirements. Sheal] sheets from fhe supplier/manufacturer and hold materdal risk  management system, elecironic oceurred since June 2018,
these in a register. The current regisiers are in hard copy Risk assessmemt for each chemical chemical
and held al each sife (Bayswaler Waves. Depol Civic (Registers must be maintained and management Likelthood rating lras been improved from 'Fossible’
Centre elc ). stored in key operalional areas such system, MEDS fo  'Unikely™ which has also coaused fhe
as chemical slorage areas, onfing' which consequence raling to be changed from ‘WModerate'
SDE documents are informafion sheels which detall administration offices and emergency manages chenscal fo ‘Minor'. The owverall risk refing has been
information about & chemical This infarmation includes nformation posts and staff fraining starage and downgraded from ‘Moderalte' to 'Low' mesning that
Hazardows classificalion, Compasition ar ingredisnis, First locations. This is a new conbrols are operaling as infended and are
Aid measures and firefighting measures. new system for the sligned fo Policies and Procedures, subject fo
City. The provider ongoing momitaring and are reviewed regiiarily.
Governing legisiation incluges OSH Act 1884 19, Dutles has  conducted
of employers, 23G. Duties of employers fo mainiain safe Hazardous
premizses, 23L. Notification of harard to person having :-:ﬁﬁ:;::nt risk
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o Description of Risk Risk Category June Current Controls Existing December | Further control activities Risk Owner | Task Alert w | Notation & Next Review
= What could eccur? Risk themes | 2016 | Listof current treatments, actions, activities. Controls mr Further improvements, treatments, | Name/Title. Timeline for | B | Explanation of current ratings and future review
i defined by the | Tisk Rating risk actions. mitigation x| schedule.
cliy. ratings Adequacy | rafings activites. 0
af existing E
i cofntrols, =
1|l 1| )
El&|2 3 :

] Sile induction and lash | Maleral Cperating The Cily has oulined fls commilment Io meeting (s duly of | Adequate A contactor Managemen! Frocedurs | Fisk Training _ eniilied There has been a nolable reduction in this risk
analsis  for  contractor | Risk care o all conractors engaged by the Gily In its recently has  been developed  within  the | Management | "Contactor profife due to the project Work that has occwred
works f5 nol adeguately endorsed Management Praclice for Confracior Safety. The recently  endorsad  Management | Advisor /£ | Managament since the endorsement of the Management Practice
cavried oul. Cily is regponsible for ensuring contracior work heaith amd Praclice in relation fo Low Risklow | Manager fncluding Risk for Contaclor Safety. The City has an

safety. This will be schieved through ensuring that: Value confracts. High Risk Low Vaiwe | Corporale Review" is imoiemeniation  limetable for  the rofout of
guotations, Low RisiHigh Vawe | Servees curently ] confracior management training. botf infernally and
The conraclors are mede aware of the slanderds o be tenders and High RiskMHigh WValue finafised for staff fo on sile. ﬂnng thiz fraiming has been implemented
met and their obligations fo provide safe work practices tenders. attend frovm and the required management reports fave been
and safe systems of work, Technical made the existing control ralings may be changed
Corporate Induction and Site Induction Services, to 'effective’ at et review period.
City employees who deal wilh contractors af all stages of f:.;nv”;gt Efm mﬂﬂ:?:ﬁdrﬂﬂ:d ;E iganesh:g“hg
their engagement acl to ensure that the contractors have in December, 2017 and will cover the directorates  in
sate planh, systems of work and are approprialely qualined responsibiittes  of conractors o December 2017,
to conduct the work. camply with all requwrements of the
W Oceupalional Health and Safely Feedback wil be
The Cilys responsible officer povides appropriale Legisiative Framewaork, responsibiities sought from  the
superyvision fo ensure thal conbractors foliow their of sub-confractors to provide sufficient Risk Owner afier
approved safe system of work, Inswrance and approved JHA's or tivig time in
JEA's [rtermnally the trawing wil also January 2018 as
The City is required to conduct initial traiming and formally address the responsibilities of the o the
induct new confractors on specific site reguirements, Executive Leadership Team, effectiveness  of
especially when plant and machinery or specific hazards Mansgers and Officers and the City's the traimng ﬂ'”d
are present (working from heighls, adiacent to roadways Workplace Health and Safely Officer. any  reporting
and so on). The 2015 audit identifisd the need to develop requirements  that
an effective contractor induction system and integrate it gt be
imto the City's procurement processes., neceisary.
Governing Legislfation includes the OSH Act 1984, OSH
Regulations 1396, Contractors will alsc work in
accordance  with the appicable apmroved Codes of
Fractice and Guidance Notes and apmicable Australian
Standards. Other refevent documeniation  nciudes o
= Finance Frocurement Paficy, Procurement and Confract = 'E
ila Authorization Management Guidelines - Confracls by HE:
5[ 2] 8] svonton 5| &
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Pogs b
Mincr
Moderaie

and managemeant pracltices which eover  appoopriafe
access o the infernel and restrict access lo social meaia.

The wuse of mobie dewices s increasingly becoming
accepled ag the porm and in most cases fas benefls in
terms of convernence, Mexibility and efficieancy.

The identified risk i in enstring that moblle davices are
appropriately procured and recorded for replacement
purposes, and are used only for legifimale wark purposes
ar within fhe imidalions of accepfable personal use This is
recogrised a5 increasingly complex as the dewces
become more widespread [fmough e orgenisation.

The specilc risks are:

L] Froctinng e denTees trreungh he
appropriate cast centres for equipment,

. Recording mobile devices Lthal are Dbelow he
32,000 assel recording .

. Loss or theft of the devices,

. Security of wark relafed conftent, including
canfidental information.

. Inappropriale access or usage

. Cyber securty

Governing Legiglalion includes Corruplion Crime and
Mizconduct Act 2003 Far Wok Act 2009, Far Work
Reguations 2008, Fnanclal Management Act (2006),
Fregdom of Information Act (1992), State Records Act
(2000), Procwrement Preclice Guide and Code of Ethics.

Al mabile devices are procured by the City's information
Technofogy business urilt through a single cost centre and
movements are recorded in oan assef regisler using
harcodes, The acfual allocation decizion iz keft with the

respective fine managers,

Mobfle dewvices are increasingly being miernel enabled,
aflowing wsers to access ther emads and the miernet
gencrally. This creafes some content security issues. for
example if 8 mobile device is left in a public area and is not
secured through PIN code ar password there is polential
for 8 member of the public fo gain unauthorized access fo
cordfidential or sensitive content.

Thera i potential for inappropriale access fo fnternet
contart and socigd media, and this is wall recoghised and
curenlly managed through  an  ecceplable  use
Management Fractice and the Code of Ethics

Rare
Minor

aszet recording system s also an
effective conlrol, as all devices can be
fracked wia [he bar code.

The Cily's policy on mobie phones s
largaly redundari as a conbrol,
However, the Code of Ethics and the
Menagement Practice an internel vse
provide sufficient clarity.

The main sk exposwe s Prough
polential unawhorised access  from
loss,  as Ihere i curenlly no
mandatory reguirement to lock dewvices
through PIN codes or other zecurity
means.

The general movement of devices s
well managed, and lost devices can be
disabied on request fo Telstra,

11 i recoghised that mobile devices wiil
be inherently prone to bss or damage;
however the ewvidence fs that such
fncidernts have been refatively minor.

alzo

recomimended  for
Improving  securify
of ihe devices,

and a8 =]
rERimum, they
should  be FIN
orofecied fo
reduce
apporfunities  for
unawlhorised
BCCESS fer
confidential or
sangithve
nformaltian.
Dngaing  rewnng
of officers s
reguired firl
manage  secunity

of data and raise
awareness of the
Inhearant rizks.

The HManager of
Information
Services will
monitor  fhis  risk
izgwe wilh roufine
inspeclion and
provide  updales
85 necesgsary,

- Description of Risk Risk Category June Current Controls Exlisting December | Further control activities Risk  Owner | Task Alert w | Motation & Next Review
= What could occur? Risk themes | 2018 | List of current ireatments, actions, activitles. Controls 207 Further improvements, treatments, | Name/Tite. Timeline for | B | Explanation of currcnt ratings and future review
i defined by the | Fisk Rating sk actions. mitigation = | schedule
City. ratings Adequacy ratings aetvifies. B
of  existing E
controls, g E
il i
L] Ensuring  fhat  Mabile | Frawvd & Adminisirative and operalional sccess is prowded o a | Effeclive The central procwement of mobile | Manager Soume Exisling controfs  rafing  has  imgroved  from
Techmology Devices ere | Misconduct range of mobile devices (phones, nolebooks, fablets and devices iz an effeclive conrol. AV | information developme ‘Adeguate’ o ‘Effective’ given thaf there iz litte
appropriately procured laptopsg) for the purposes of carrying out work relaled devices are comnecled fo the Cily's | Services cowld be done in scope for improvement on this activity,
and recorded for lasks, Most of (hese devices are permanently assigned o masler usage agreement $o here s lerme  of selling
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of acceptable wse, soma restrictions on use, which is driven through policies through unrelated cost coentres. The Fuwther work = moaniforing and are reviewed regularity.  Likelihood
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damage. and bas of opportunities, fancial impacts and changes in the poliical landscape, The provide  updates
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for assistance and support, a
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14. MOTIONS OF WHICH PREVIOUS NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN

Cr Catherine Ehrhardt left the meeting at 7.36pm during item 14.1 and returned at 7.39pm.

14.1 Cr Elli Petersen-Pik - Community Safety and Vulnerable People

CR LORNA CLARKE DECLARED A FINANCIAL INTEREST

In accordance with section 5.60A of the Local Government Act 1995, Cr Lorna Clarke
declared a financial interest in this item as she is employed by the Police Minister and this
motion is about community safety. At 7.26pm Cr Lorna Clarke withdrew from the meeting.

In accordance with clause 4.5(1) of the City of Bayswater's Standing Orders Local Law 2013,
Cr Elli Petersen-Pik raised the following motion:

"That:

1. The City holds a forum on community safety, homelessness and begging in the first
guarter of 2018;

2. Relevant agencies and organisations (e.g. WA Police, support services) are invited
to participate in the forum;

3. The City releases information to the community such as a discussion paper prior to
the forum to educate the community and guide their questions and input;

4.  Outcomes from this forum should assist and support completion of actions in the
City's current Community Safety and Crime Prevention Plan, and contribute to any
other relevant City policies; and

5. A report be provided to Council following the forum regarding the formation of an
ongoing committee to follow up issues raised at the forum and discuss any other
issues related to community safety, homelessness and begging."

MATERIAL FACTS

In accordance with clause 4.5(7) of the City of Bayswater Standing Orders Local Law 2013, the
Chief Executive Officer may provide relevant and material facts and circumstances relating to the
notice of motion on such matters as policy, budget and law relevant to the notice of motion.

This Notice of Motion was raised at the Ordinary Council Meeting held on 14 November 2017. At
that meeting the item was deferred for the following reasons:
Councillors were undecided as to whether one or several forums should be held
During public question time, a statement was made regarding inaccuracies within the
statement of facts
Further information is provided in the Officers Comment section regarding these points.

Community Safety Advisory Committee History

The City of Bayswater most recently had a Community Safety Advisory Committee from
October 2015 to May 2016. This committee consisted of four (4) councillors, WA Police and
community members as individuals, business representatives and community organisation
representatives.

The purpose of this committee was to provide advice on community safety matters; however the
primary purpose of the committee was to provide advice regarding the formation of the City's first
Community Safety and Crime Prevention Plan (CSCP Plan). Following the adoption of the
CSCP Plan, the Community Safety Advisory Committee was disbanded.
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At the Ordinary Council Meeting held on 31 January 2017, following a question at the
Annual General Meeting of Electors, Council resolved to reform the
Community Safety Advisory Committee.

Following the advertising for members, a report was presented to Council during the May 2017
round of meetings. At the Ordinary Council Meeting on 23 May 2017, Council rescinded the
previous decision from January 2017 to reform the committee, meaning that the committee was
not formed.

The reason for this rescission motion was that Council was of the opinion that the City's officers
already work closely with WA Police and other agencies and officers' time could be better spent
elsewhere.

Community Safety Crime Prevention
Currently the City has two initiatives in relation to crime prevention. The City provides 24 hour
security patrols and the City has a Community Safety and Crime Prevention Plan.

The City's 24 hour Security Watch service commenced in 1997. The purpose of this service is to
deter antisocial behaviour and incidents, along with curbing the crime rate within all areas of the
City. Officers within this team, primarily undertake the following functions:

Proactive patrols throughout the City, including targeted patrols;

Management of the City's CCTV network;

Implementation of the City's CSCP Plan; and

Liaison and joint work with Local Police on crime prevention and criminal matters.

The City's first CSCP Plan was adopted by Council in May 2016. The plan sets out the City's
actions to prevent criminal and antisocial behaviour and to increase the sense of safety within the
community.

Homelessness

Homelessness is a responsibility of the Department of Communities (formerly
the Department of Child Protection and Family Support). The City does not currently have any
actions in its Corporate Business Plan regarding homelessness.

In 2016, the City developed a resource booklet regarding homelessness. The booklet provides
information and background on why some people find themselves homeless. The booklet also
provides a list of service providers located and/or operating within the City that assist homeless
people.

OFFICER COMMENT

The City's Security Watch and Local Police could benefit from holding a community forum on
community safety. When forums of this nature have occurred in the past, both Security Watch
and Local Police have gained insight into local issues that may have otherwise not been
reported. The forum would also provide an avenue to reinforce community education about
prevention and reporting of crimes.

While the City does not have any actions in relation to homelessness in its Corporate Business
Plan, inviting the Department of Communities to a forum may assist to educate the community on
homelessness and may assist the Department of Communities with information on local issues.

Holding One or Multiple Forums
There are various benefits and risks to each approach that are provided in the table below:
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Option Benefits Risks
Hold 1 forum - Easier to engage agencies | - Less able to deal with local
Reduced staff resource issues
requirement - Complaints over travel
Easier to find suitable distance to central forum
venue
Hold multiple forums - More able to deal with - Increased staff resource
local issues requirements
Closer to residents - Risk that agencies won't
attend multiple forums due
to time commitment
Harder to find multiple
suitable venues

Inaccuracies in Statement of Facts

Upon contacting the resident that made this statement, in general the concerns were related to
two particular points. One being that the Department of Communities (formerly
the Department of Child Protection) is not the sole government department responsible for
homelessness. In relation to this concern, Officers acknowledge that several government
departments provide support to homeless people. While the Department of Communities
advertises the responsibility for homelessness on their website and is certainly the key agency
dealing directly with homeless people in this state, there are other state and federal departments
that provide financial, accommodation and other support for homelessness.

The second concern raised in relation to this item was the conflict or alignment between the
issues being proposed for discussion at the forum. Community Safety is a topic that relates to
reducing anti-social and criminal behaviour and improving the sense of community safety, this
would typically involve WA Police. The topics of homelessness and begging are social issues not
necessarily related to anti-social or criminal behaviour. Homelessness and begging are instead
related more specifically to social inequity or social disadvantage. Forums relating to social
disadvantage would typically involve community support organisations; direct service providers;
and would usually not involve WA Police directly. The resident was concerned at the confusion a
forum of this type would cause throughout the community and that this would further perpetuate
misunderstanding regarding homelessness and begging by linking anti-social and criminal
behaviours to this social issue.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
Nil.
POLICY IMPLICATIONS
Nil.

STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS

In accordance with the City of Bayswater Strategic Community Plan 2017-2027, the following
applies:

Theme: Our Community

Aspiration: An active and engaged community.

Outcome B2: A strong sense of community through the provision of quality services and
facilities.
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FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications in relation to holding a public forum. A City building can be
utilised at no cost and staff and other resources will be sourced from existing budget.

VOTING REQUIREMENTS
Simple Majority required.

Revised motion provided from Cr Petersen- Pik at the meeting:

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

That:
1.

2.

3.

The City holds forums on community safety, homelessness and begging before the
end of the financial year;

Relevant agencies and organisations (e.g. WA Police, support services) are invited
to participate in the forums;

The City releases information to the community such as a discussion paper prior to
the forums to educate the community and guide their questions and input;

Outcomes from these forums should assist and support completion of actions in the
City's current Community Safety and Crime Prevention Plan, and contribute to any
other relevant City policies; and

A report be provided to Council following the forums regarding the formation of an
ongoing inter-agency committee (coordinated by the City) to follow up issues raised
at the forum and discuss any other issues related to community safety,
homelessness and begging.

CR ELLI PETERSEN-PIK MOVED, CR BARRY McKENNA SECONDED

For:

CARRIED: 6/3

Cr Bull, Mayor, Cr Cornish, Deputy Mayor, Cr Piffaretti, Cr Ehrhardt, Cr
McKenna and Cr Petersen-Pik.

Against: Cr Fleeton, Cr Gray and Cr Johnson.
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Cr Lorna Clarke returned to the meeting at 7.44pm

14.2 Mayor Cr Dan Bull - Meltham Station Precinct Structure Plan

In accordance with clause 4.5(1) of the City of Bayswater's Standing Orders Local Law 2013,
Mayor, Cr Dan Bull raised the following motion:

"That Council considers as part of the 2018/2019 budget process an allocation of $150,000
to fund the undertaking of further detailed planning (structure plan) in 2018/2019 of the
remaining area within the 400m walkable catchment of the Meltham Train Station that is
not covered by the Meltham Station Precinct Structure Plan approved by the Western
Australian Planning Commission."

MATERIAL FACTS

In accordance with clause 4.5(7) of the City of Bayswater Standing Orders Local Law 2013, the
Chief Executive Officer may provide relevant and material facts and circumstances relating to the
notice of motion on such matters as policy, budget and law relevant to the notice of motion.

On Tuesday 24 October 2017 the Western Australian Planning Commission's Statutory Planning
Committee (SPC) effectively approved the Meltham Station Precinct Structure Plan as submitted
by Planning Solutions subject to modifications. The SPC resolved as follows:

"1. In accordance with clause 22 (1) (b), Schedule 2 - Deemed Provisions for Local Planning
Schemes of the Planning and Development (Local Planning Schemes) Regulations 2015,
require the City of Bayswater to: a) modify the draft Meltham Station Precinct Structure
Plan in accordance with the attached Schedule of Maodifications, appended as Attachment
6; and b) resubmit the modified plan to the Western Australian Planning Commission for
approval.

2.  Advise the City of Bayswater that the Western Australian Planning Commission expects
subsequent local planning scheme amendments, local planning policies and/or local
development plans relating to the Meltham Station Precinct to incorporate appropriate
development controls that align with the densities proposed by the structure plan.

3. Advise the City of Bayswater that further detailed planning should be undertaken to
investigate further opportunities to increase residential densities within the 400-metre
walkable catchment of Meltham train station. The motion was put and carried.”

The City subsequently met with officers from the Department of Planning, Lands and Heritage
(DPLH) to seek clarification as to Point 3 of the SPC decision.

The DPLH officers advised the City that the resolution to require further detailed planning for the
400m surrounding the Meltham train station was in response to a number of deputations
presented by the local community, which requested the area be extended and that the process
be run by the City and involve significant consultation with the community.

The DPLH officers further advised that the Local Planning Strategy (LPS) process and review of
the City's town planning scheme may be sufficient to meet the expectations of the above detailed
planning, and the DPLH will advise further once they have considered the draft LPS. In the event
further detailed planning is still required the DPLH indicated that it could done as an amendment
to the Meltham Station Precinct Structure plan at a later date or as a new structure plan which
encompasses the whole area and supersedes the current approved structure plan.
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OFFICER COMMENT

The plan below indicates a 400m radius around the Meltham Station (blue circle) compared to
the boundary of the approved Meltham Station Precinct Structure Plan (red outline). The exact
boundary of any future structure plan would be subject to further investigation and determination
by the City.

The City is currently developing the LPS to guide development throughout the whole City for the
next 5 years. The City is currently conducting preliminary community engagement for the LPS
through a project called 'Building Bayswater'.

As a result of the interest in the Meltham Station Precinct, during the initial phases of this
engagement, the City has received significant feedback in focus groups and online regarding the
wider 400m area surrounding the Meltham station. The community feedback on the dwelling
types that they consider are appropriate in that area and the conditions on which they would
support those dwellings will be included with the feedback on other areas of the City and
provided to a community panel to be convened in February and March 2018. Ultimately, the
recommendations of the panel on built form in the whole City, including Meltham, will be provided
to Council and inform the draft LPS, scheduled for completion in June 2018.
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Structure plans generally address the following matters:
Background and context;
Precinct vision and objectives;
Land use, dwellings, density and population;
Movement strategy; and

Implementation and development controls.

The need or otherwise for a structure plan for the wider Meltham station area depends on extent
of community engagement and range of matters that Council considers it wants to address for
the precinct. The draft LPS will provide the dwelling type and density and the process includes
broad consultation. A future scheme amendment could follow the draft LPS to establish the
residential coding and extend the built form controls proposed for the subject area.

A structure plan for the wider Meltham station area could include more comprehensive and
targeted consultation and would include further consideration of matters such as vision and
objectives, non-residential land uses, vehicular and non-vehicular transport, and development. It
would also provide supporting reports such as traffic modelling.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
Nil.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS
Nil.

STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS

In accordance with the City of Bayswater Strategic Community Plan 2017-2027, the following
applies:

Theme: Our Built Environment
Aspiration: A quality and connected built environment.
Outcome B2: A connected community with sustainable and well maintained transport.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

A structure plan for the broader Meltham station area is not included in the City's adopted
Corporate Business Plan.

In adopting the 2017-2018 Annual Budget at its Special Meeting held on 28 June 2017, Council
resolved as follows:

n

8b) In the event that the West Australian Planning Commission rejects the Meltham Precinct
Structure Plan, at the next available opportunity an item is considered by the Council to
include an appropriate amount in the budget to proceed with the structure plan for that
precinct.”

The WAPC did not reject the structure plan and therefore it is considered that this resolution does
not specifically apply to the question of another structure plan for the wider 400m area.

It is estimated that it will cost approximately $150,000 for consultants to prepare and undertake
extensive community consultation on the structure plan. Managing the consultant and the project
would also require City officer resources, which would be diverted from other strategic planning
projects. The implications of this will be known upon adoption of the City's 2018-2019 Budget.
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VOTING REQUIREMENTS
Simple Majority required

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

That Council considers as part of the 2018/2019 budget process an allocation of $150,000
to fund the undertaking of further detailed planning (structure plan) in 2018/2019 of the
remaining area within the 400m walkable catchment of the Meltham Train Station that is
not covered by the Meltham Station Precinct Structure Plan approved by the Western
Australian Planning Commission.

CR DAN BULL, MAYOR MOVED, CR LORNA CLARKE SECONDED
CARRIED: 10/0
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14.3 Cr Chris Cornish - Converting Grass Land into a Forest

In accordance with clause 4.5(1) of the City of Bayswater's Standing Orders Local Law 2013,
Councillor Chris Cornish, Deputy Mayor raised the following motion:

"That Council request the City to prepare a report on the possibility of converting the
grass land between Memorial Drive and the Eric Singleton Bird Sanctuary into a forest.
The report should include the costs (including cost savings) and feasibility, as well as
provide ideas for community consultation and community involvement. The report should
be delivered in time for 2018-19 budget deliberations."

MATERIAL FACTS

In accordance with clause 4.5(7) of the City of Bayswater Standing Orders Local Law 2013, the
Chief Executive Officer may provide relevant and material facts and circumstances relating to the
notice of motion on such matters as policy, budget and law relevant to the notice of motion.

The subject land between Memorial Drive and the Eric Singleton Bird Sanctuary is classified as a
Contaminated Site.

The land is a former landfill site which is currently classified as ‘possibly contaminated
investigation required'. In accordance with the requirements of this classification, the City has
undertaken a detailed site investigation (DSI) of the site and is awaiting further classification from
the Department of Water and Environmental Regulation (DWER).

The site has not been planted previously due to its previous use as a landfill and the DSI
indicates that this area is appropriate for its current use (grassed parkland).
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Whilst tree planting may be an alternative appropriate use, further investigation would be
required to identify whether any proposed works undertaken in this area would be possible (in
terms of suitability of the site for tree planting, given the previous use of the site) or could
possibly pose a risk to human health or the environment.

From limited sampling at the site, it is understood that the depth of cover of clean fill over the
former landfill site ranges from 0.4M to 1.0M. This depth of soil is less than ideal for healthy tree
survival as has historically been evidenced in Memorial Drive where some trees which were
planted have failed when they grew to a mature size. This is presumed to be as a result of the
tree roots coming into contact with the landfill material.

Considering the above, it is possible that there would be a risk of significant tree deaths within a
number of years following planting should the depth or quality of soil cover not be adequate.

It should also be noted that permit approval may be required from the DWER as well as
Department of Biodiversity, Attractions and Conservation (DBAC) for any proposed tree planting
program.

OFFICER COMMENT

Whilst there is undoubtedly merit in utilising the subject site as an urban forest, Council needs to
consider the initial and ongoing cost implications with the proposal, as well as whether this is the
optimal use for the site. For example, urban infill in the area is likely to drive a push for more
active sporting areas and the site could potentially be used for this purpose.

With respect to this proposal, a review of the depth of cover required to grow healthy large native
trees would need to be undertaken to understand the likelihood of long term survival of the trees.

It should be noted that a number of land managers in Perth have revegetated or returned
contaminated sites to parkland by raising the height of the landfill cover to >1.0M.

It is further noted that there is also an opportunity to combine this proposal into a project which
connects the adjacent surrounding environmental reserves into one management site:

The recently purchased land at 128 King William Street (previously owned by Carters);

The City owned land at 124 King William Street; and

The Eric Singleton Bird Sanctuary.

The report proposed in the Notice of Motion could be undertaken with in-house resources and
would consider

Costs to undertake appropriate investigations to inform a management plan;

Order cost magnitude to increase soil profile;

Order of cost magnitude to revegetate the area;

Community consultation; and

Project opportunities and approaches.
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Notwithstanding the above, it should be noted that resources for the project has not been
allocated within this year's budget and works program. Alternatively, a detailed report which
undertakes the required on ground investigations and provides recommendations could be
undertaken utilising external resources at a cost of approximately $30,000 to $50,000.

It may be appropriate to consider this proposal further during the review of the Corporate
Business Plan and Long Term Financial Plan.
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
Approvals may be required by:
DWER under the Contaminated Sites Act; and

DBAC under the Swan and Canning Rivers Management Act.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

The Council supports the increase of tree canopy coverage under the City of Bayswater's Urban
Forest Strategy.

STRATEGIC IMPLICATIONS

In accordance with the City of Bayswater Strategic Community Plan 2017-2027, the following
applies:

Theme: Our Natural Environment
Aspiration: A green and sustainable City.
Outcome B2: A natural environment and biodiversity which are conserved and protected.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The cost of the report or project has not been budgeted for or identified in the Long Term
Financial Plan. As detailed above, outsourcing the investigations required for the report would
cost in the vicinity of $30,000 to $50,000. Alternatively, the works could be undertaken utilising
in-house resources, however, this would require a diversion of resources from already committed
programs and projects.

VOTING REQUIREMENTS
Simple Majority Required.

COUNCIL RESOLUTION

That Council request the City to prepare a report on the possibility of converting the grass
land between Memorial Drive and the Eric Singleton Bird Sanctuary into a forest. The
report should include the costs (including cost savings) and feasibility, as well as provide
ideas for community consultation and community involvement. The report should be
delivered in time for 2018-19 budget deliberations.

CR CHRIS CORNISH, DEPUTY MAYOR MOVED, CR STEPHANIE GRAY SECONDED
CARRIED: 7/3

For: Cr Bull, Mayor, Cr Cornish, Deputy Mayor, Cr Clarke, Cr McKenna, Cr Petersen-
Pik, Cr Gray and Cr Johnson.
Against: Cr Fleeton, Cr Piffaretti, and Cr Ehrhardt.
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15. NOTICE OF MOTION FOR CONSIDERATION AT THE FOLLOWING MEETING IF
GIVEN DURING THE MEETING

Nil.

16. MAYORS REPORT

KMART WISHING TREE - WEDNESDAY, 15 NOVEMBER 2017
| was pleased to attend the 30" Anniversary of the Kmart Wishing Tree Appeal which has
collected more than 8 million gifts over the years.
This year's Appeal is aiming to raise more than 500,000 gifts for Australians doing it
tough.

BUSINESS SUNDOWNER EVENT - THURSDAY, 16 NOVEMBER 2017
The City of Bayswater in partnership with the Central Eastern Business Association
(CEBA) and the Chamber of Commerce and Industry of WA (CCIWA) hosted a
networking sundowner for local businesses.
The evening provided a great opportunity to connect with other businesses and discuss
new opportunities for them.

CITY OF BAYSWATER ART AWARDS AND EXHIBITION PRESENTATION - THURSDAY,
16 NOVEMBER 2017
The Art Awards and Exhibition is one of the City's leading events and is a wonderful
platform for artists to showcase their talent.
| am proud to announce, that this year, the City received 130 entries.
This year's winner of the City's Open Award was Mr Nick Mahony for 'The Cage'.
Congratulations to Nick and all the other category winners.

DURHAM ROAD SCHOOL GRADUATION - TUESDAY, 22 NOVEMBER 2017
| attended the Durham Road School Class of 2017 Graduates and School Leavers
Ceremony and presented the City's 2017 Book Prize Award.

CITY OF BAYSWATER GARDEN AWARDS COCKTAIL PRESENTATION EVENING -
THURSDAY, 23 NOVEMBER 2017
This year celebrated the City's 36" Annual Garden Awards Competition, with awards
presented for best verge garden, urban garden, vegetable garden, native garden and first
time entry.
The calibre of entries was high and all entrants should be justifiably proud of their efforts
and the enormous contribution they make to the quality of the amenity which is enjoyed by
all residents and visitors to the City.

DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT, SPORT AND CULTURAL INDUSTRIES -

TUESDAY, 28 NOVEMBER 2017

. The Department invited elected members and officers including residents to hear about
the Local Government Act review and to contribute ideas to help modernise local
governments in WA.
This represents the first major review of the Act since its introduction some 20 years ago.
The review will be conducted in two phases. The first is currently underway and will focus
on making information available online; | encourage people to lodge submissions if they
have views on changes they believe are needed.

FRIENDS OF OXFAM SITE VISIT - WEDNESDAY, 29 NOVEMBER 2017

Along with Cr Johnson, we took the opportunity to visit the Bayswater Office of the Friends
of Oxfam where they undertake their charitable work.
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The site includes meeting rooms, a volunteer-run fair trade shop and a library for
teachers, students and interested members of the public.

BLUE RIBBON CLUB AWARDS - THURSDAY, 30 NOVEMBER 2017
I had the pleasure of attending Blue Ribbon Club Awards which recognises the
outstanding work of our local clubs and volunteers.
Amongst the winners this year included Carole Bowland from Bayswater Lacrosse Club
Juniors who was the recipient of the Volunteer of the Year Award for her tireless pursuit of
funding and her efforts to boost club membership.
Perth Bayswater Rugby Union Club received the Club of the Year Award. The Club
celebrated on-field success across several junior grades and this year expanded to
accommodate female rugby teams.
Tanika Lockley from Emberson Little Athletics Club received the Athlete of the Year
Award. Tanika took home the gold during a recent international competition in Malaysia.
She also acts as a mentor to younger athletes.

MORLEY SENIOR CITIZENS CHRISTMAS LUNCH - FRIDAY, 1 DECEMBER 2017
I had the honour of being invited to attend the Morley Senior Citizens Christmas Lunch
this year and catch up with some local senior citizens within our community.

BAYSWATER PLAYGROUP CHRISTMAS PARTY - FRIDAY, 1 DECEMBER 2017
| also had the opportunity to channel my inner 'Santa’ and deliver presents to the kids of
the Bayswater Playgroup who held their annual Christmas Party at Bert Wright Park this
year.
It was lots of fun for the kids with face painting, fire engine rides, petting zoo, bouncy
castles and lots more.

SYMPHONY OF THE SWAMP - FRIDAY, 1 DECEMBER 2017
I had the pleasure of kicking off the Symphony of the Swamp at Halliday House, a
community event which celebrated the bright new future of the Carter's Wetland.
Preventing any future development on Carter's Land is a wonderful outcome for the
community and just shows how a united community have joined together to make this
possible for future generations to enjoy.

MERTOME VILLAGE CHRISTMAS DINNER - SATURDAY, 2 DECEMBER 2017
With the festive season well and truly upon us, | was pleased to join Cr Johnson and
Clarke and the residents of Mertome Village for a Christmas drink and catch up.

VOLUNTEERS CHRISTMAS LUNCH - TUESDAY, 5 DECEMBER 2017
As a small token of the City’s appreciation, the City once again hosted a luncheon for the
many volunteers within our community. It was great to have the opportunity to thank our
many volunteers for their dedication and service to our community. | was accompanied by
Cr Clarke and Cr Ehrhardt. Council would be unable to provide the high standard of
services to the community without the tremendous contribution of our volunteers.

CHRISTMAS FOOD APPEAL - WEDNESDAY, 6 DECEMBER 2017
| would like to acknowledge the donations received from the Love and Care Group
towards the City's Annual Christmas Food Appeal.
The Group have contributed a substantial amount of food and toys to the Appeal for many
years and this year again, was no exception with an abundance of food provided.
The Group is run by volunteers and is based at the Buddhist Temple on Guildford Road in
Maylands.

RUSSELL STREET 'POP UP' PARK TURNING OF THE SOD - THURSDAY,
7 DECEMBER 2017
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Along with the Minister for Water, David Kelly, and Member for Morley | was delighted to
kick off Stage 1 of the Russell Street 'Pop Up' Park works, which will be revitalised with a
Ninja Warrior style obstacle course.

The project will transform the closed-off Water Corporation drainage site on

Russell Street, Morley, following Cr Cornish's original motion six years ago.

CAMBOON PRIMARY SCHOOL CHRISTMAS FOOD APPEAL - FRIDAY, 8 DECEMBER 2017
Accompanied by Cr Piffaretti, | was delighted to receive the food hamper from Camboon
Primary School on behalf of the City towards the City's Christmas Food Appeal for
St Vincent De Paul.

It was great to see the generosity shown by the school community with the considerable
guantities of food donated which will provide much needed relief for the needy this
Christmas.

MORNING TEA WITH MERTOME VILLAGE RESIDENTS - MONDAY, 11 DECEMBER 2017
It was great to share a cup of tea and a scone with the residents of Mertome Village to
meet and greet the Councillors and provide an update on the Mertome Redevelopment
project along with Cr Johnson.

BEDFORD BOWLING CLUB CHRISTMAS EVENT - MONDAY, 11 DECEMBER 2017
It was a real please to attend the Bedford Bowling club Christmas event joined by the
deputy Mayor Cr Cornish and Cr Johnson and Cr Clarke.
It was nice to catch up with some of executive and the committee.

THANK YOU TO FELLOW COUNCILLORS
| would like to take this opportunity to thank the Deputy Mayor and fellow Councillors who
attended events and functions at this busy timey of year.
Cr Filomena Piffaretti attended the Camboon Primary School Graduation on Wednesday,
6 December 2017.
Deputy Mayor, Cr Chris Cornish, attended the Weld Square Primary School Graduation
held on Thursday, 7 December 2017.
Cr Brent Fleeton attended the Noranda Primary School Graduation Ceremony this
morning.
Cr Giorgia Johnson attended the Bayswater Primary School Graduation this evening.

CAROLS BY CANDLELIGHT - SATURDAY, 16 DECEMBER 2017
I would just like to remind and take the opportunity to invite everyone to this year’s Carols
by Candlelight which will be held at Halliday Park, Bayswater, commencing at 5.00pm this
Saturday, 16 December 2017.

CHRISTMAS/NEW YEAR WISHES
I would also like to take the opportunity to thank all the Councillors and their partners, our
CEO, Directors and staff for their tremendous efforts during the last few months and in
particular in supporting me as the Mayor.
I would like to wish you and your families a very Merry Christmas and a happy, safe and
prosperous New Year and | look forward to working hard with all the Councillors and staff
for the residents and ratepayers of the City of Bayswater for 2018
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ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 12 DECEMBER 2017

17. AFFIXING OF COMMON SEAL

17.1 Ratification for Affixing of the Common Seal

Ratification is sought for affixing of the common seal to the following documents:

: No. of Council
Document Details :
Documents Resolution
Notification under section 70A - addressing 2 NA
Development Approval Condition
Withdrawal and replacement of Section 70A 2 NA
Notification

CR FILOMENA PIFFARETTI MOVED, CR LORNA CLARKE SECONDED
CARRIED: 10/0

17.2 Approval for Affixing of the Common Seal

Nil.

18. DISCUSSION OF MATTERS BEHIND CLOSED DOORS

18.1 Planning and Development Services Committee

Nil.

18.2 Community, Technical, Finance & Corporate Services Committee
Nil.

18.3 Reports of Management/Advisory Committees

Nil.

19. CLOSURE

There being no further business to discuss, the Chairperson, Cr Dan Bull, Mayor, declared the
meeting closed at 8.18pm.
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